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Item 1. Schedule of Investments.

The Schedule(s) of Investments is attached herewith.
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The Gabelli Utility Trust

First Quarter Report March 31, 2012

Mario J. Gabelli, CFA

To Our Shareholders,

For the quarter ended March 31, 2012, the net asset value ( NAV ) total return of The Gabelli Utility Trust (the Fund ) was 0.04%, compared with
a total return of (1.6)% for the Standard & Poor s ( S&P ) 500 Utilities Index. The total return for the Fund s publicly traded shares was 5.8%. On
March 31, 2012, the Fund s NAV per share was $5.54, while the price of the publicly traded shares closed at $8.09 on the New York Stock
Exchange ( NYSE ).

Enclosed is the schedule of investments as of March 31, 2012.

Comparative Results

Average Annual Returns through March 31, 2012 (a) (Unaudited)

Since
Inception
Quarter 1 Year 5 Year 10 Year (07/09/99)
Gabelli Utility Trust
NAY Total Return (b) 0.04% 10.17% 3.96% 8.28% 8.58%
Investment Total Return (c¢) 5.79 32.02 5.50 6.91 9.68
S&P 500 Utilities Index (1.62) 14.82 1.55 5.89 4.66(d)
S&P 500 Index 12.59 8.54 2.01 4.12 2.05
Lipper Utility Fund Average 1.64 8.45 1.80 7.37 4.74

(a) Returns represent past performance and do not guarantee future results. Investment returns and the principal value of an investment will fluctuate.
When shares are sold, they may be worth more or less than their original cost. Performance returns for periods of less than one year are not
annualized. Current performance may be lower or higher than the performance data presented. Visit www.gabelli.com for performance information as
of the most recent month end. Investors should carefully consider the investment objectives, risks, charges, and expenses of the Fund before
investing. The S&P 500 Utilities Index is an unmanaged market capitalization weighted index of large capitalization stocks that may include facilities
generation and transmission or distribution of electricity, gas, or water. The S&P 500 Index is an unmanaged indicator of stock market performance.
The Lipper Utility Fund Average reflects the average performance of open-end mutual funds classified in this particular category. Dividends are
considered reinvested. You cannot invest directly in an index.

(b) Total returns and average annual returns reflect changes in the NAV per share, reinvestment of distributions at NAV on the ex-dividend date, and
adjustments for rights offerings and are net of expenses. Since inception return is based on an initial NAV of $7.50.

(c) Total returns and average annual returns reflect changes in closing market values on the NYSE, reinvestment of distributions, and adjustments for
rights offerings. Since inception return is based on an initial offering price of $7.50.

(d) From June 30, 1999, the date closest to the Fund s inception for which data is available.
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The Gabelli Utility Trust

Schedule of Investments

Shares

4,500
11,000
8,100

23,000
72,000
17,000
75,000
355
10,000
50,000
26,000
27,000
114,000
29,000
23,000
122,000
80,000
171,000
1,000
3,000
101,000
187,000
52,000
89,000
63,000
95,000
48,000
105,000
35,000
99,000
25,000
48,000
100,000
90,000
38,000
59,000
104,000
25,000
133,000
16,500
47,000
244,000
180,000
179,000

COMMON STOCKS 97.1%

ENERGY AND UTILITIES 84.1%

Energy and Utilities: Alternative Energy 0.1%
Ormat Industries Ltd.

Ormat Technologies Inc.

Renegy Holdings Inc.

Energy and Utilities: Electric Integrated 44.8%
ALLETE Inc.

Alliant Energy Corp.

Ameren Corp.

American Electric Power Co. Inc.
Atlantic Power Corp.

Avista Corp.

Black Hills Corp.

Central Vermont Public Service Corp.
Cleco Corp.

CMS Energy Corp.

Dominion Resources Inc.

DTE Energy Co.

Duke Energy Corp.

Edison International

El Paso Electric Co.

Emera Inc.

Entergy Corp.

FirstEnergy Corp.

Great Plains Energy Inc.
Hawaiian Electric Industries Inc.
Integrys Energy Group Inc.
MGE Energy Inc.

NextEra Energy Inc.

NiSource Inc.

NorthWestern Corp.

NV Energy Inc.

OGE Energy Corp.

Otter Tail Corp.

PG&E Corp.

PNM Resources Inc.

Progress Energy Inc.

Public Service Enterprise Group Inc.
SCANA Corp.

TECO Energy Inc.

The Empire District Electric Co.
UniSource Energy Corp.

Unitil Corp.

Vectren Corp.

Westar Energy Inc.

Wisconsin Energy Corp.

Xcel Energy Inc.

March 31, 2012 (Unaudited)

Market
Value

$ 23,293
221,650
648

245,591

954,270
3,119,040
553,860
2,893,500
4911
255,800
1,676,500
915,200
1,070,550
2,508,000
1,485,090
1,265,690
2,563,220
3,400,800
5,555,790
33,997
201,600
4,604,590
3,790,490
1,318,200
4,716,110
2,796,570
5,802,600
1,168,800
3,723,300
564,200
5,296,500
542,500
2,083,680
1,830,000
4,779,900
1,163,180
2,690,990
1,825,200
508,750
4,863,810
442,695
1,365,820
6,814,920
6,332,400
4,738,130

102,221,153



Shares

243
50,000
55,000

102,300
117,000
180,000
22,500
36,666

15,000
8,000
38,000
33,000
300,000
290,000
8,000
8,000
3,000
38,000
10,000
2,000
8,000
8,000
8,000
14,500

23,000
23,048
300,000
300,000

330,000
1,000
127,000
99,000

93,056
28,000
20,000
11,000
22,418
30,000
11,445
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Energy and Utilities: Electric Transmission
and Distribution 11.1%

Brookfield Infrastructure Partners LP

CH Energy Group Inc.

Consolidated Edison Inc.

Exelon Corp.

Northeast Utilities

NSTAR

Pepco Holdings Inc.

UIL Holdings Corp.

Energy and Utilities: Global Utilities 2.3%
Areva SA

Chubu Electric Power Co. Inc.

Electric Power Development Co. Ltd.
Endesa SA

Enel SpA

Hera SpA

Hokkaido Electric Power Co. Inc.
Hokuriku Electric Power Co.

Huaneng Power International Inc., ADR
Korea Electric Power Corp., ADR
Kyushu Electric Power Co. Inc.

Niko Resources Ltd.

Shikoku Electric Power Co. Inc.

The Chugoku Electric Power Co. Inc.
The Kansai Electric Power Co. Inc.
Tohoku Electric Power Co. Inc.

Energy and Utilities: Merchant Energy 1.7%
Dynegy Inc.

GenOn Energy Inc.

GenOn Energy Inc., Escrow (a)

The AES Corp.

Energy and Utilities: Natural Gas Integrated 10.5%
El Paso Corp.

Energen Corp.

National Fuel Gas Co.

ONEOK Inc.

Energy and Utilities: Natural Gas Utilities 7.9%
AGL Resources Inc.

Atmos Energy Corp.

Chesapeake Utilities Corp.

CONSOL Energy Inc.

Corning Natural Gas Corp.

Delta Natural Gas Co. Inc.

GDF Suez

See accompanying notes to schedule of investments.

$

Market
Value

7,679
3,336,500
3,213,100
4,011,183
4,343,040
8,753,400

425,025
1,274,510

25,364,437

330,893
144,400
1,030,228
657,544
1,085,104
413,849
117,434
144,593
65,760
369,740
142,443
70,359
225,492
148,556
123,910
165,374

5,235,679

12,880
47,940

0
3,921,000

3,981,820

9,751,500

49,150
6,111,240
8,084,340

23,996,230

3,649,656
880,880
822,400
375,100
381,097

1,140,000
295,669
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The Gabelli Utility Trust

Schedule of Investments (Continued) March 31, 2012 (Unaudited)

Shares
COMMON STOCKS (Continued)
ENERGY AND UTILITIES (Continued)
Energy and Utilities: Natural Gas Utilities (Continued)
11,445 GDF Suez
35,000 Piedmont Natural Gas Co. Inc.
12,000 RGC Resources Inc.
131,000 Southwest Gas Corp.
112,000 Spectra Energy Corp.
Energy and Utilities: Natural Resources 1.2%
4,000 Anadarko Petroleum Corp.
32,000 Compania de Minas Buenaventura SA, ADR
10,000 Exxon Mobil Corp.
4,000 Peabody Energy Corp.
4,000 Royal Dutch Shell plc, Cl. A, ADR
Energy and Utilities: Services 0.3%
25,000 ABB Ltd., ADR
2,400 Tenaris SA, ADR
Energy and Utilities: Water 2.8%
13,500 American States Water Co.
27,000 American Water Works Co. Inc.
21,833 Aqua America Inc.
24,000 Artesian Resources Corp., Cl. A
40,000 California Water Service Group
7,500 Connecticut Water Service Inc.
50,000 Middlesex Water Co.
80,000 SJW Corp.
9,000 The York Water Co.
Diversified Industrial 1.1%
1,200 Alstom SA
6,000 Cooper Industries plc
100,000 General Electric Co.

Environmental Services 0.0%
3,000 Suez Environnement Co. SA

Market
Value

$ 15
1,087,450
220,800
5,598,940
3,533,600

17,985,607

313,360
1,289,920
867,300
115,840
280,520

2,866,940

510,250
91,752

602,002

487,890
918,810
486,658
450,960
728,400
212,175
944,500
1,929,600
155,700

6,314,693

46,829

383,700
2,007,000

2,437,529

46,013



50,000
1,400

40,000

Shares

17,000
1,000
72,000
5,000
20,000
30,000
59,000
10,000
21,000
20,000
8,000
8,000

245,000
1,000

40,000
2,000
3,800
11,000
200,000
43,000
2,000
200
500
18,500
11,800
11,800
16,000
2,000
500
1,200
30,000
40,000
110,000

75,000

1,200
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Equipment and Supplies 0.0%
Capstone Turbine Corp.
Mueller Industries Inc.

Independent Power Producers and Energy
Traders 0.3%
NRG Energy Inc.

TOTAL ENERGY AND UTILITIES

COMMUNICATIONS 11.1%
Cable and Satellite 4.3%

AMC Networks Inc., Cl. A

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc
Cablevision Systems Corp., Cl. A
Cogeco Cable Inc.

Cogeco Inc.

DIRECTV, Cl. A

DISH Network Corp., Cl. A
EchoStar Corp., Cl. A

Liberty Global Inc., Cl. A

Liberty Global Inc., Cl. C

Rogers Communications Inc., Cl. B
Time Warner Cable Inc.

Communications Equipment 0.3%
Furukawa Electric Co. Ltd.
QUALCOMM Inc.

Telecommunications 4.2%

AT&T Inc.

Belgacom SA

Bell Aliant Inc.(b)

BT Group plc, ADR

Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Deutsche Telekom AG, ADR

France Telecom SA, ADR

Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings Ltd.
Mobistar SA

Nippon Telegraph & Telephone Corp.
Orascom Telecom Holding SAE, GDR (c)
Orascom Telecom Media and Technology Holding SAE, GDR (a)(b)
Portugal Telecom SGPS SA

PT Indosat Tbk

Sistema JSFC, GDR(c)

Tele2 AB, Cl. B

Telekom Austria AG

Touch America Holdings Inc. (a)

Verizon Communications Inc.

VimpelCom Ltd., ADR

Wireless Communications 2.3%
America Movil SAB de CV, Cl. L, ADR

51,000
63,630

114,630

626,800

192,039,124

Market
Value

$ 758,710
10,813
1,056,960
262,369
1,087,573
1,480,200
1,942,870
281,400
1,051,680
957,800
317,600
652,000

9,859,975

651,202
68,020

719,222

1,249,200
64,298
104,005
397,760
804,000
518,150
29,700

85

24,907
839,284
37,972
14,160
87,043
1,105
9,845
24,487
349,378
0
4,205,300
837,000

9,597,679

29,796
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2,000 China Mobile Ltd., ADR 110,160
2,000 China Unicom Hong Kong Ltd., ADR 33,600
171 M1 Ltd. 346
13,000 Millicom International Cellular SA, SDR 1,473,745
11,250 Mobile TeleSystems OJSC, ADR 206,325

See accompanying notes to schedule of investments.
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The Gabelli Utility Trust

Schedule of Investments (Continued) March 31, 2012 (Unaudited)

Shares

1,154
5,000
1,000
600
400
24,000
29,000

100,000

3,000

85,000

26

3,000

4,500

30,000

COMMUON STOCKS (Continued)
COMMUNICATIONS (Continued)
Wireless Communications (Continued)

Mobile Telesystems OJSC, Russian Trading System Stock Exchange

NII Holdings Inc.

NTT DoCoMo Inc.

SK Telecom Co. Ltd., ADR

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Ltd.
Turkcell Iletisim Hizmetleri A/S, ADR
United States Cellular Corp.

TOTAL COMMUNICATIONS

OTHER 1.9%
Aerospace 0.6%
Rolls-Royce Holdings plc

Agriculture 0.0%
Cadiz Inc.

Entertainment 0.7 %
Vivendi SA

Financial Services 0.0%
Leucadia National Corp.

Investment Companies 0.0%
Kinnevik Investment AB, Cl. B

Real Estate 0.1%
Brookfield Asset Management Inc., Cl. A

Transportation 0.5%
GATX Corp.

TOTAL OTHER

TOTAL COMMON STOCKS

WARRANTS 0.0%
COMMUNICATIONS 0.0%
Wireless Communications  0.0%

Market
Value

$ 9,451
91,550
1,660,022
8,346

821

302,400
1,186,970

5,113,532

25,290,408

1,298,784

27,600

1,559,903

687

69,787

142,065

1,209,000

4,307,826

221,637,358

11



16,000

Principal
Amount

$ 100,000

Principal

Amount

$ 6,347,000

Notional
Amount

$ 329,372

(25,000 Shares)
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Bharti Airtel Ltd., expire 09/19/13 (b)

CONVERTIBLE CORPORATE BONDS 0.1%
ENERGY AND UTILITIES 0.1%
Environmental Services 0.1%

Covanta Holding Corp., Cv. 3.250%, 06/01/14

U.S. GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 2.8%

U.S. Treasury Bills,

0.025% to 0.135%

05/17/12 to 08/23/12(d) $

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 100.0%

(Cost $169,933,388) $
Aggregate tax cost $
Gross unrealized appreciation $

Gross unrealized depreciation

Net unrealized appreciation/depreciation $

Termination

Date
EQUITY CONTRACT FOR DIFFERENCE SWAP AGREEMENTS

Rolls-Royce Holdings plc(e) 06/27/12

106,266

115,375

Market

Value

6,345,164

228,204,163

171,163,752

65,369,865
(8,329,454)

57,040,411

Unrealized
Depreciation

$ (4,790)

(a) Security fair valued under procedures established by the Board of Trustees. The procedures may include reviewing available financial information about the
company and reviewing the valuation of comparable securities and other factors on a regular basis. At March 31, 2012, the market value of fair valued
securities amounted to $14,160 or 0.01% of total investments.

(b) Security exempt from registration under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. These securities may be resold in transactions exempt from
registration, normally to qualified institutional buyers. At March 31, 2012, the market value of Rule 144 A securities amounted to $224,431 or 0.10% of total

investments.

(c) Security purchased pursuant to Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933, which exempts from registration securities offered and sold outside of the
United States. Such securities cannot be sold in the United States without either an effective registration statement filed pursuant to the Securities Act of
1933, or pursuant to an exemption from registration. At March 31, 2012, the market value of Regulation S securities amounted to $47,817 or 0.02% of total
investments, which were valued under methods approved by the Board of Trustees as follows:

Acquisition
Shares
11,800

500

Acquisition Acquisition
Issuer Date Cost
Orascom Telecom
Holding SAE, GDR 07/27/09 $ 53,385
Sistema JSFC,
GDR 10/10/07 17,384

(d) AtMarch 31, 2012, $445,000 of the principal amount was pledged as collateral for equity contract for difference swap agreements.

03/31/12
Carrying
Value
Per Unit
$ 3.2180

19.6900

12
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(e) AtMarch 31, 2012, the Fund had entered into an equity contract for difference swap agreement with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

See accompanying notes to schedule of investments.

13
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The Gabelli Utility Trust

Schedule of Investments (Continued) March 31, 2012 (Unaudited)

ADR
GDR
JSFC

Non-income producing security.

Represents annualized yield at date of purchase.
American Depositary Receipt

Global Depositary Receipt

Joint Stock Financial Corporation

OJSC Open Joint Stock Company
SDR  Swedish Depositary Receipt
% of

Market Market
Geographic Diversification Value Value
North America 91.9% $209,679,962
Europe 4.9 11,161,773
Japan 2.4 5,392,938
Latin America 0.6 1,327,395
Asia/Pacific 0.2 589,962
Africa/Middle East 0.0 52,133
Total Investments 100.0% $ 228,204,163

See accompanying notes to schedule of investments.

14
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The Gabelli Utility Trust

Notes to Schedule of Investments (Unaudited)

The Fund s schedule of investments is prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ( GAAP ), which may require
the use of management estimates and assumptions. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The following is a summary of significant
accounting policies followed by the Fund in the preparation of its schedule of investments.

Security Valuation. Portfolio securities listed or traded on a nationally recognized securities exchange or traded in the U.S. over-the-counter
market for which market quotations are readily available are valued at the last quoted sale price or a market s official closing price as of the close
of business on the day the securities are being valued. If there were no sales that day, the security is valued at the average of the closing bid and
asked prices or, if there were no asked prices quoted on that day, then the security is valued at the closing bid price on that day. If no bid or
asked prices are quoted on such day, the security is valued at the most recently available price or, if the Board of Trustees (the Board ) so
determines, by such other method as the Board shall determine in good faith to reflect its fair market value. Portfolio securities traded on more
than one national securities exchange or market are valued according to the broadest and most representative market, as determined by Gabelli
Funds, LLC (the Adviser ).

Portfolio securities primarily traded on a foreign market are generally valued at the preceding closing values of such securities on the relevant
market, but may be fair valued pursuant to procedures established by the Board if market conditions change significantly after the close of the
foreign market, but prior to the close of business on the day the securities are being valued. Debt instruments with remaining maturities of sixty
days or less that are not credit impaired are valued at amortized cost, unless the Board determines such amount does not reflect the securities fair
value, in which case these securities will be fair valued as determined by the Board. Debt instruments having a maturity greater than sixty days
for which market quotations are readily available are valued at the average of the latest bid and asked prices. If there were no asked prices
quoted on such day, the security is valued using the closing bid price. U.S. government obligations with maturities greater than sixty days are
normally valued using a model that incorporates market observable data such as reported sales of similar securities, broker quotes, yields, bids,
offers, and reference data. Certain securities are valued principally using dealer quotations.

Securities and assets for which market quotations are not readily available are fair valued as determined by the Board. Fair valuation
methodologies and procedures may include, but are not limited to: analysis and review of available financial and nonfinancial information about
the company; comparisons with the valuation and changes in valuation of similar securities, including a comparison of foreign securities with
the equivalent U.S. dollar value ADR securities at the close of the U.S. exchange; and evaluation of any other information that could be
indicative of the value of the security.

The inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value of the Fund s investments are summarized into three levels as described in the
hierarchy below:

Level 1 quoted prices in active markets for identical securities;

Level 2  other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit
risk, etc.); and

Level 3  significant unobservable inputs (including the Fund s determinations as to the fair value of investments).

15
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The Gabelli Utility Trust

Notes to Schedule of Investments (Unaudited) (Continued)

A financial instrument s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input both individually and in the aggregate that
is significant to the fair value measurement. The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk
associated with investing in those securities. The summary of the Fund s investments in securities and other financial instruments by inputs used
to value the Fund s investments as of March 31, 2012 is as follows:

Valuation Inputs

Level 1 Level 2 Other Significant Level 3 Significant Total Market Value

Quoted Prices Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs at 3/31/12
INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES:
ASSETS (Market Value):
Common Stocks:
ENERGY AND UTILITIES
Energy and Utilities: Alternative Energy $ 244,943 $ 648 $ 245,591
Energy and Utilities: Merchant Energy 3,981,820 0 3,981,820
Other Industries (a) 187,811,713 187,811,713
COMMUNICATIONS
Telecommunications 9,583,519 $ 14,160 0 9,597,679
Other Industries (a) 15,692,729 15,692,729
OTHER
Other Industries (a) 4,307,826 4,307,826
Total Common Stocks 221,622,550 14,160 648 221,637,358
Warrants (a) 106,266 106,266
Convertible Corporate Bonds (a) 115,375 115,375
U.S. Government Obligations 6,345,164 6,345,164
TOTAL INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
ASSETS $ 221,622,550 $ 6,580,965 $ 648 $ 228,204,163
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
LIABILITIES (Unrealized Depreciation):*
EQUITY CONTRACT:
Contract for Difference Swap Agreement $ $ (4,790) $ $ (4,790)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS $ $ (4,790) $ $ (4,790)

(a) Please refer to the Schedule of Investments ( SOI ) for the industry classifications of these portfolio holdings.

*  Other financial instruments are derivatives reflected in the SOI, such as futures, forwards, and swaps, which are valued at the unrealized
appreciation/depreciation of the instrument.

The Fund did not have material transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period ended March 31, 2012. The Fund s policy is to recognize

transfers among Levels as of the beginning of the reporting period.

Additional Information to Evaluate Quantitative Information.

General. The Fund uses recognized industry pricing services approved by the Board and unaffiliated with the Adviser to value most of its
securities, and uses broker quotes provided by market makers of securities not valued by these and other recognized pricing sources. Several
different pricing feeds are received to value domestic equity securities, international equity securities, preferred equity securities, and fixed
income securities. The data within these feeds is ultimately sourced from major stock exchanges and trading systems where these securities
trade. The prices supplied by external sources are checked by obtaining quotations or actual transaction prices from market participants. If a
price obtained from the pricing source is deemed unreliable, prices will be sought from another pricing service or from a broker/dealer that
trades that security or similar securities.

16



Edgar Filing: GABELLI UTILITY TRUST - Form N-Q

7

17



Edgar Filing: GABELLI UTILITY TRUST - Form N-Q

The Gabelli Utility Trust

Notes to Schedule of Investments (Unaudited) (Continued)

Fair Valuation. Fair valued securities may be common and preferred equities, warrants, options, rights, and fixed income obligations.
Where appropriate, Level 3 securities are those for which market quotations are not available, such as securities not traded for several days, or
for which current bids are not available, or which are restricted as to transfer. Among the factors to be considered to fair value a security are
recent prices of comparable securities that are publicly traded, reliable prices of securities not publicly traded, the use of valuation models,
current analyst reports, valuing the income or cash flow of the issuer, or cost if the preceding factors do not apply. The circumstances of Level 3
securities are frequently monitored to determine if fair valuation measures continue to apply.

The Adviser reports quarterly to the Board the results of the application of fair valuation policies and procedures. These include back testing the
prices realized in subsequent trades of these fair valued securities to fair values previously recognized.

Foreign Currency Translations. The books and records of the Fund are maintained in U.S. dollars. Foreign currencies, investments, and other
assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates. Purchases and sales of investment securities, income, and expenses
are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the respective dates of such transactions. Unrealized gains and losses that result from changes in
foreign exchange rates and/or changes in market prices of securities have been included in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments
and foreign currency translations. Net realized foreign currency gains and losses resulting from changes in exchange rates include foreign
currency gains and losses between trade date and settlement date on investment securities transactions, foreign currency transactions, and the
difference between the amounts of interest and dividends recorded on the books of the Fund and the amounts actually received. The portion of
foreign currency gains and losses related to fluctuation in exchange rates between the initial purchase trade date and subsequent sale trade date is
included in realized gain/(loss) on investments.

Foreign Securities. The Fund may directly purchase securities of foreign issuers. Investing in securities of foreign issuers involves special risks
not typically associated with investing in securities of U.S. issuers. The risks include possible revaluation of currencies, the inability to repatriate
funds, less complete financial information about companies, and possible future adverse political and economic developments. Moreover,
securities of many foreign issuers and their markets may be less liquid and their prices more volatile than securities of comparable U.S. issuers.

Foreign Taxes. The Fund may be subject to foreign taxes on income, gains on investments, or currency repatriation, a portion of which may be
recoverable. The Fund will accrue such taxes and recoveries as applicable, based upon its current interpretation of tax rules and regulations that
exist in the markets in which it invests.

Derivative Financial Instruments. The Fund may engage in various portfolio investment strategies by investing in a number of derivative
financial instruments for the purposes of hedging or protecting its exposure to interest rate movements and movements in the securities markets,
hedging against changes in the value of its portfolio securities and in the value of securities it intends to purchase, or hedging against a specific
transaction with respect to either the currency in which the transaction is denominated or another currency. Investing in certain derivative
financial instruments, including participation in the options, futures, or swap markets, entails certain execution, liquidity, hedging, tax, and
securities, interest, credit, or currency market risks. Losses may arise if the Adviser s prediction of movements in the direction of the securities,
foreign currency, and interest rate markets is inaccurate. Losses may also arise if the counterparty does not perform its duties under a contract, or
that,
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The Gabelli Utility Trust

Notes to Schedule of Investments (Unaudited) (Continued)

in the event of default, the Fund may be delayed in or prevented from obtaining payments or other contractual remedies owed to it under
derivative contracts. The creditworthiness of the counterparties is closely monitored in order to minimize these risks. Participation in derivative
transactions involves investment risks, transaction costs, and potential losses to which the Fund would not be subject absent the use of these
strategies. The consequences of these risks, transaction costs, and losses may have a negative impact on the Fund s ability to pay distributions.

The Fund s derivative contracts held at March 31, 2012, if any, are not accounted for as hedging instruments under GAAP and are disclosed in
the Schedule of Investments together with the related counterparty.

Swap Agreements. The Fund may enter into equity contract for difference and interest rate swap or cap transactions for the purpose of
hedging or protecting its exposure to interest rate movements and movements in the securities markets. The use of swaps is a highly specialized
activity that involves investment techniques and risks different from those associated with ordinary portfolio security transactions. In an interest
rate swap, the Fund would agree to pay periodically to the other counterparty a fixed rate payment in exchange for the counterparty agreeing to
pay to the Fund periodically a variable rate payment that is intended to approximate the Fund s variable rate payment obligation on the Series B
Auction Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock ( Series B Stock ). In an interest rate cap, the Fund would pay a premium to the counterparty and, to the
extent that a specified variable rate index exceeds a predetermined fixed rate, would receive from that counterparty payments of the difference
based on the notional amount of such cap. Swaps and cap transactions introduce additional risk because the Fund would remain obligated to pay
preferred stock dividends when due in accordance with the Statement of Preferences even if the counterparty defaulted. In an equity contract for
difference swap, a set of future cash flows is exchanged between two counterparties. One of these cash flow streams will typically be based on a
reference interest rate combined with the performance of a notional value of shares of a stock. The other will be based on the performance of the
shares of a stock. Depending on the general state of short-term interest rates and the returns on the Fund s portfolio securities at the time an
equity contract for difference swap transaction reaches its scheduled termination date, there is a risk that the Fund will not be able to obtain a
replacement transaction or that the terms of the replacement will not be as favorable as on the expiring transaction.

At March 31, 2012, the Fund held no investments in interest rate swap agreements.

The Fund has entered into an equity contract for difference swap agreement with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Details of the swap at
March 31, 2012 are reflected within the Schedule of Investments and further details are as follows:

Equity Interest Rate/
Notional Security Equity Security Termination Net Unrealized
Amount Received Paid Date Depreciation
Market Value
One month LIBOR plus 90 bps plus
Appreciation on: Market Value Depreciation on:
$329,372 (25,000 Shares) Rolls-Royce Holdings plc Rolls-Royce Holdings plc 6/27/12 $ (4,790)
9

19



Edgar Filing: GABELLI UTILITY TRUST - Form N-Q

The Gabelli Utility Trust

Notes to Schedule of Investments (Unaudited) (Continued)

Tax Information. The Fund intends to continue to qualify as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended.

Under the Regulated Investment Company Modernization Act of 2010, the Fund will be permitted to carry forward for an unlimited period
capital losses incurred in years beginning after December 22, 2010. As a result of the rule, post-enactment capital losses that are carried forward
will retain their character as either short-term or long-term capital losses rather than being considered all short-term as under previous law.

We have separated the portfolio manager s commentary from the financial statements and investment portfolio due to corporate governance
regulations stipulated by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. We have done this to ensure that the content of the portfolio manager s commentary is
unrestricted. The financial statements and investment portfolio are mailed separately from the commentary. Both the commentary and the
financial statements, including the portfolio of investments, will be available on our website at www.gabelli.com.

10
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Preferred
NYSE Symbol: GUT GUT PrA
Shares Outstanding: 31,927,472 1,153,288

The Net Asset Value per share appears in the Publicly Traded Funds column, under the heading Specialized Equity Funds, in Monday s The Wall
Street Journal. It is also listed in Barron s Mutual Funds/Closed End Funds section under the heading Specialized Equity Funds.

The Net Asset Value per share may be obtained each day by calling (914) 921-5070 or visiting www.gabelli.com.

The NASDAQ symbol for the Net Asset Valueis XGUTX.

For general information about the Gabelli Funds, call 800-GABELLI (800-422-3554), fax us at 914-921-5118, visit Gabelli Funds Internet
homepage at: www.gabelli.com, or e-mail us at: closedend @ gabelli.com

Notice is hereby given in accordance with Section 23(c) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, that the Fund may, from time to
time, purchase its common shares in the open market when the Fund s shares are trading at a discount of 10% or more from the net asset value of
the shares. The Fund may also, from time to time, purchase its preferred shares in the open market when the preferred shares are trading at a
discount to the liquidation value.
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Item 2. Controls and Procedures.

(a) The registrant s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, have concluded that
the registrant s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 30a-3(c) under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended (the 1940 Act ) (17 CFR 270.30a-3(c))) are effective, as of a date within 90 days of the filing date of the report that
includes the disclosure required by this paragraph, based on their evaluation of these controls and procedures required by Rule
30a-3(b) under the 1940 Act (17 CFR 270.30a-3(b)) and Rules 13a-15(b) or 15d-15(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (17 CFR 240.13a-15(b) or 240.15d-15(b)).

(b) There were no changes in the registrant s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 30a-3(d) under the 1940 Act (17
CFR 270.30a-3(d)) that occurred during the registrant s last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant s internal control over financial reporting.
Item 3. Exhibits.

Certifications pursuant to Rule 30a-2(a) under the 1940 Act and Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are attached hereto.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Investment Company Act of 1940, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

(Registrant) The Gabelli Utility Trust

By (Signature and Title)* /s/ Bruce N. Alpert
Bruce N. Alpert, Principal Executive Officer
Date 5/30/12

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Investment Company Act of 1940, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By (Signature and Title)* /s/ Bruce N. Alpert
Bruce N. Alpert, Principal Executive Officer
Date 5/30/12
By (Signature and Title)* /s/ Agnes Mullady
Agnes Mullady, Principal Financial Officer and Treasurer
Date 5/30/12

* Print the name and title of each signing officer under his or her signature.
may be required to protect our intellectual property rights from the unauthorized use by others or may have these
rights challenged, invalidated or circumvented.

Approach to Privacy

Our approach to privacy is critical to our ability to gain customer acceptance of our services, while also enabling us to monetize certain of the
data that is collected. Our customers, and in particular the consumers and automakers, are sensitive to certain types of information that the
system will be able to access. We have retained outside privacy experts to ensure that privacy policies provide our consumers and strategic
relationships with the highest level of confidence that customer privacy is maintained, while also permitting the customer, we and our strategic
partners to monetize the value of such a data stream. As part of the subscription process, we require consumers to provide us and our automakers
with broad rights to data, other than customer personally identifiable information ( CPII ), in order to subscribe. The processes are designed to
ensure that sensitive information such as any CPII is highly secure, separate and cannot be associated with the vehicle data that is collected,
unless a specific and separate authorization has been given by the consumer. Similarly, many types of quality and safety information relating to
vehicles, to which automakers are acutely sensitive, is similarly accorded the highest level of security, and we expect to be a conduit for
providing such data to automakers, rather than collecting it directly, unless otherwise requested specifically by the automaker.

Relationship with Hughes Network Systems

In July 2006, HNS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hughes Communications, Inc. ( HCI ), which is controlled by investment funds that are
affiliates of Apollo, granted us a limited license allowing us to use the HUGHES trademark. The license is limited in that we may use the
HUGHES trademark only in connection with our business of automotive telematics and only in combination with the Telematics name. As
partial consideration for the license, the agreement provides that HNS will be our preferred engineering services provider. The license is
royalty-free, except that we have agreed to commence paying a royalty to HNS in the event we no longer have a commercial or affiliated
relationship with HNS. As contemplated by the license terms and while the definitive agreement governing the relationship was being
negotiated, HNS provided engineering development services to us pursuant to an Authorization to Proceed. In January 2008, we executed a
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definitive agreement with HNS pursuant to which HNS is continuing to provide us with engineering development and manufacturing services.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, HNS provided approximately $20.3 million and $30.9
million of services, respectively, to us. As of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we had an outstanding balance, not including the
equipment financing discussed below, of approximately $8.5 million and $8.9 million, respectively, payable to HNS.

33
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In June 2008, we entered into an arrangement with HNS pursuant to which HNS purchased, on our behalf, certain production equipment for an
aggregate amount of approximately $2.0 million. Under this arrangement, we agreed to pay HNS at a rate of $4.94 per telematics hardware
device manufactured using the equipment, provided that (i) we were to pay HNS a minimum of $0.2 million under this arrangement by
December 31, 2009 and (ii) we were to pay HNS the balance of the amount owed under this arrangement plus all accrued interest by
December 31, 2010. Interest accrued on the outstanding balance at a rate of 11.00% per annum. As of September 30, 2009, we had an
outstanding balance related to the equipment financing of approximately $2.3 million.

In December 2009, we issued to HNS a senior unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of approximately $8.3 million through the
conversion of a trade accounts payable balance of approximately $6.0 million and the approximately $2.3 million outstanding balance on the
equipment financing arrangement owed to HNS. The promissory note will accrue interest at a rate of 12.00% per annum, compounded annually,
and become due and payable on December 31, 2010. We are required to make scheduled principal payments of approximately $0.8 million on
April 15,2010 and $1.5 million on each of July 15, 2010 and October 15, 2010. In addition, subject to all restrictions in the First Lien Credit
Agreement and Second Lien Credit Agreement and certain other limitations, to the extent we sell any capital equipment purchased by us (or
purchased by HNS on our behalf) for use in connection with the Telematics Agreement between the parties, but no longer needed by us, we shall
make unscheduled prepayments of principal on the promissory note equal to the proceeds from the sale of such capital equipment (net of any
selling costs).

Three members of our board of directors, Jeffrey A. Leddy, Andrew D. Africk and Aaron J. Stone, are members of the board of managers of
HNS and the board of directors of HCI.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we had a total of 276 employees. We believe relations with employees are good, and no employees are represented by
a union. Generally, our employees are retained on an at-will basis; however, we have entered into employment agreements with certain key
employees. As the launch of our services to our automaker customers approaches, we expect to continue to increase our employee headcount.

Property

The following table sets forth each of our principal properties, all of which are leased:

Location Use Square Feet Lease Expiration

2002 Summit Boulevard, Atlanta, Georgia 30319 Headquarters 51,854 January 31, 2016

6363 Greenwich Drive, San Diego, California 92122 Offices 19,484  March 31, 2015
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On May 7, 2009, Networkfleet was served with a complaint in a patent infringement case titled Innovative Global Systems LLC vs. Turnpike
Global Technologies L.L.C. et al. that was filed in the Eastern District of Texas. The case seeks damages from Networkfleet and five other
defendants for allegedly infringing on five patents held by the plaintiffs. Networkfleet intends to vigorously defend itself in this action. Although
it intends to vigorously contest the case, we are unable to predict the outcome, or reasonably estimate a range of possible losses, if any, given the
current status of the case.

Additionally, from time to time, we are subject to litigation in the normal course of business. We are of the opinion that, based on information
presently available, the resolution of any such legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations
or its cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our combined historical financial statements and the related notes included

elsewhere in this prospectus. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that are subject to known and unknown risks and

uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ significantly from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements

due to a number of factors, including those included in the section entitled Risk Factors and elsewhere in this prospectus. Unless the context

indicates otherwise, in this section the terms we, us and our refer to HUGHES Telematics, Inc. See the section entitled
Forward-Looking Statements.

Overview

We are a telematics services company that provides a suite of real-time voice and data communications services and applications. These services
and applications are enabled through a state-of-the-art communications center designed with flexibility to connect various mobile devices with
content, services and call centers. Within the automotive industry, our communications center allows for two way voice and data
communications to vehicles and supports, among other things, critical safety and security services as well as location-based services and remote
diagnostics. Since November 16, 2009, we have been the exclusive telematics service provider in the United States for all new vehicles sold by
Mercedes-Benz, as well as the preferred provider of telematics services for all Mercedes-Benz vehicles purchased prior to November 16, 2008.
These services are marketed under the mbrace™ brand. In addition, our in-Drive™ product offers services to consumers or other third parties
through a hardware component that we have developed and which we intend to distribute through relationships with companies and
organizations with large customer or membership bases for installation in existing vehicles.

Through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Networkfleet, we currently offer remote vehicle monitoring and other data services with sales generated
through a combination of distribution arrangements with large fleet management service providers, a network of resellers and direct sales.

Unlike our service offerings enabled through factory-installed hardware, Networkfleet s service offerings are enabled by an aftermarket hardware
device that is sold by Networkfleet to be installed on existing vehicles. Owners and operators of a fleet of vehicles use these services to monitor
driver performance for unauthorized or unsafe vehicle usage, as well as analyze data such as the current location of a vehicle, fuel consumption,
mileage, emissions status and diagnostic trouble codes. From our inception through the nine months ended September 30, 2009, all of our
consolidated revenues were earned through the sale of Networkfleet s products and services. For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and
2008, Networkfleet generated revenues of approximately $24.6 million and $21.0 million, respectively.

Although Networkfleet has been our primary source of revenue to date, we expect to derive our revenue increasingly from the telematics
services provided to Mercedes-Benz vehicles, vehicles manufactured by automakers to which we are currently marketing our services and
vehicles which have our in-Drive™ aftermarket hardware device installed. We expect a significant portion of our future revenues to be
generated from subscriptions for consumer service offerings, as well as from transaction or pre-paid package fees, automaker and dealer service
offerings and from strategic relationships with third parties who are expected to develop applications for our services and product offerings.
Customer churn will be an important metric that we will monitor and seek to minimize as we begin delivering our consumer service offerings.
We anticipate periodically reporting customer churn as our operations mature.

While recent negative trends in automobile sales in the United States market are negatively impacting the financial results of automotive
manufacturers, management does not believe that the current trends will have a significant long-term negative impact on our business. Our
agreement with Mercedes-Benz requires the automaker to equip virtually all of its vehicles produced for sale in the United States market with a
device that enables our service offerings. Accordingly, while the recent declines in production are significant and will impact the size of the
potential customer base for services to factory-installed devices, we believe that if such current
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trends are consistent with the cyclical historical nature of the automotive industry, then the trends may be expected to abate and reverse over the
next several years. In any case, the contracting demand for new vehicles in the United States market creates increased competition among
automakers and provides additional incentive for them to offer products and services that help differentiate their vehicles. We believe that in
trying to differentiate their vehicles, automakers will expedite the adoption rates for telematics services like those that we offer. While such
adoption rates are currently subject to uncertainty, we are working with Mercedes-Benz and other third parties to enable a community of
compelling content offerings and applications that will enhance the vehicle ownership experience. We are in discussions with numerous leading
companies in the financial services, insurance, vehicle safety and recovery, real estate, Internet search, wireless communications, satellite
broadcasting and vehicle navigation sectors to promote the availability of such content. Management believes that an increase in the range of
third-party in-vehicle content offerings will have a positive impact on the adoption rate of telematics in the automobile industry, generally, and
on our results of operations and financial condition, specifically.

Until the second quarter of 2009, we also had a contract to be the telematics service provider in the United States for Old Chrysler. On April 30,
2009, Old Chrysler filed for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of the United States bankruptcy code. On June 10, 2009, substantially all of
Old Chrysler s assets were sold to New Chrysler, a group whose members include Italian automaker Fiat SpA, the United Auto Workers union
and the United States government. At a hearing held on July 16, 2009, Old Chrysler rejected certain contracts, including our telematics services
contract with Old Chrysler, and therefore, our contract was terminated. We had been in negotiations with New Chrysler concerning a new
telematics services agreement. However, the parties reached an impasse in the negotiations, and as a result, we discontinued working with New
Chrysler to deploy our hardware and launch our services in the fourth quarter of 2009 as previously planned. In light of the termination of our
contract with Old Chrysler and the discontinuation of work towards launch with New Chrysler, we evaluated for impairment certain equipment,
capitalized software costs and other assets related to the deployment of hardware and launch of services to New Chrysler vehicles. Accordingly,
we recorded impairment charges in the three months ended September 30, 2009 totaling approximately $20.8 million to write down these assets
to their net realizable values. The impairment consisted of approximately $11.8 million of capitalized software, approximately $3.6 million of
equipment and approximately $5.4 million of other assets. Other than the payment of approximately $1.7 million, which is reflected in accounts
payable on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2009, no future cash expenditures will be required in
connection with the impairment charges. Notwithstanding the foregoing, we continue to market the underlying technology that was developed in
the effort for Old Chrysler to other interested parties.

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

On March 12, 2009, we issued and sold 5,000,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $50.0 million. Apollo
Investment Fund V (PLASE) LP ( AIF V PLASE ), an affiliate of Apollo, purchased 1,200,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock for $12.0
million of cash, and HCI, parent of HNS and an affiliate of Apollo, purchased 1,300,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock through the
conversion of $13.0 million of trade accounts payable transferred from HNS. The remaining 2,500,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were
purchased by unrelated institutional investors for $25.0 million of cash. As a result of the sale of Series B Preferred Stock, approximately $5.3
million was released to us from an escrow account held for the benefit of our senior secured note holders. This amount constituted all funds
remaining in the escrow account. For consulting and financial advisory services provided in connection with the sale of the Series B Preferred
Stock, we paid Trivergance, an affiliate of a member of our board of directors, approximately $1.3 million of cash and issued Trivergance a
warrant to purchase the equivalent of 314,117 shares of our common stock, comprised of 72,224 initial shares and 241,893 earn-out shares, at an
equivalent exercise price of $0.167 per share.

In connection with the Merger, all outstanding shares of Series B Preferred Stock were exchanged for an aggregate of 12,500,000 shares of our
common stock, comprised of 5,000,000 initial shares and 7,500,000 earn-out shares.
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Merger with Polaris Acquisition Corp.

On March 31, 2009, Old HTT and Polaris consummated the Merger. Upon closing of the Merger, the outstanding equity securities of Old HTI
were exchanged for an aggregate of 77,102,149 shares of our common stock, comprised of 19,854,018 initial shares and 57,248,131 earn-out
shares. In addition, all options exercisable for Old HTI common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Merger were exchanged
for options exercisable for an aggregate of 2,274,935 shares of our common stock, which includes 1,751,859 earn-out options. The earn-out
shares, which were issued into escrow, will be released to the Old HTI stockholders and the earn-out options will be eligible to be exercised,
according to their terms, by the optionholders, each in three tranches, upon the trading share price of our common stock reaching at least $20.00,
$24.50 and $30.50 (as may be adjusted or amended in accordance with the escrow agreement) within certain measurement periods over the
five-year period following the closing of the Merger. The Old HTI stockholders placed 5,782,661 shares of common stock, comprised of
1,489,053 initial shares and 4,293,608 earn-out shares, in escrow until June 30, 2010 to indemnify us for the payment of indemnification claims
that may be made as a result of breaches of Old HTI s covenants, representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement. Pursuant to the
Merger Agreement, the Polaris founders agreed to deposit an aggregate of 1,250,000 shares of their common stock into escrow at closing with
such shares being released upon the achievement of the first share price target between the first and fifth anniversary of closing. Upon
consummation of the Merger, the Polaris founders also transferred an aggregate of 168,000 shares of common stock to us with such shares
cancelled upon receipt.

Immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger, Old HTI extinguished its outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock through (i) the
exercise by Communications LLC of outstanding warrants to purchase Old HTI common stock using shares of Series A Preferred Stock with an
aggregate face value of $55.0 million and (ii) the exchange of shares of Series A Preferred Stock with an aggregate face value of $20.0 million
for shares of Old HTI common stock. In connection with the Merger, all outstanding shares of Series B Preferred Stock were exchanged for an
aggregate of 12,500,000 shares of our common stock, comprised of 5,000,000 initial shares and 7,500,000 earn-out shares.

In order to consummate the Merger, we agreed to purchase an aggregate of 7,439,978 shares of our common stock from a limited number of
institutional shareholders in separate and privately negotiated transactions which were executed prior to the conclusion of the special meeting in
which our shareholders voted on the Merger. In order to consummate these private purchases following the Merger, we used funds released from
the trust account and funds received from the sale of Series B Preferred Stock. In addition, stockholders holding an aggregate of 4,499,337
shares of common stock exercised their right to convert their stock into a pro rata share of the funds held in the Polaris trust account.

In addition, in connection with the Merger, pursuant to certain letter agreements dated March 12, 2009, we were obligated to issue, and certain

of Polaris financial advisors agreed to accept, an aggregate of 226,592 shares of our common stock in lieu of cash compensation to such advisors
for services rendered to us. The obligation to issue such shares in lieu of cash payments was conditioned upon consummation of the Merger and
other factors that were not determinable until the conclusion of the special meeting. On May 6, 2009, we issued such shares to the advisors.

Notwithstanding the legal form of the transaction, the Merger has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting as a reverse
acquisition, equivalent to a recapitalization, through the issuance of stock by Old HTI for the net monetary assets of Polaris. The determination
of Old HTI as the accounting acquirer was made based on consideration of all quantitative and qualitative factors of the Merger, including
significant consideration given to the fact that following consummation of the Merger (i) the stockholders of Old HTI control a majority of our
voting power, (ii) the controlling stockholder of Old HTI prior to the Merger, together with its affiliates, controls approximately 72% of our
voting power and has the right to select a majority of the members of our board of directors and (iii) the management of Old HTI continued in all
executive officer and other senior management positions and, accordingly, has day-to-day authority to carry out the business plan after
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the Merger. Accordingly, our historical financial statements prior to March 31, 2009 are the historical financial statements of Old HTI. The
consolidated financial statements of Old HTI have been retroactively restated to reflect the recapitalization of Old HTI with the 77,102,149
shares of common stock issued to Old HTI equity holders in connection with the Merger.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. These
accounting principles require management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of income and expense during the periods presented. Although these
estimates are based on management s knowledge of current events and actions we may undertake in the future, actual results may differ from
estimates. The following discussion addresses the most critical accounting policies, which are those that are most important to the portrayal of
our financial condition and results from operations, and that require judgment. The notes accompanying the consolidated financial statements
contain additional information regarding our accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition

We earn revenues through the sale of hardware and services. Hardware sales consist principally of revenues from the sale of Networkfleet s
telematics device, primarily to resellers. Shipping and handling costs for hardware shipped to resellers are classified as cost of hardware sold.
Management has determined that the sale of Networkfleet s hardware and its services constitute a revenue arrangement with multiple deliverables
in accordance with the accounting guidance governing revenue arrangements with multiple element deliverables. We account for the sale of
Networkfleet s hardware and the accompanying service as separate units of accounting. Revenue is recognized on sales of hardware when
shipped to customers and collection is considered probable. Service fees are recognized as revenue when earned. Networkfleet s customers enter
into a service contract which generally has a twelve-month initial term which automatically renews for successive one-month periods thereafter.
Networkfleet bills and recognizes service revenues on a monthly basis. Prepaid service fees are recorded as deferred revenue and are recognized
as revenue when earned.

Capitalized Software

Software development costs are capitalized in accordance with the accounting guidance governing the costs of computer software developed or
obtained for internal use. The guidance requires companies to capitalize qualifying computer software costs that are incurred during the
application development stage and amortize them over the software s estimated useful life. Costs capitalized include direct labor, outside
services, materials, software licenses and capitalized interest. For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 and the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, we capitalized approximately $10.2 million, $7.8 million, $13.3 million and $3.4 million, respectively, of
software development costs. Amortization will begin when the software is ready for its intended use and will be recognized over the expected
useful life of the software, but not to exceed five years.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and identifiable intangibles with finite useful lives are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with the guidance found in the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Recoverability of assets to
be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the future net undiscounted cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the
carrying value of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. In light of the termination of our contract with Old Chrysler and the
discontinuation of work towards
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launch of service with New Chrysler, we evaluated for impairment certain equipment, capitalized software costs and other assets related to the
deployment of hardware and launch of services to New Chrysler vehicles. Accordingly, we recorded impairment charges totaling approximately
$20.8 million to write down these assets to their net realizable values.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments include cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, letters of credit, long-term debt, the Series A
Preferred Stock and warrants issued in connection with each of the Series A Preferred Stock and the senior secured term indebtedness. The fair
value of cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and the letters of credit approximates book value due to their short-term
duration. We determined the estimated fair value of the Series A Preferred Stock, the long-term debt and the warrants by using available market
information and commonly accepted valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to
develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the fair value estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amount that we or holders of the
instruments could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material
effect on the estimated fair value.

Selected Segment Data

We classity our operations into two principal business segments: (i) the HUGHES Telematics segment, which provides and is further developing
the factory installed, end-to-end telematics solution which is being marketed to automakers and includes the Company s corporate expenses; and
(ii) the Networkfleet segment, which provides an aftermarket fleet management solution targeted to the local fleet market. Networkfleet s results
of operations are included in HUGHES Telematics consolidated results of operations following the August 1, 2006 acquisition. All of our
historical consolidated revenues have been earned through the sale of Networkfleet s products and services. The following tables set forth
revenues and operating loss by operating segments:

Nine Months Ended Year Ended January 9, 2006
September 30, December 31, (Inception) to
December 31,
2009 2008 2008 2007 2006
(In Thousands)
Revenues:
HUGHES Telematics $ $ $ $ $
Networkfleet 24,568 20,965 30,260 20,352 6,913
Total $ 24,568 $ 20,965 $ 30,260 $ 20,352 $ 6,913
(Loss) Income from operations:
HUGHES Telematics $(71,309) $(32,517) $ (47,556) $(29,431) $ (4,487)
Networkfleet 1,491 (720) (102) (4,146) (1,649)
Total $(69,818) $(33,237) $ (47,658) $ (33,577) $ (6,136)
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Results of Operations for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009 Compared to the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008
Revenues

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, we earned all of our revenues through the sale of Networkfleet s products and services.
Hardware revenues consist principally of the sale of Networkfleet s telematics device. Service revenues reflect the consideration received for
monitoring and tracking services, which are recognized as revenue when earned. The following table sets forth information related to
Networkfleet s revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008:

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Service revenues $ 16,750 $11,389
Hardware revenues 7,818 9,576
Total revenues $24,568 $ 20,965

Total revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 increased to approximately $24.6 million, a 17% increase from approximately
$21.0 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2008. The primary driver of the increase was service revenues, which increased by 47%
in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the same period last year. Units active on the network increased to approximately
97,000 as of September 30, 2009, an 18% increase from the approximately 82,000 units active as of September 30, 2008. As we continue to sell
additional hardware, service revenues are expected to continue to increase in future periods. Hardware unit sales decreased to approximately
23,000 units in the nine months ended September 30, 2009, an 18% decrease from the approximately 28,000 units sold in the nine months ended
September 30, 2008. This decrease in unit sales is primarily due to the weak general economic conditions which are causing our customer base
to postpone previously planned purchases. As the domestic economy recovers, we expect unit sales to return to, at a minimum, historical levels.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of hardware sold consists primarily of the cost of direct materials required to produce Networkfleet s telematics device, the cost of shipping
and installing devices and the amortization of certain intangibles acquired in connection with the acquisition of Networkfleet. Cost of service
includes per-unit monthly charges from various wireless, mapping, and roadside assistance providers as well as internal costs such as customer
care agents providing service to subscribers. The following table sets forth information related to costs of revenues for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 and 2008:

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Cost of services $ 5,023 $ 4315
Cost of hardware sold 6,104 6,803
Total cost of revenues $11,127 $11,118

Cost of revenues increased slightly in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2008. Cost
of hardware sold decreased by 10% in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the same period last year, due primarily to lower
unit sales partially offset by an increase in unit installation costs in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the same period last
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year. Cost of services increased by approximately 16% due to the increased number of active units on the network in the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2008. Cost of revenues as a percentage of total revenue decreased to
45% in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to 53% in the nine months ended September 30, 2008. The decrease in cost of
revenues as a percentage of revenue is due to the increase in service revenues as a percentage of total revenues. Service revenues accounted for
68% of total revenues in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to 54% in the same period last year. Upon launch of our service
with Mercedes-Benz in the fourth quarter of 2009, our cost of revenues will increase.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense consists primarily of salaries and related benefits for employees associated with engineering and product
development activities, fees and expenses paid to HNS and other contracted labor who are providing assistance to us with the development of
our factory-installed hardware device and other infrastructure related to the provision of services to vehicles, depreciation of property and
equipment used in the development effort and amortization of certain intangible assets acquired in connection with the acquisition of
Networkfleet. Research and development expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 increased to approximately $26.6 million from
approximately $23.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, an increase of approximately $2.9 million or 12%. The increase in
research and development expense includes a $1.3 million increase in amounts expensed for work performed by HNS, other contracted labor and
internal research and development activities, a $0.8 million increase in compensation, benefits and related employee costs and a $0.9 million
increase in depreciation expense. During the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, we capitalized $10.2 million and $7.8 million of
software development costs. In light of the termination of our contract with Old Chrysler and the discontinuation of work with New Chrysler, we
expect that research and development expenses will continue to decrease in future periods.

Sales and Marketing Expense

Sales and marketing expense consists primarily of salaries, commissions and related benefits for employees associated with our automaker
relationships and other marketing activities and Networkfleet s sales force and marketing staff, trade shows and other forms of advertising, and
the amortization of certain intangible assets acquired in connection with the acquisition of Networkfleet. Sales and marketing expense for the

nine months ended September 30, 2009 increased to approximately $7.8 million from approximately $5.4 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008, an increase of approximately $2.4 million or 46%. This increase relates primarily to approximately $1.2 million of
professional services received in the nine months ended September 30, 2009, including $1.0 million by Trivergance Business Resources ( TBR ),
and an approximately $0.8 million increase in compensation, benefits and related employee costs as the number of employees dedicated to sales
and marketing activities increased in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2008. We
expect sales and marketing expense to continue increasing as we plan to expand our marketing staff and other marketing related activities with

the launch of our service with Mercedes-Benz in the fourth quarter of 2009.

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense consists primarily of facilities costs, finance, accounting, legal, human resources and other corporate costs,
as well as the salaries and related employee benefits for those employees that support such functions. General and administrative expense for the
nine months ended September 30, 2009 increased to approximately $28.1 million from approximately $14.0 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008, an increase of approximately $14.1 million or 100%. The increase is primarily due to an approximately $4.7 million
increase in compensation, benefits and related employee costs due to a higher headcount involved in general and administrative activities, an
increase of approximately $4.8 million in professional fees primarily related to legal and other professional fees incurred in connection with the
Merger,
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approximately $2.2 million of incremental costs incurred primarily related to the design and implementation of the necessary systems and
infrastructure for our operations and an increase in depreciation and amortization of $2.3 million as these systems became ready for their
intended use. We expect general and administrative expense to continue increasing as we continue adding functionality to our back office
systems, develop our operational support functions and incur additional costs associated with operating as a public company. However, upon
launch of our service with Mercedes-Benz in the fourth quarter of 2009, certain costs related to the provision of service, including costs
associated with our customer care group which are currently recorded as a general and administrative expense, will be recorded as cost of
services.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 increased to approximately $9.3 million from approximately $6.6 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, an increase of approximately $2.7 million. Interest expense, net for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 consisted of $9.5 million of accrued interest, discount amortization and debt issuance cost amortization related to senior
secured term indebtedness, $2.5 million of interest and discount amortization related to the senior subordinated unsecured term promissory
notes, $0.6 million of accretion of Series A Preferred Stock and $0.7 million of interest on capital lease obligations and vendor financing
partially offset by approximately $3.9 million of interest that was capitalized and $0.1 million of interest income. Interest expense, net for the
nine months ended September 30, 2008 consisted primarily of $4.6 million of accrued interest, discount and debt issuance cost amortization
related to the senior secured term indebtedness, $1.1 million of interest and discount amortization related to the senior subordinated unsecured
term indebtedness, $2.2 million of accretion of Series A Preferred Stock and $0.2 million of interest on capital lease obligations and vendor
financing partially offset by $0.8 million of interest income and $0.7 million of interest expense that was capitalized.

Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Based on an evaluation of guidance provided by the EITF governing whether an instrument, including embedded features, is indexed to a
company s own stock, we determined that the warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock and the warrants
issued in connection with the issuance of the senior secured term indebtedness contained provisions which, in accordance with the accounting
guidance, indicated that the warrants were not indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock. Accordingly, upon the adoption of the accounting
guidance, we reclassified the $133.9 million fair value of the warrants from equity to a liability and recorded such amount as a cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle as of January 1, 2009. We also determined that the automatic exchange feature of the Series B Preferred
Stock pursuant to which the Series B Preferred Stock would be directly exchanged for shares of Polaris common stock in connection with the
Merger should be considered a separate derivative instrument as, pursuant to the accounting guidance, the exchange provision was not
considered indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock but rather indexed to Polaris stock. We recognized a charge of approximately $62.3 million in
the nine months ended September 30, 2009 related to the increase in fair market value of these instruments during such period. As the warrants
were exercised and the Series B Preferred Stock was extinguished in connection with the Merger, we will not record additional charges in future
periods related to these instruments.

Deemed Dividend on and Accretion of Convertible Preferred Stock

At the time of issuance of the Series B Preferred Stock, we allocated approximately $42.9 million of the proceeds to a beneficial conversion
feature resulting from the ability of the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock to convert their shares of Series B Preferred Stock into shares of
HUGHES Telematics common stock at a conversion price lower than the fair value of the HUGHES Telematics common stock at such time. As
this conversion feature was immediately available to the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock, this discount on the Series B Preferred Stock
was immediately accreted and a deemed dividend of approximately $42.9 million was recorded on the date of issuance. We recorded an
additional deemed dividend of approximately $0.1 million in
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the nine months ended September 30, 2009 representing the accretion of the discount on the Series B Preferred Stock related to the embedded
derivative and issue costs over the 4.5 year period through October 1, 2013 when the Series B Preferred Stock first became redeemable at the
option of the holder. Upon consummation of the Merger and the exchange of the Series B Preferred Stock for our common stock, we recorded an
additional deemed dividend of approximately $13.6 million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of our common stock received by
the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock and (ii) the carrying value of the Series B Preferred Stock, the amount allocated to the beneficial
conversion feature and the embedded derivative for the automatic exchange provision. Each of these deemed dividends have been reflected in
the condensed consolidated statements of operations in determining the net loss attributable to common stockholders.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2007
Revenues

In the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, we earned all of our revenues through the sale of Networkfleet s products and services.
Hardware revenues consist principally of the sale of Networkfleet s telematics device. Service revenues relate to the consideration received for
monitoring and tracking services, which are recognized as revenue when earned. The following table sets forth information related to
Networkfleet s revenue for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007
(In Thousands)
Service revenues $16,618 $ 9,343
Hardware revenues 13,642 11,009
Total revenues $ 30,260 $ 20,352

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2008 increased to approximately $30.3 million, a 49% increase from the approximately $20.4
million of total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007. The primary driver of the increase was service revenues, which increased 78% in
the year ended December 31, 2008 from the year ended December 31, 2007. Units active on the network increased to approximately 87,000 as
of December 31, 2008, a 47% increase from the approximately 59,000 units active as of December 31, 2007. As Networkfleet continues to sell
additional hardware, services revenue is expected to continue to increase in future periods. Hardware unit sales increased to approximately
40,000 units in the year ended December 31, 2008, a 29% increase from the approximately 31,000 units sold in the year ended December 31,
2007.

Cost of Revenues

The following table sets forth information related to costs of revenue for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007:

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007
(In Thousands)
Cost of services $ 6,009 $ 4,102
Cost of hardware sold 9,585 7,767
Total cost of revenues $ 15,594 $ 11,869

Cost of revenues increased to approximately $15.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, a 31% increase from the approximately $11.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2007. This increase resulted primarily from the increased number of active units on the network in the
year ended December 31, 2008 relative
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to the year ended December 31, 2007. Cost of revenues as a percentage of total revenues decreased to 52% in the year ended December 31,
2008, a 10% decrease from 58% in the year ended December 31, 2007. This decrease resulted primarily from the increase in service revenues as
a percentage of total revenues. Service revenues yield a higher gross margin than hardware revenues and represented 55% of total revenue in the
year ended December 31, 2008 relative to 46% of total revenues in the year ended December 31, 2007. As Networkfleet expects to continue
adding additional units to the network, management expects cost of revenues as a percentage of total revenues to decrease in future periods.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 increased to $33.6 million from $23.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007, an increase of $10.1 million or 43%. In the year ended December 31, 2008, we dedicated additional resources to the
development and testing of our telematics system, including the initiation of development of the second generation hardware device which is
expected to be ready for installation in automaker vehicles during 2010. Specifically, the increase in research and development expense relates
primarily to a $7.3 million increase in amounts expensed for work performed by HNS and other contracted labor, a $1.5 million increase in
compensation and benefits as the number of employees focused on the development of the telematics system and on the development of the
applications and services that will be enabled through the additional capabilities of our second generation hardware device increased in the year
ended December 31, 2008 and a $0.9 million increase in depreciation expense resulting from equipment purchased during 2008. Total headcount
involved in research and development activities increased from 22 as of December 31, 2007 to 40 as of December 31, 2008. During the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, we capitalized $12.2 million and $3.4 million of software development costs which, once the software is
ready for its intended use, will be amortized as a cost of service over the expected useful life of the software. We expect research and
development expense, including capitalized software development costs, to continue increasing as we further develop our products and service
offerings.

Sales and Marketing Expense

Sales and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 increased to $7.6 million from $5.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2007, an increase of $1.9 million, or 33%. This increase relates primarily to a $1.1 million increase in compensation and benefits as the number
of employees dedicated to sales and marketing activities increased in the year ended December 31, 2008 as we continued developing our
relationship with Chrysler and Mercedes-Benz, pursued relationships with additional automakers and developed our consumer marketing and
branding strategy in anticipation of the launch of services enabled by factory-installed hardware in the second half of 2009. Total headcount
involved in sales and marketing activities increased from 33 as of December 31, 2007 to 41 as of December 31, 2008. We expect sales and
marketing expense to continue increasing as we plan to expand our marketing staff and other marketing related activities in anticipation of the
launch of our service to vehicles with factory-installed hardware in the fourth quarter of 2009.

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 increased to $21.1 million from $12.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007, an increase of $8.3 million or 65%. This increase relates primarily to approximately $3.9 million of incremental costs
incurred in the year ended December 31, 2008 related to the design and implementation of our back office systems, a $2.8 million increase in
compensation and benefits as total headcount involved in general and administrative activities increased from 41 as of December 31, 2007 to 75
as of December 31, 2008, a $0.5 million increase in depreciation expense resulting from equipment purchased during 2008 and a $0.3 million in
facilities expenses due to the expansion of our operations. We expect general and administrative expense to continue increasing as we complete
the development of our back office systems and incur additional costs associated with operating as a public company.
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Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net for the year ended December 31, 2008 increased to $10.0 million from $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007,
an increase of $9.0 million. Interest expense, net for the year ended December 31, 2008 consisted primarily of the $7.5 million of accrued
interest and discount and amortization of debt issuance costs amortization related to the senior secured term indebtedness, the $2.8 million of
accretion on the Series A Preferred Stock, the $1.8 million of accrued interest and discount amortization related to the senior subordinated
unsecured promissory notes and $0.4 million of accrued interest on capital lease obligations, partially offset by $0.9 million of interest earned on
cash and cash equivalents and $1.6 million of interest which was capitalized. Interest expense, net for the year ended December 31, 2007
consisted of the $1.8 million of accretion on the Series A Preferred Stock, partially offset by $0.8 million of interest earned on cash, cash
equivalents and short-term investments.

Income Tax Benefit

As a result of our historical losses and the expectation that such historical losses will continue for the foreseeable future, we have recorded a full
valuation allowance against our net deferred tax asset. Accordingly, we did not recognize a tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2008.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recognized an income tax benefit of approximately $2.2 million relating to the partial reversal of our
net deferred tax liability.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 compared to the period from January 9, 2006 (Inception) to December 31,
2006

Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2007 and the period from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006, we earned all of our revenues
through the sale of Networkfleet s products and services. Hardware revenues consist principally of the sale of Networkfleet s telematics device.
Service revenues relate to the consideration received for monitoring and tracking services, which are recognized as revenue when earned. The
following table sets forth information related to Networkfleet s revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 and for the period from January 9,
2006 (inception) through December 31, 2006:

Year January 9, 2006

Ended (Inception) to

December 31, December 31,

2007 2006
(In Thousands)

Hardware revenues $ 11,009 $ 5,050
Service revenues 9,343 1,863
Total revenues $ 20,352 $ 6,913

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased to approximately $20.4 million from approximately $6.9 million of total
revenue for the period from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006. The increase in revenue is primarily due to the acquisition of
Networkfleet on August 1, 2006, which results in comparing the year ended December 31, 2007 to the five-month period from August 1, 2006 to
December 31, 2006. Units active on the network increased to approximately 59,000 as of December 31, 2007, a 90% increase from the
approximately 31,000 units active as of December 31, 2006.
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The following table sets forth information related to costs of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 and for the period from January 9,
2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006:

Year January 9, 2006

Ended (Inception) to

December 31, December 31,

2007 2006
(In Thousands)

Cost of hardware sold $ 7,767 $ 3,275
Cost of services 4,102 1,251
Total cost of revenues $ 11,869 $ 4,526

Cost of revenues increased to approximately $11.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 from approximately $4.5 million for the period
from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006. The increase in cost of revenue is primarily due to the acquisition of Networkfleet on
August 1, 2006, which results in comparing the year ended December 31, 2007 to the five-month period from August 1, 2006 to December 31,
2006. Furthermore, the number of units active on the network increased in the year ended December 31, 2007 relative to the period from the
August 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006. Cost of revenues as a percentage of total revenues decreased to 58% in the year ended December 31,
2007, an 11% decrease from 65% in the period from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006. This decrease resulted primarily from
the increase in service revenues as a percentage of total revenues. Service revenues yield a higher gross margin than hardware revenues and
represented 46% of total revenue in the year ended December 31, 2007 relative to 27% of total revenues in the period from January 9, 2006
(inception) to December 31, 2006.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased to $23.5 million from $3.1 million for the period from
January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006, an increase of $20.4 million. In the year ended December 31, 2007, we dedicated additional
resources to the development and testing of our telematics system. Specifically, the increase in research and development expense relates
primarily to a $14.8 million increase in amounts expensed for work performed by HNS and other contracted labor and a $2.0 million increase in
compensation and benefits as the number of employees focused on the development of the telematics system increased in the year ended
December 31, 2007. Total headcount involved in research and development activities increased from 11 as of December 31, 2006 to 22 as of
December 31, 2007. Also contributing to the increase is the acquisition of Networkfleet on August 1, 2006, which resulted in the inclusion of
Networkfleet s operating results for only five months in the period from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006.

Sales and Marketing Expense

Sales and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased to $5.7 million from $1.3 million for the period from January 9,
2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006, an increase of $4.4 million. This increase relates primarily to a $2.4 million increase in compensation
and benefits as the number of employees dedicated to sales and marketing activities increased in the year ended December 31, 2007 as we
continued developing our relationship with Chrysler and Mercedes-Benz, pursued relationships with additional automakers and developed our
consumer marketing and branding strategy in anticipation of the launch of services enabled by factory-installed hardware and a $1.1 million
increase in outside research activities focused on the positioning of our products and services in the market place. Total headcount involved in
sales and marketing activities increased from 15 as of December 31, 2006 to 33 as of December 31, 2007. Also contributing to the increase is the
acquisition of Networkfleet on August 1, 2006, which resulted in the inclusion of Networkfleet s operating results for only five months in the
period from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006.
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General and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased to $12.8 million from $4.1 million for the period from
January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006, an increase of $8.7 million. This increase relates primarily to a $4.6 million increase in
compensation and benefits as total headcount involved in general and administrative activities increased from 29 as of December 31, 2006 to 41
as of December 31, 2007, as well as a $1.8 million increase in legal, accounting and other professional fees as our operations increased
significantly in the year ended December 31, 2007. Also contributing to the increase is the acquisition of Networkfleet on August 1, 2006, which
resulted in the inclusion of Networkfleet s operating results for only five months in the period from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31,
2006.

Interest Income (Expense), Net

Interest expense, net for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased to $1.0 million from net interest income of less than $0.1 million for the
period from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006. Interest expense, net for the year ended December 31, 2007 consisted of the $1.8
million of accretion on the Series A Preferred Stock, partially offset by $0.8 million of interest earned on cash and cash equivalents. Interest
income, net for the period from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006 consisted of the $0.4 million of interest earned on cash, cash
equivalents and short-term investments, mostly offset by $0.4 million of accretion on the Series A Preferred Stock.

Income Tax Benefit

For the year ended December 31, 2007 and for the period from January 9, 2006 (inception) to December 31, 2006, we recognized an income tax
benefit of approximately $2.2 million and $2.3 million, respectively, relating to the reversal of our net deferred tax liability. As of December 31,
2007, we had a net deferred tax asset against which we had recorded a full valuation allowance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2009, we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of approximately $21.8 million. In December 2009, we raised an
aggregate of approximately $22.4 million of cash through the issuance and sale of common stock and the issuance of second lien term
indebtedness. As a result of our historical net losses and our limited capital resources, our independent registered public accounting firm s report
on our financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 includes an explanatory paragraph expressing substantial doubt
about our ability to continue as a going concern. We expect our negative cash flow to continue through at least the second quarter of 2010 as we
add vehicles to our telematics system. In light of these net losses and our negative cash flow, we cannot assure you that our net losses and
negative cash flow will not accelerate and surpass our expectations, and thus, we may be required to raise additional capital in the future. This
additional financing may take the form of loans under a new credit facility, the issuance of bonds or other types of debt securities, the issuance
of equity securities or a combination of the foregoing. Any such financing must either comply with the covenants of our credit facility, or we
will need to obtain waivers from the lenders. Our credit facility contains covenants that restrict our ability to incur debt and will require
mandatory prepayments from the proceeds of an equity financing. Any debt financing obtained may impose various restrictions and additional
covenants on us which could limit our ability to respond to market conditions, provide for unanticipated capital investments or take advantage of
business opportunities and may subject us to significant interest expense. Additional equity financing may be obtained on terms that are dilutive
to the interests of existing stockholders. Debt or additional equity financing may not be available when needed on terms favorable to us or at all,
and the failure to attract a sufficient amount of additional debt or equity capital may impair our ability to execute on our business plan. Such
additional capital may be provided by, among other things, the cash proceeds from the exercise of the outstanding warrants to purchase shares of
our common stock. There is no assurance that we will be successful in raising additional capital, if or when needed, to fund our operations.
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Operating Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, our cash used in operating activities was approximately $35.2 million, consisting primarily of a
net loss of $141.4 million, partially offset by a $62.3 million non-cash change in the market value of derivative instruments, the $19.1 million
non-cash portion of the impairment charges, $7.5 million of depreciation and amortization, $7.0 million of net changes in operating assets and
liabilities, $5.5 million of interest accrued on long-term debt which will be paid in kind with such accrued interest being added to the outstanding
principal balance of the long-term debt, $3.3 million of amortization of debt issuance costs and other discounts on the long-term debt, $1.0
million of share-based compensation expense and $0.5 million of non-cash interest expense related to the Series A Preferred Stock. For the nine
months ended September 30, 2008, cash used in operating activities was approximately $30.7 million, consisting primarily of a net loss of $39.6
million, increased by $2.9 million from changes in operating assets and liabilities, partially offset by $4.2 million of depreciation and
amortization, $3.8 million of interest accrued on long-term debt, $2.1 million of non-cash interest expense related to the Series A Preferred
Stock, $1.4 million of amortization of debt issuance costs and other discounts on the long-term debt and $0.3 million of share-based
compensation expense.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, cash used in operating activities was approximately $39.1 million, consisting primarily of a net loss of
$57.5 million, partially offset by $5.9 million of depreciation and amortization, $5.9 million of interest accrued on long-term debt which will be
paid in kind with such accrued interest being added to the outstanding principal balance of the long-term debt, $2.6 million of non-cash interest
expense related to the Series A Preferred Stock, $2.4 million of amortization of debt issuance costs and other discounts on the long-term debt,
$1.2 million of net changes in operating assets and liabilities and $0.4 million of share-based compensation expense. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, cash used in operating activities was approximately $23.6 million and was principally comprised of a net loss of $32.3
million, increased by a $2.2 million tax benefit related to the reversal of deferred tax liabilities, partially offset by $4.5 million of depreciation
and amortization, $1.8 million of non-cash interest expense related to the Series A Preferred Stock and an increase in cash flows from operating
assets and liabilities of $4.7 million. For the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, cash used in operating activities was
approximately $2.8 million and was principally comprised of a net loss of $3.8 million, increased by a $2.3 million tax benefit related to the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities, partially offset by $1.5 million of depreciation and amortization, $0.4 million of non-cash interest expense
related to the Series A Preferred Stock and an increase in cash flows from operating assets and liabilities of $1.4 million.

Investing Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, cash used in investing activities was approximately $12.8 million, consisting primarily of $10.6
million of capital expenditures related to the factory-installed telematics initiative, $10.2 million of capitalized software costs, $0.2 million
deposited into a restricted cash account to collateralize a letter of credit and $0.6 million of capital expenditures related to Networkfleet s
operations, partially offset by the release of $5.3 million of restricted cash that was previously held for the benefit of the lenders of the senior
secured term indebtedness and the release of $3.5 million of restricted cash previously held to collateralize a letter of credit that secured certain
lease obligations. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, cash used in investing activities was approximately $24.6 million, consisting
primarily of $6.8 million deposited into a restricted cash account for the benefit of the lenders of the senior secured term indebtedness, $3.5
million deposited into a restricted cash account to collateralize a letter of credit that secured certain lease obligations, $7.8 million of capitalized
software costs, $6.1 million of capital expenditures related to the factory-installed telematics initiative and $0.4 million of capital expenditures
related to Networkfleet s operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, cash used in investing activities was approximately $31.7 million, consisting primarily of the $5.3
million deposited into a restricted cash account for the benefit of the lenders of the senior secured term indebtedness, $2.8 million deposited into
a restricted cash account to collateralize letters of credit that secure certain lease obligations, $12.2 million of capitalized software costs, $10.6
million of capital expenditures related to the factory-installed telematics initiative and $0.8 million of capital expenditures related to
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Networkfleet s operations. For the year ended December 31, 2007, cash used in investing activities was approximately $5.1 million and resulted
primarily from $3.4 million of capitalized software costs, $2.9 million of capital expenditures related to the factory-installed telematics initiative
and $0.6 million of capital expenditures related to Networkfleet s operations, partially offset by the maturity of $1.8 million of short-term
investments. For the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, cash used in investing activities was approximately $27.0 million and
resulted primarily from $24.7 million used to purchase Networkfleet in August 2006, $1.8 million used for the purchase of short-term
investments, $1.0 million deposited into a restricted cash account to collateralize a letter of credit that secures a real estate lease obligation, $0.6
million of capital expenditures related to the factory-installed telematics initiative and $0.5 million of capital expenditures related to
Networkfleet s operations, partially offset by $1.7 million of cash held by Networkfleet on the date of the acquisition.

Financing Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, cash provided by financing activities was approximately $52.0 million, consisting of $97.2
million of net cash provided by the Merger and $37.0 million of cash proceeds from the issuance and sale of Series B Preferred Stock, partially
offset by $74.4 million paid to repurchase common shares in connection with the closing of the Merger, $1.8 million in fees and expenses paid
in connection with the issuance of the Series B Preferred Stock and $6.0 million of payments on capital lease obligations. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2008, cash provided by financing activities was approximately $58.9 million, consisting of $55.0 million from the issuance
of the senior secured term indebtedness with detachable warrants and $12.5 million from the issuance of senior subordinated unsecured notes,
partially offset by $5.0 million used to redeem the outstanding shares of the Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock (the Retired Series B
Preferred Stock ), $3.0 million of debt issuance costs related to the senior secured term indebtedness, and $0.5 million of payments on capital
lease obligations.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, cash provided by financing activities was approximately $66.7 million, consisting primarily of $60.0
million from the issuance of the senior secured term indebtedness with detachable warrants and $16.0 million from the issuance of senior
subordinated unsecured notes, partially offset by $5.0 million used to redeem the outstanding shares of the Retired Series B Preferred Stock,
$3.3 million of debt issuance costs related to the senior secured term indebtedness and $1.0 million of payments on capital lease obligations. For
the year ended December 31, 2007, cash provided by financing activities was approximately $35.1 million and resulted primarily from $35.0
million from the sale of the Series A Preferred Stock and warrants and $0.1 million from the exercise of stock options. For the period from
January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, cash provided by financing activities was approximately $45.4 million, consisting primarily of $40.0
million from the sale of the Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant, $5.0 million from the sale of Retired Series B Preferred Stock and $0.4
million from the initial capitalization.

Senior Secured Term Indebtedness

On March 31, 2008, we entered into the First Lien Credit Agreement pursuant to which we issued in multiple tranches during the year ended
December 31, 2008 for aggregate consideration of $60.0 million, senior secured term indebtedness due March 31, 2013 with an original
principal amount of $60.0 million and warrants to purchase the equivalent of 4,801,112 shares of common stock, comprised of 1,103,922 initial
shares and 3,697,190 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share. As additional consideration for services
provided by the lead arranger in connection with the issuance and syndication of the term indebtedness, we issued warrants to an affiliate of the
lead arranger to purchase the equivalent of an aggregate of 1,181,244 shares of common stock, comprised of 271,604 initial shares and 909,640
earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share.

The senior secured term indebtedness is guaranteed by all of our existing and future domestic subsidiaries and is secured by all of its tangible
and intangible assets. At our election, the term indebtedness bears interest at (i) the Prime Lending Rate plus 10.00% or (ii) for Eurocurrency
borrowings, 11.00% plus the greater of LIBOR or 3.00%. In accordance with an agreement between us and one of the senior secured note
holders, the interest

49

Table of Contents 44



Edgar Filing: GABELLI UTILITY TRUST - Form N-Q

Table of Conten

rate on term indebtedness with a principal amount of $5.0 million will have an interest rate of no higher than 14.00% for the term of the debt.
With respect to Eurocurrency borrowings, we may elect interest periods of one, two, three, or six months (or nine or twelve months if approved
by each senior secured note holder), and interest is payable in arrears at the end of each interest period but, in any event, at least every three
months. With respect to any interest period ending on or prior to March 31, 2010 and unless we elect at least three days prior to the beginning of
any such interest period, the interest accrued on the term indebtedness will be paid in kind in arrears with such accrued interest being added to
the outstanding principal balance of the term indebtedness. With respect to all interest periods ending after March 31, 2010, the accrued interest
will be paid in cash in arrears. As of September 30, 2009, senior secured term indebtedness with an aggregate principal amount, including the
accrued interest which had been paid in kind, of approximately $72.1 million was outstanding, and we had elected to convert all outstanding
amounts to Prime Lending borrowings which resulted in the term indebtedness bearing an interest rate of 13.25%.

The First Lien Credit Agreement requires us to comply with negative covenants which include, among others, limitations on our ability to incur
additional debt; create liens; pay dividends or make other distributions; make loans and investments; sell assets; redeem or repurchase capital
stock or subordinated debt; engage in specified transactions with affiliates; consolidate or merge with or into, or sell substantially all of its assets
to, another person; and enter into new lines of business. We may incur indebtedness beyond the specific limits allowed under the First Lien
Credit Agreement, provided it maintains a leverage ratio of 5.0 to 1.0. In addition, we may incur limited indebtedness secured by junior and
subordinated liens to the liens created under the First Lien Credit Agreement. Noncompliance with any of the covenants without cure or waiver
would constitute an event of default. An event of default resulting from a breach of a covenant may result, at the option of the note holders, in an
acceleration of the principal and interest outstanding. The First Lien Credit Agreement also contains other events of default (subject to specified
grace periods), including defaults based on the termination of our contract with either Old Chrysler or Mercedes-Benz, events of bankruptcy or
insolvency with respect to us and nonpayment of principal, interest or fees when due. On June 26, 2009, we obtained a waiver from the senior
secured lenders under the First Lien Credit Agreement providing that the termination of the Old Chrysler contract would not constitute an event
of default under the First Lien Credit Agreement. The First Lien Credit Agreement also requires us to use 25% of the net cash proceeds from
certain equity issuances for the repayment of senior secured term indebtedness.

The warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the senior secured term indebtedness were automatically exercised in accordance with
their terms upon consummation of the Merger.

Second Lien Term Indebtedness

On December 17, 2009, we entered into the Second Lien Credit Agreement with PLASE HT, as administrative agent, collateral agent and
original lender, pursuant to which we issued indebtedness due October 1, 2013 with an original principal amount of $15.0 million. PLASE HT is
an affiliate of Apollo and of our controlling stockholder, Communications LLC. The loans under the Second Lien Credit Agreement bear interest
at 9.00% per annum, payable-in-kind, and are guaranteed by all of our existing and future domestic subsidiaries. The loans are secured by a
second priority lien on substantially all of our tangible and intangible assets, including the equity interests of our subsidiaries. The liens granted
in connection with the Second Lien Credit Agreement are expressly subject and subordinated to the liens securing our obligations under the First
Lien Credit Agreement. In connection with the issuance of the Second Lien Credit Agreement, we issued PLASE HT a warrant to purchase
3,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $6.00 per share and entered into a customary registration rights agreement.

The covenants contained in the Second Lien Credit Agreement are substantially the same as those in the First Lien Credit Agreement. The
Second Lien Credit Agreement requires the Company to comply with negative covenants which include, among others, limitations on the
Company s ability to incur additional debt; create liens; pay dividends or make other distributions; make loans and investments; sell assets;
redeem or repurchase capital stock or subordinated debt; engage in specified transactions with affiliates; consolidate or merge with or
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into, or sell substantially all of its assets to, another person; and enter into new lines of business. The Company may incur indebtedness beyond
the specific limits allowed under the Second Lien Credit Agreement, provided it maintains a leverage ratio of less than 5.0 to 1.0. The events of
default under the Second Lien Credit Agreement include, among others, payment defaults; defaults under, or acceleration of, certain
indebtedness; termination of the Company s contract with Mercedes-Benz USA, LLC; breaches of covenants or representations and warranties;
certain ERISA events; certain judgments; and bankruptcy and insolvency events. The occurrence of an event of default could result in the
acceleration of the obligations under the Second Lien Credit Agreement.

Senior Unsecured Promissory Note

In December 2009, we issued to HNS a senior unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of approximately $8.3 million through the
conversion of a trade accounts payable balance of approximately $6.0 million and the approximately $2.3 million outstanding balance on the
equipment financing arrangement owed to HNS. The promissory note will accrue interest at a rate of 12.00% per annum, compounded annually,
and become due and payable on December 31, 2010. We are required to make scheduled principal payments of approximately $0.8 million on
April 15,2010 and $1.5 million on each of July 15, 2010 and October 15, 2010. In addition, subject to all restrictions in the First Lien Credit
Agreement and Second Lien Credit Agreement and certain other limitations, to the extent we sell any capital equipment purchased by us (or
purchased by HNS on our behalf) for use in connection with the Telematics Agreement between the parties, but no longer needed by us, we shall
make unscheduled prepayments of principal on the promissory note equal to the proceeds from the sale of such capital equipment (net of any
selling costs).

Senior Subordinated Unsecured Promissory Notes

On March 31, 2008, we issued to Communications LLC a senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of $12.5
million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013. The note bears interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum which is compounded and added to the
principal amount annually and is payable at maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, we recorded a deemed capital contribution of
approximately $2.4 million related to the difference between the fair value of the note using an estimated interest rate we would have paid an
unrelated third party on a similar note and the value of the note using the 15.00% stated interest rate. The discount from the face value of the
note resulting from the deemed capital contribution will be amortized as additional interest expense over the term of the note using the effective
interest method.

On December 12, 2008, we issued to AIF V PLASE an additional senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of
$3.5 million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013. The note bears interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum which is compounded and added to
the principal amount annually and is payable at maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, we recorded an additional deemed capital
contribution of approximately $2.4 million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated interest rate we
would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the value of the note using the 15.00% stated interest rate. The discount from
the face value of the note resulting from the deemed capital contribution will be amortized as additional interest expense over the term of the
note using the effective interest method.

Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock

In July 2006, we issued and sold to Communications LLC, an affiliate of Apollo, for an aggregate purchase price of $40.0 million, 4,000 shares
of Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase the equivalent of 12,191,598 shares of our common stock, comprised of 2,803,223 initial
shares and 9,388,375 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of $0.82 per share. In June 2007, we issued and sold to Communications
LLC, for an aggregate purchase price of $15.0 million, an additional 1,500 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase the
equivalent of 9,143,698 shares of our common stock, comprised of 2,102,417 initial shares and 7,041,281 earn-out shares, at an equivalent
exercise price of $1.64 per share. In November 2007, we issued and
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sold to Communications LLC, for an aggregate purchase price of $20.0 million, an additional 2,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and a
warrant to purchase the equivalent of 12,191,598 shares of our common stock, comprised of 2,803,223 initial shares and 9,388,375 earn-out
shares, at an equivalent exercise price of $2.46 per share. Immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger, the outstanding shares of Series
A Preferred Stock were extinguished through (i) the exercise by Communications LLC of the outstanding warrants to purchase Old HTI
common stock using shares of Series A Preferred Stock with an aggregate face value of $55.0 million and (ii) the exchange of shares of Series A
Preferred Stock with an aggregate face value of $20.0 million for shares of Old HTI common stock which were subsequently exchanged in
connection with the Merger for 2,000,000 shares of our common stock, comprised of 459,861 initial shares and 1,540,139 earn-out shares.

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

On March 12, 2009, we issued and sold 5,000,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $50.0 million. AIF V
PLASE, an affiliate of Apollo, purchased 1,200,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock for $12.0 million of cash, and HCI, which is the parent of
HNS and is controlled by investment funds that are affiliates of Apollo, purchased 1,300,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock through the
conversion of $13.0 million of trade accounts payable transferred from HNS. The remaining 2,500,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were
purchased by unrelated institutional investors for $25.0 million of cash. As a result of the sale of Series B Preferred Stock, approximately $5.3
million was released to us from an escrow account held for the benefit of its senior secured note holders. This amount constituted all funds
remaining in the escrow account. In connection with the Merger, all outstanding shares of Series B Preferred Stock were exchanged for an
aggregate of 12,500,000 shares of our common stock, comprised of 5,000,000 initial shares and 7,500,000 earn-out shares.

Sale of Common Stock

On December 28, 2009, we completed a private placement of 2,516,667 shares of common stock to a group of institutional accredited investors
at a per share price of $3.00. The aggregate purchase price for the common stock sold in the private placement was approximately $7.4 million
in cash and the exchange of 1,662,200 of our publicly-traded warrants which were cancelled following the closing of the private placement. We
intend to use the net proceeds from the private placement for general corporate purposes. In connection with the private placement, we entered
into a registration rights agreement with the purchasers requiring that, among other things, we register the resale of the shares of common stock
sold in the private placement. If we do not meet certain deadlines with respect to making a registration statement covering such resale effective,
then cash penalties of 1% of the purchase price per month for up to twelve months may apply. Pursuant to an engagement letter executed in
March 2009 for consulting and financial advisory services, in connection with the private placement, we paid Trivergance, an affiliate of a
member of our board of directors, approximately $0.1 million of cash.

Warrant Exchange Offer

On June 16, 2009, we initiated an offer to the holders of all of our 19,500,000 outstanding warrants to purchase shares of our common stock the

opportunity, for a limited time, to exchange 20 warrants for one share of our common stock. The offer expired on July 24, 2009, and pursuant to
the offer, we accepted for exchange 1,094,620 warrants and issued 54,731 shares of common stock. All of the warrants acquired in the exchange
were terminated.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements. All subsidiaries in which we have a controlling financial interest are included in the
consolidated financial statements, and we do not have any relationships with any special purpose entities.
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The following table sets forth our contractual payment obligations as of December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Payments Due By Period
Less Than 1to3 3to5S More Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(In Thousands)

Senior secured term indebtedness(! $107,570  $ $17,902 $ 89,668 $
Senior subordinated promissory notes 33,892 33,892
Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock® 75,000 75,000
Capital lease obligations 8,264 2,925 5,339
Operating lease obligations 4,207 764 1,239 1,326 878
Purchase obligations 58,850 15,450 34,400 9,000
Total® $ 287,783 $19,139 $ 58,880 $ 208,886 $ 878

(1) As the senior secured term indebtedness bears interest at a variable rate, the estimated interest payments were calculated based on the
13.25% interest rate in effect as of December 31, 2008.

(2) The Series A Preferred Stock of Old HTI had a mandatory redemption date of October 1, 2013. Immediately prior to the consummation of
the Merger, the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock of Old HTI were extinguished through (i) the exercise by Communications
LLC of the warrants issued in connection with the Series A Preferred Stock using shares of Series A Preferred Stock with an aggregate
face value of $55.0 million and (ii) the exchange of shares of Series A Preferred Stock with an aggregate face value of $20.0 million for
shares of common stock of Old HTI which were subsequently exchanged in connection with the Merger for shares of our common stock.

(3) In December 2009, we (i) entered into the Second Lien Credit Agreement with PLASE HT, pursuant to which we issued indebtedness due
October 1, 2013 with an original principal amount of $15.0 million and (ii) issued to HNS a senior unsecured promissory note due
December 31, 2010 with a principal amount of approximately $8.3 million through the conversion of a trade accounts payable balance of
approximately $6.0 million and the approximately $2.3 million outstanding balance on the equipment financing arrangement owed to
HNS. Such additional indebtedness has not been reflected in the table.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

As of September 30, 2009, we had approximately $22.3 million of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash. This cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash is subject to market risk due to changes in interest rates. In accordance with our investment policy, we diversify our investments
among United States Treasury securities and other high credit quality debt instruments that we believe to be low risk. We are averse to principal
loss and seek to preserve our invested funds by limiting default risk and market risk.

We may suffer from fluctuating interest rates, which may adversely impact our consolidated results of operations and cash flows. As of
September 30, 2009, we had outstanding debt with an aggregate face amount, including interest which has been paid in kind, of approximately
$91.5 million, which included variable rate borrowings of approximately $72.1 million. As of September 30, 2009, the hypothetical impact of a
one percentage point increase in interest rates related to our outstanding variable rate debt would be to increase annual interest expense by
approximately $0.7 million.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued a new accounting standard governing fair value measurement.
This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with GAAP and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. The fair value standard
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was to be effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. In February 2008, the
FASB delayed the effective date of the fair value standard by one year for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. Those assets and liabilities measured at fair value as of
September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued standard new accounting standard pursuant to which entities will be permitted to measure many financial
instruments and certain other assets and liabilities at fair value on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The standard was effective for us on
January 1, 2008. We determined that the utilization of fair value reporting is not appropriate for our financial instruments for which fair value
measurement is not required. Consequently, the adoption of the standard did not have a material impact on our financial position and results of
operations.

In November 2007, the EITF issued new guidance which states that income statement classification of payments between parties in an
arrangement should be based on a consideration of (a) the nature and terms of the arrangement, (b) the nature of the entities operations and

(c) whether the parties payments are within the scope of other existing generally accepted accounting principles. The guidance was effective for
us on January 1, 2008. The adoption of the new guidance did not have a material impact on our financial position and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB revised prior guidance governing accounting for business combinations. Significant revisions include: (i) all
transaction costs related to a business combination are to be expensed when incurred; (ii) certain contingent assets and liabilities purchased in a
business combination are to be measured at fair value; (iii) contingent consideration (earn-out arrangements) paid in connection with a business
combination are to be measured at fair value depending on the structure of the arrangements; and (iv) subsequent material adjustments made to
the purchase price allocation will be recorded back to the acquisition date, which will cause revision of previously issued financial statements
when reporting comparative period financial information in subsequent financial statements. The revised guidance is effective for business
combinations that are completed on or after January 1, 2009. As of December 31, 2008, we had incurred approximately $0.9 million in
transaction costs related to the Merger which are included in other current assets in our condensed consolidated balance sheets. Upon adoption of
the revised business combinations guidance, we expensed such transaction costs which are included in general and administrative expense in our
condensed consolidated statements of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2009.

In June 2008, the Emerging Issues Task Force ( EITF ) issued guidance on determining whether an instrument, including embedded features, is
indexed to an entity s own stock. Under the new guidance, a company first evaluates any contingent exercise provisions based on the previously
existing guidance, and second, evaluates the instruments settlement provisions. This guidance is effective for fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2008. Based on an evaluation of the newly effective guidance, we determined that the warrants issued in connection with the
issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock and the warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the senior secured term indebtedness
contained provisions which under the new guidance, indicated that the warrants were not indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock. Accordingly,
upon the adoption of the new guidance, we reclassified the $133.9 million fair value of the warrants from equity to a liability and recorded such
amount as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle as of January 1, 2009. We also determined that the automatic exchange feature
of the Series B Preferred Stock pursuant to which the Series B Preferred Stock would be directly exchanged for shares of Polaris common stock
in connection with the Merger should be considered a separate derivative instrument as, pursuant to the new guidance, the exchange provision
was not considered indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock but rather indexed to Polaris stock. We recognized a charge of approximately $62.3
million in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 related to the increase in fair market value of these instruments during such period. As the
warrants were exercised and the Series B Preferred Stock was extinguished in connection with the Merger, we will not record additional charges
in future periods related to these instruments.

54

Table of Contents 50



Edgar Filing: GABELLI UTILITY TRUST - Form N-Q

Table of Conten

In June 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance over the disclosure of subsequent events that requires companies to recognize in the financial
statements the effects of subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. An entity shall disclose the date through which subsequent events have been
evaluated, as well as whether that date is the date the financial statements were issued. Companies are not permitted to recognize subsequent
events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance sheet date but arose after the balance sheet date and before the
financial statements are issued. Some non-recognized subsequent events must be disclosed to keep the financial statements from being
misleading. For such events a company must disclose the nature of the event, an estimate of its financial effects or a statement that such estimate
cannot be made. This guidance applies prospectively for interim or annual financial periods ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of the
subsequent events guidance did not affect our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued the Accounting Standards Codification ( Codification ) which established the Codification as the single source of
authoritative non-governmental GAAP which was launched on July 1, 2009. The Codification does not change current GAAP but is intended to
simplify user access to all authoritative GAAP by providing all the authoritative literature related to a particular topic in one place. All existing
accounting standard documents have been superseded and all other accounting literature not included in the Codification will be considered
non-authoritative. Rules and interpretative releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP
for SEC registrants. Our adoption of the Codification was effective for the three month period ended September 30, 2009 and did not have an
impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2009, the EITF issued revised guidance governing revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables which provides a greater
ability to separate and allocate arrangement consideration in a multiple element arrangement. The revised guidance requires the use of an
estimated selling price to allocate arrangement consideration and eliminates the residual method of allocation. The guidance will become
effective for us on January 1, 2011; however, earlier adoption is permitted. The adoption of the revised guidance is not expected to have a
material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2009, the EITF issued revised guidance governing revenue arrangements that include software elements. The revised guidance
amends the scope of existing guidance to exclude tangible products that include software and non-software components that function together to
deliver the products essential functionality. The revised guidance will become effective for us on January 1, 2011; however, earlier adoption is
permitted. The adoption of the revised guidance is not expected to have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

Properties

Our principal properties are described in this prospectus in the section entitled Business Property .
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MANAGEMENT
Directors and Executive Officers
Name Age Position
Jeffrey A. Leddy 54  Chief Executive Officer, Director
Erik J. Goldman 49 President
Craig J. Kaufmann 34 Vice President Finance and Treasurer
Robert C. Lewis 44 General Counsel and Secretary
Keith J. Schneider 52 President and Chief Executive Officer, Networkfleet
Andrew D. Africk 43 Director
Marc V. Byron 46 Director
Andrew Hines 70 Director
Warren N. Lieberfarb 65 Director
Steven Martinez 40 Director
Matthew H. Nord 30 Director
Aaron J. Stone 36 Director
Mark VanStekelenburg 57 Director

Jeffrey A. Leddy. Mr. Leddy has been our Chief Executive Officer since December 2006 and has served on our Board of Directors since March
2006. Prior to his employment with us, from April 2003 through December 2006, Mr. Leddy served as Chief Executive Officer and President of
SkyTerra Communications, Inc. ( SkyTerra ). Prior to serving as Chief Executive Officer and President, Mr. Leddy served as the President and
Chief Operating Officer of SkyTerra from October 2002 and its Senior Vice President of Operations from June 2002. From September 1980 to
December 2001, Mr. Leddy worked for EMS Technologies serving most recently as Vice President. Mr. Leddy currently serves on the board of
directors of HUGHES Communications, Inc., HUGHES Systique Corporation and ArrowStream Inc. Mr. Leddy also serves on the board of
managers of HNS.

Erik J. Goldman. Mr. Goldman has been our President since July 2006. Prior to joining us, Mr. Goldman served as a Vice President of SkyTerra
from March 2003 through June 2006, where his responsibilities included acquisition, development and corporate oversight of the organization s
portfolio companies in the wireless and satellite services industries. Prior to joining SkyTerra, Mr. Goldman consulted to a European Satellite
Radio venture. From 1995 to December 2001, Mr. Goldman worked for Leo One Worldwide, most recently as Vice President of Technology
and Business Development, where he led an extensive telematics effort. Previously, Mr. Goldman served as Director of Business Development
for dbX Corporation, a telecom-focused investment and management group with active interests in cellular, paging and satellite businesses. Prior
to joining dbX in 1991, Mr. Goldman served as a Member of Technical Staff of Mitre Corporation and as a Senior Communications Design
Engineer of Raytheon Corporation.

Craig J. Kaufmann. Mr. Kaufmann has been our Vice President Finance and Treasurer since December 2006. Prior to joining us,

Mr. Kaufmann served as Controller and Treasurer of SkyTerra from April 2003 and served as its Director of Financial Reporting from
November 2000. Prior to joining SkyTerra, Mr. Kaufmann was the Financial Reporting Manager of Kozmo.com from March 2000 to November
2000, and an associate at PricewaterhouseCoopers from August 1998 to March 2000.

Robert C. Lewis. Mr. Lewis has been our General Counsel and Secretary since January 2007. From April 1998 to May 2008, Mr. Lewis was
employed by SkyTerra serving as its Senior Vice President and General Counsel from July 2000 to April 2008, as its Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary from May 1998 to July 2000. Prior to joining SkyTerra, Mr. Lewis was an associate at the law firm of Fried, Frank,
Harris, Shriver & Jacobson from October 1992.

Keith J. Schneider. Mr. Schneider has been employed as President of our Networkfleet subsidiary since April 2007. In January 2010,
Mr. Schneider was also named Chief Executive Officer of Networkfleet. Prior to
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joining Networkfleet, Mr. Schneider served as Vice President of indirect distribution for Sprint Nextel Communications ( Nextel ), where he was
responsible for the strategic direction and implementation of key programs and policies supporting Nextel s local and national third party indirect
channels. Before assuming that position, he served as the area president of New England operations for Nextel, a $200 million business where he
had full profit and loss responsibility and managed sales and distribution, marketing, finance, operations, human resources, service and repair.

Mr. Schneider began his Nextel career as a general manager in Southern California, launching and building one of Nextel s first and largest
markets.

Andrew D. Africk. Mr. Africk has served as a member of our board of directors since January 2006. Mr. Africk is a senior partner of Apollo,
which, together with its affiliates, acts as managing general partner of the Apollo Investment Funds, a series of private securities investment

funds, where he has worked since 1992. Mr. Africk serves on the boards of directors of Hughes Communications, Inc. and SOURCECORP,

Incorporated. Mr. Africk also serves on the board of managers of HNS.

Marc V. Byron. Mr. Byron served as a member of the board of directors and chief executive officer of Polaris Acquisition Corp. from Polaris
inception in June 2007 through the March 31, 2009 merger with Old HTT and has served on our board of directors since the consummation of the
Merger. Mr. Byron co-founded Trivergance, a middle market merchant banking and investment firm, in June 2006, and has served as a
Managing Member since its formation. Trivergance acted as a strategic and financial advisor in the $750 million transaction in which Sunterra
Corporation went private. Since May 2003, Mr. Byron has also served as chairman of MG, LLC, d/b/a Tranzact, a marketing services firm that
helps companies acquire customers and manage complex transactions by combining expertise in developing customer acquisition strategies with
experience in applying technology. He has also served as an advisor to Apollo on large marketing and media related transactions. In 1997,

Mr. Byron founded Paradigm Direct and served as its chief executive officer until its sale to Mosaic Group, Inc., a Canadian marketing services
firm. After the sale, Paradigm Direct changed its name to Mosaic Performance Solutions North America and Mr. Byron served as its chief
executive officer until December 2001.

Andrew P. Hines. Mr. Hines has served as a member of our board of directors since March 31, 2009. Mr. Hines has been a principal of Hines
and Associates, a financial management consulting firm since September 2006 and from 2001 until October 2005. Mr. Hines served as Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of GenTek, Inc., a manufacturer of industrial components and performance chemicals, from October 2005
to September 2006. Mr. Hines is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Warren N. Lieberfarb. Mr. Lieberfarb has served as a member of our board of directors since March 31, 2009. Mr. Lieberfarb is the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Warren N. Lieberfarb & Associates LLC, a media, entertainment and technology consulting and investment firm.
From 1984 until December 2002, Mr. Lieberfarb was President of Warner Home Video, a subsidiary of Warner Bros. Entertainment and a
global leader in the creation, distribution, and marketing of theatrical motion pictures and television programming on video/DVD.

Mr. Lieberfarb also serves on the board of directors and board of trustees of the American Film Institute and chairs its Entrepreneurial
Committee. He also serves on the board of directors and is Vice Chairman of MOD Systems, a retail systems provider enabling in-store digital
signage, sampling and fulfillment of music and video content. He is currently on the University of Pennsylvania Library board of overseers, the
Undergraduate Executive Committee of The Wharton School, and previously was a member of the University s board of trustees from 2001 to
2005. Mr. Lieberfarb is also a member of the Academy of Motion Pictures Arts and Sciences.

Steven Martinez. Mr. Martinez has served as a member of our board of directors since March 31, 2009. Mr. Martinez is a partner at Apollo.
Prior to joining Apollo in 2000, he worked for Goldman Sachs & Company and Bain and Company. Mr. Martinez also serves on the board of
directors of Goodman Global Holdings, Inc., Rexnord Global Holdings and Jacuzzi Brands, Inc., Prestige Cruise Holdings, and Norwegian
Cruise Lines.
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Matthew H. Nord. Mr. Nord has served as a member of our board of directors since December 2006 and is a principal of Apollo, where he has
worked since 2003. Prior to that time, Mr. Nord was a member of the Investment Banking division of Salomon Smith Barney Inc. Mr. Nord
serves on the board of directors of Affinion Group, Noranda Aluminum and SOURCECORP, Inc.

Aaron J. Stone. Mr. Stone has served as a member of our board of directors since March 31, 2009. Mr. Stone is a senior partner of Apollo
which, together with its affiliates, acts as managing general partner of the Apollo Investment Funds, a series of private securities investment
funds, where he has worked since 1997. Mr. Stone also serves on the board of directors of AMC Entertainment Inc., Hughes Communications,
Inc. and Connections Academy, LLC, and on the board of managers of HNS.

Mark VanStekelenburg. Mr. VanStekelenburg has served as a member of our board of directors since March 31, 2009. From 1992 to 1998 he
was chairman, president, and chief executive officer of Rykoff-Sexton/US Foodservice Inc. Mr. VanStekelenburg is also a member of the board
of directors of Bergensons Property Services, Inc., Chemco, Inc., JSI Store Fixtures Inc. and ArrowStream, Inc. He is also a member of the
Advisory Boards of Champlain Capital Partners, LLC and an Honorary Member of the board of trustees and a member of the audit committee of
the March of Dimes.

Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors

During the year ended December 31, 2009, our board of directors held six meetings. Although we do not have any formal policy regarding
director attendance at annual stockholder meetings, we will attempt to schedule our annual meetings so that all our directors can attend. We
expect our directors to attend all board and committee meetings and to spend the time needed and meet as frequently as necessary to properly
discharge their responsibilities.

Committees
Audit Committee

The audit committee of the board of directors consists of Messrs. Hines, Lieberfarb and VanStekelenburg. Mr. Hines serves as the chairman of
our audit committee. The independent directors we appointed to our audit committee are independent members of our board of directors, as
defined by the rules of the SEC. The audit committee s duties, which are specified in our audit committee charter, include, but are not limited to:

reviewing and discussing with management and the independent auditor the annual audited financial statements, and recommending
to the board whether the audited financial statements should be included in our Form 10-K;

discussing with management and the independent auditor significant financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection
with the preparation of our financial statements;

discussing with management major risk assessment and risk management policies;

monitoring the independence of the independent auditor;

verifying the rotation of the lead (or coordinating) audit partner having primary responsibility for the audit and the audit partner
responsible for reviewing the audit as required by law;

inquiring and discussing with management our compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

Table of Contents 54



Edgar Filing: GABELLI UTILITY TRUST - Form N-Q

pre-approving all audit services and permitted non-audit services to be performed by our independent auditor, including the fees and
terms of the services to be performed;

appointing or replacing the independent auditor;

determining the compensation and oversight of the work of the independent auditor (including resolution of disagreements between
management and the independent auditor regarding financial reporting) for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or
related work; and
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establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by us regarding accounting, internal
accounting controls or reports which raise material issues regarding our financial statements or accounting policies.
The audit committee will at all times be composed exclusively of independent directors who are able to read and understand fundamental
financial statements, including a company s balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement.

The board of directors has determined that Mr. Hines qualifies as an audit committee financial expert, as defined under applicable SEC rules and
regulations. Our audit committee did not meet during fiscal 2008 and had three meetings in 2009.

Compensation Committee

The compensation committee of the board of directors consists of Messrs. Africk, Lieberfarb and Nord. The majority of the directors we
appointed to our compensation committee are independent members of our board of directors, as defined by the rules of the SEC. The
compensation committee s duties, which are specified in our audit committee charter, include, but are not limited to:

reviewing at least annually the goals and objectives of our executive compensation plans;

reviewing at least annually our executive compensation plans in light of our goals and objectives with respect to such plans;

evaluating annually the performance of our chief executive officer in light of the goals and objectives of our executive compensation
plans;

evaluating annually the performance of our other executive officers in light of the goals and objectives of our executive
compensation plans;

evaluating annually the appropriate level of compensation for members of our board of directors and committee service by
non-employee directors;

reviewing and approving any severance or termination arrangements to be made with any of our executive officers;

performing such duties and responsibilities as may be assigned to our board of directors or the compensation committee under the
terms of any executive compensation plan;

reviewing perquisites or other personal benefits to our executive officers and directors and recommending any changes to our board
of directors;

reviewing and discussing with management our compensation discussion and analysis, and based on that review and discussion, to
recommend to our board of directors that the compensation discussion and analysis be included in our annual proxy statement or
annual report on Form 10-K;

producing a committee report on executive compensation in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC to be included in
our annual proxy statement or annual report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC; and
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reviewing the description of the compensation committee s processes and procedures for the consideration and determination of
executive and director compensation to be included in our annual proxy statement.
Code of Ethics and Committee Charters

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our officers and directors. Our code of ethics and our board committee charters are available on
our website at www.hughestelematics.com. In addition, a copy of the code of ethics will be provided without charge upon request in writing at
2002 Summit Boulevard, Suite 1800, Atlanta, GA 30319 or by telephone at (770) 391-6400.
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The compensation committee of our board of directors is empowered to review and approve, or recommend for the approval of the full board of
directors, compensation for our executive officers.

Objectives of Compensation Program

The primary objective of our compensation program, including the executive compensation program, is to attract and retain qualified
management personnel who can work in our dynamic business environment. A further objective of the compensation program is to provide
incentives and reward each member of management for his or her contribution to our business. In addition, we strive to promote an ownership
mentality among key leadership and members of the board of directors. Finally, we endeavor to ensure that the compensation program is
perceived as fundamentally fair to all stakeholders.

What the Compensation Program is Designed to Reward

The compensation program is designed to reward each executive officer s contribution to our success. In measuring the executive officers
contribution, the compensation committee is expected to consider numerous subjective factors, rather than more traditional metrics, in light of
the fluid and growing nature of our business.

Our senior management provides to our compensation committee recommendations regarding most compensation matters. We do not currently
engage any consultant related to executive and/or director compensation matters.

Stock price performance is expected to be a factor in determining annual compensation; however, to the extent the price of our common stock is
subject to significant fluctuations due to a variety of factors outside of management s control, the weight placed on stock performance may be
lessened. It is not currently expected that there will be an exact formula for allocating between cash and non-cash compensation, although, to
date, we have provided relatively little non-cash compensation, other than through stock option grants. Cash compensation is generally paid as
earned.

Elements of the Compensation Plan and How They Relate to the Objectives

Annual executive officer compensation currently consists of a base salary component and a discretionary annual bonus component. In the future,
the compensation committee is expected to set total executive cash compensation sufficiently high to attract and retain a strong, motivated
leadership team and recognize executive officers roles in accomplishing extraordinary transactions.

As set forth in the table below, with the heading Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2009, each of our executive officers set forth
below has received stock option grants under the HUGHES Telematics 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2006 Plan ). We adopted a new HUGHES
Telematics, Inc. 2009 Equity and Incentive Plan (the 2009 Plan ), which became effective upon the Merger. Stock options outstanding under the
HUGHES Telematics 2006 Stock Incentive Plan were exchanged in the Merger for options exercisable for shares of our common stock under

the 2006 Plan. The purpose of the Plan is to promote interests of our company, subsidiaries and stockholders by providing our directors, officers,
employees and consultants with appropriate incentives and rewards to encourage them to enter into and continue in our employ or service, to
acquire a proprietary interest in our long-term success and to reward the performance of individuals in fulfilling their personal responsibilities

for long-range achievements.

HUGHES Telematics, Inc. 2009 Equity and Incentive Plan

The 2009 Plan provides for the grant of equity-based awards, including restricted common stock, restricted stock units, stock options, stock
appreciation rights and other equity based awards, as well as cash bonuses and
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long-term cash awards to our officers and other employees, advisors and consultants who are selected by the compensation committee for
participation in the 2009 Plan. Unless earlier terminated by the board of directors, the 2009 Plan will expire on March 31, 2019. The board of
directors may amend the 2009 Plan at any time. Termination of the 2009 Plan and amendments to the 2009 Plan are not intended to adversely
affect any award that is then outstanding without the award holder s consent, and the Company must obtain stockholder approval of a 2009 Plan
amendment if stockholder approval is required to comply with any applicable, law or regulation.

Administration of the 2009 Plan

The 2009 Plan is administered by the compensation committee, which has the authority to, among other things, exercise all the powers and
authorities either specifically granted to it under the 2009 Plan or necessary or advisable in the administration of the 2009 Plan, including,
without limitation, the authority to determine who will be granted awards and the types of awards that may be granted. The compensation
committee may, in its sole discretion, without amendment to the 2009 Plan: (i) accelerate the date on which any option granted under the 2009
Plan becomes exercisable, waive or amend the operation of 2009 Plan provisions respecting exercise after termination of employment or
otherwise adjust any of the terms of the option and (ii) accelerate the vesting date, or waive any condition imposed under the 2009 Plan, with
respect to any restricted stock or other award, or otherwise adjust any of the terms applicable to any such award.

Equity Incentive Program

A maximum of 2,500,000 shares (subject to adjustment) of our common stock have been reserved for grants pursuant to the equity incentive
program under the 2009 Plan, and a maximum of 1,000,000 shares (subject to adjustment) may be issued pursuant to the exercise of incentive
stock options granted under the 2009 Plan. Under the 2009 Plan, no more than 600,000 shares (subject to adjustment) of our common stock may
be made subject to awards granted to a single individual in a single plan year. In the event that the compensation committee determines that any
corporate event, such as a stock split, reorganization, merger, consolidation, repurchase or share exchange, affects our common stock such that
an adjustment is appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the rights of 2009 Plan participants, then the compensation committee
will make those adjustments as it deems necessary or appropriate to any or all of:

the number and kind of shares of common stock or other securities that may thereafter be issued in connection with future awards;

the number and kind of shares of common stock, securities or other property issued or issuable in respect of outstanding awards;

the exercise price, grant price or purchase price relating to any award; and/or

the maximum number of shares subject to awards which may be awarded to any employee during any of our tax years;
provided that, with respect to incentive stock options, any such adjustment will be made in accordance with Section 424 of the Code.

In the event the outstanding shares of our common stock will be changed into or exchanged for any other class or series of capital stock or cash,
securities or other property pursuant to a re-capitalization, reclassification, merger, consolidation, combination or similar transaction, then,
unless otherwise determined by the compensation committee: (i) each stock option will thereafter generally become exercisable for the number
and/or kind of capital stock, and/or the amount of cash, securities or other property so distributed, into which the shares of common stock subject
to the stock option would have been changed or exchanged had the option been exercised in full prior to such transaction and (ii) each award that
is not a stock option and that is not automatically changed in connection with the transaction will represent the number and/or kind of shares of
capital stock, and/or the amount of cash, securities or other property so distributed, into which the number of shares of common stock covered by
the award would have been changed or exchanged had they been held by a stockholder.
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The 2009 Plan provides that unless otherwise determined by the compensation committee, if on or within one year following a change in control
(as defined in the 2009 Plan), a participant s employment is terminated by us other than for cause (as defined in the 2009 Plan) or by the
participant for good reason (as defined in the 2009 Plan): (i) any award or part of an award that is subject to time vesting that was not previously
vested will become fully vested and (ii) any award or portion thereof, the vesting or exercisability of which is based upon the achievement of
one or more performance goals within the one-year period following such termination of employment shall remain outstanding for a period of
one year following such termination of employment, subject at all times to the earlier expiration of the original term of such award, and if the
applicable goals are achieved during such period, the award shall become fully vested and exercisable.

Equity-based Awards The compensation committee will determine all of the terms and conditions of equity-based awards granted under the 2009
Plan, including whether the vesting or payment of an award will be subject to the attainment of performance goals. The performance goals that
may be applied to awards under the equity incentive program under the 2009 Plan are the same as those discussed below under ~ Cash Incentive
Programs.

Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Awards The terms and conditions of stock options and stock appreciation rights granted under the 2009
Plan are determined by the compensation committee and set forth in an agreement between us and the 2009 Plan participant. Stock options
granted under the 2009 Plan may be incentive stock options within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code or non-qualified stock options.
Pursuant to the 2009 Plan, a stock appreciation right confers on the participant the right to receive an amount, in cash or shares of our common
stock (in the discretion of the compensation committee), equal to the excess of the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date
of exercise over the exercise price of the stock appreciation right, and may be granted alone or in tandem with another award. No stock
appreciation rights have been granted under the 2009 Plan. The exercise price of an option granted under the 2009 Plan will not be less than the
fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant, unless otherwise provided by the compensation committee. The vesting of a stock
option or stock appreciation right will be subject to conditions as determined by the compensation committee, which may include the attainment
of performance goals.

Restricted Stock Awards The terms and conditions of awards of restricted stock granted under the 2009 Plan are determined by the compensation
committee and set forth in an agreement between the Company and the 2009 Plan participant. These awards are subject to restrictions on
transferability which may lapse under circumstances as determined by the compensation committee, which may include the attainment of
performance goals. Unless otherwise provided in the agreement, the holder of restricted stock will have the right to receive dividends on the
restricted stock, which dividends will be subject to the same restrictions as the underlying award of restricted stock.

The 2009 Plan also provides for other equity-based awards, the form and terms of which will be as determined by the compensation committee,
consistent with the purposes of the 2009 Plan. The vesting or payment of these awards may be made subject to the attainment of performance
goals.

Cash Incentive Programs

Under the 2009 Plan, the compensation committee is authorized to grant annual and long-term cash awards to plan participants, including our
executive officers. In general, with respect to cash awards intended to qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the
Code, the maximum value of the total cash payment that any plan participant may receive under the 2009 Plan s annual cash incentive program
for any year is $2.5 million, and the maximum value of the total cash payment that any plan participant may receive under the 2009 Plan s
long-term cash incentive program for any one year of a long-term performance period is $2.5 million.

Payment of awards granted under the cash incentive programs may be made subject to the attainment of performance goals to be determined by
the compensation committee in its discretion. With respect to awards intended to qualify as performance-based compensation under

Section 162(m) of the Code, the compensation committee may base performance goals on one or more of the following business criteria applied
to the
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Company, a subsidiary of the Company, a business unit, a product line or any combination thereof: (1) return on equity; (2) earnings per share;
(3) net income (before or after taxes); (4) earnings before all or any of interest, taxes, depreciation and/or amortization; (5) operating income

(6) cash flow; (7) return on assets; (8) market share; (9) cost reduction goals or levels of expenses, costs or liabilities; (10) earnings from
continuing operations; or (11) any combination of one or more of the foregoing over a specified period. Such qualified performance-based goals
may be expressed in terms of attaining a specified level of the particular criteria, the attainment of a percentage increase or decrease in the
particular criteria, or may be applied to our performance, a subsidiary of ours, a business unit, product line, or any combination thereof, relative
to a market index, a group of other companies (or their subsidiaries, business units or product lines), or a combination thereof. The compensation
committee has the authority to make appropriate adjustments to such qualified performance goals to reflect the impact of extraordinary items (as
defined in the 2009 Plan) not reflected in such goals.

Future grants under the 2009 Plan will be made at the discretion of the compensation committee and, accordingly, are not yet determinable. In
addition, the value of the awards granted under the 2009 Plan will depend on a number of factors, including the fair market value of our common
stock on future dates and the exercise decisions made by the participants and/or the extent to which any applicable performance goals necessary
for vesting or payment are achieved. Consequently, it is not possible to determine the benefits that might be received by participants receiving
discretionary grants under, or having their annual bonuses paid pursuant to, the 2009 Plan.

HUGHES Telematics, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan

Our 2006 Plan provides for share-based compensation awards, including incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options and share awards,
to our officers, employees, non-employee directors and non-employee consultants. There are 3,047,900 shares of common stock authorized for
issuance under the 2006 Plan. The 2006 Plan is administered by the compensation committee of our board of directors which determines
eligibility, amount, and other terms and conditions of awards. Options awarded under the 2006 Plan generally have a term of ten years and an
exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the underlying shares of common stock on the date of grant. Generally, half of each award
vests in equal parts over a period of three years of continued employment or service to the Company. The remaining half of each award vests
upon the achievement of certain pre-established performance goals set by our board of directors. In the event an option holder s service to us is
terminated for either (i) other than good reason, as defined in the 2006 Plan, before the fifth anniversary of the holder s service to the Company
or (ii) cause, we may repurchase any stock obtained through the exercise of a stock option within 180 days of such holder s termination date at a
price equal to the lesser of the fair market value of the stock on the date of termination or the exercise price of the stock option. In the event an
option holder s service is terminated for any of (i) good reason, as defined in the 2006 Plan, (ii) other than cause or (iii) following the fifth
anniversary of such holder s service to us, we may repurchase any stock obtained through the exercise of a stock option within 180 days of such
holder s termination date at a price equal to the fair market value of the stock on the date of termination. The 2006 Plan provides for the grant of
equity-based awards, including restricted common stock, restricted stock units, stock options, stock appreciation rights and other equity based
awards, as well as cash bonuses and long-term cash awards to our officers and other employees, advisors and consultants who are selected by the
compensation committee.

How the Company Expects to Choose Amounts for Each Element of Compensation

Each executive s current and prior compensation has been and is expected to be considered in setting future compensation. The elements of our
compensation plan (e.g., base salary, bonus and stock options or restricted stock) are common to many companies. The exact base pay, option or
stock grant, and bonus awarded by us is chosen in an effort to balance the competing objectives of fairness to all stakeholders and attracting and
retaining executives and other senior managers. In an effort to preserve capital, HUGHES Telematics any cash bonuses to our executive officers
for 2008, although Mr. Schneider received a cash bonus from Networkfleet. Bonuses for services provided in the year ended December 31, 2009
have not been determined. For additional information regarding the compensation of our executive officers, please see the Summary
Compensation Table below.
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We expect that future annual stock option grants to executive officers, including the named executive officers, and other employees will coincide
with the meeting of the compensation committee following year-end, at which discretionary bonuses are considered. Except in the case of new
hires, we do not expect the compensation committee generally to grant options on other dates. The grant date will be established when the
compensation committee approves the grant. The exercise price of an option granted under the 2009 Plan will not be less than the fair market
value of the common stock on the date of grant, unless otherwise provided by the compensation committee. If at the time of any planned option
grant date any member of the board of directors or executive team is aware of material non-public information, we would not generally make the
planned stock option grant. In such event, as soon as practical after material information is made public, the compensation committee will have a
specially called meeting and/or otherwise take all necessary steps to authorize a stock option grant.

Accounting and Tax Considerations

We comply with the accounting guidance governing share-based payments which requires us to value stock options grants periodically under the
fair value method and expense those amounts in the income statement over the stock option s vesting period.

We have structured our compensation program to comply with Code Sections 162(m) and 409A. Under Section 162(m) of the Code, a limitation
is placed on tax deductions of any publicly held corporation for individual compensation to certain executives of such corporation exceeding
$1,000,000 in any taxable year, unless the compensation is performance-based. If an executive is entitled to nonqualified deferred compensation
benefits that are subject to Section 409A, and such benefits do not comply with Section 409A, then the benefits are taxable in the first year they
are not subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. In such case, the executive is subject to regular federal income tax, interest and an additional
federal income tax of 20% of the benefit includible in income.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concerning compensation for our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and its three
other most highly compensated executive officers who were serving as executive officers as of December 31, 2009.

Option All Other

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus®) Awards® Compensation® Total
Jeffrey A. Leddy 2009  $350,000 $ $363,295 $ 8,946  $722,241
Chief Executive Officer 2008 351,153 129,872 11,196 492,221

2007 310,000 175,000 11,000 3,847 499,847
Erik J. Goldman 2009 325,000 189,544 8,817 523,361
President 2008 306,730 84,531 12,068 403,329

2007 225,000 225,000 7,160 10,877 468,037
Craig J. Kaufmann 2009 205,000 59,055 7,304 271,359
Vice President Finance and Treasurer 2008 200,576 10,736 7,919 219,231

2007 165,000 75,000 16,084 5,444 261,528
Robert C. Lewis® 2009 240,000 59,124 8,416 307,540
General Counsel and Secretary 2008 202,307 10,824 8,755 221,886

2007 89,490 25,000 15,739 8,142 138,371
Keith J. Schneider 2009 265,000 51,075 371 316,446
President and Chief Executive Officer,

2008 265,961 125,000 3,392 78,199 347,552
Networkfleet 2007 173,077 91,146 2,307 135,937 402,467
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Bonuses for services provided in the year ended December 31, 2009 have not been determined. Mr. Schneider s bonus for services
provided in the year ended December 31, 2008 was granted in April 2009 and is reflected in 2008. Messrs. Leddy, Goldman, Kaufmann
and Lewis did not receive a cash bonus for services provided in the year ended December 31, 2008. Bonuses for services provided in the
year ended December 31, 2007 were granted in April 2008 and are reflected in 2007.

The amount shown in this column are the amounts that we recognized as compensation expense in the year shown pursuant to SFAS

No. 123(R), except that in accordance with the rules of the SEC, these figures do not include estimates of forfeitures related to
service-based vesting conditions. For a discussion of the assumptions used in the valuation under SFAS No. 123(R), see Note 10 to our
consolidated financial statements on page F-37 of this prospectus.

Other compensation for Mr. Leddy includes (i) matching contributions to our 401(k) plan of $8,575 for 2009, $9,077 for 2008 and $358
for 2007, (ii) group term life insurance coverage in excess of $50,000 of $371 for 2009, $717 for 2008 and $690 for 2007 and

(iii) reimbursements under a supplemental medical reimbursement insurance plan of $1,402 for 2008 and $2,799 for 2007. Other
compensation for Mr. Goldman includes (i) matching contributions to the HUGHES Telematics 401(k) plan of $8,575 for 2009, $8,914 for
2008 and $6,490 for 2007, (ii) group term life insurance coverage in excess of $50,000 of $242 for 2009, $467 for 2008 and $450 for 2007
and (iii) reimbursements under a supplemental medical reimbursement insurance plan of $2,687 for 2008 and $3,937 for 2007. Other
compensation for Mr. Kaufmann includes (i) matching contributions to the HUGHES Telematics 401(k) plan of $7,175 for 2009, $7,020
for 2008 and $4,760 for 2007, (ii) group term life insurance coverage in excess of $50,000 of $129 for 2009, $249 for 2008 and $240 for
2007 and (iii) reimbursements under a supplemental medical reimbursement insurance plan of $650 for 2008 and $444 for 2007. Other
compensation for Mr. Lewis includes (i) matching contributions to the HUGHES Telematics 401(k) plan of $8,255 for 2009, $5,235 for
2008 and $2,481 for 2007, (ii) group term life insurance coverage in excess of $50,000 of $161 for 2009, $193 for 2008 and $164 for 2007
and (iii) reimbursements under a supplemental medical reimbursement insurance plan of $3,327 for 2008 and $5,497 for 2007. Other
compensation for Mr. Schneider includes (i) group term life insurance coverage in excess of $50,000 of $371 for 2009, $414 for 2008 and
$287 for 2007, (ii) reimbursement of certain relocation expenses of $135,650 for 2007 and (iii) reimbursement of taxes paid on amounts
reimbursed for relocation expense of $77,785 for 2008.

Mr. Lewis was named Secretary in July 2006 but was not entitled to compensation for his services until he became our part-time employee
in February 2007. Mr. Lewis became a full-time employee in May 2008.

Mr. Schneider was named President of Networkfleet on April 9, 2007. His salary in 2007 reflects a partial year.

2009 Grants of Plan Based Awards

The following table summarizes equity awards granted to HUGHES Telematics named executive officers during the year ended December 31,

2009.
All Other
All Other Option Awards: Grant Date
Option Awards: Number of Exercise or Fair Value
Number of Securities Base Price of Stock
Grant Shares of Stocks Underlying of Option and Option
Name Date or Units (#) Options (#) Awards ($/Sh) Awards™®
Jeffrey A. Leddy 6/5/2009 80,000 300,000 $ 5.19 $ 1,581,049
Erik J. Goldman 6/5/2009 40,000 150,000 5.19 707,249
Craig J. Kaufmann 6/5/2009 20,000 60,000 5.19 316,878
Robert C. Lewis 6/5/2009 20,000 60,000 5.19 316,878
Keith J. Schneider 6/5/2009 7,500 80,000 5.19 323,029

ey

The amount shown in this column represents the grant date fair value determined pursuant to the accounting guidance for share-based
payments, except that in accordance with the rules of the SEC, these figures do not
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include estimates of forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. For a discussion of the assumptions used in the valuation under
the accounting guidance, see Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements on page F-47 of this proxy statement.
Employment Agreements

Our named executive officers other than Mr. Schneider are at-will employees. We have not entered into agreements with them that provide for
any material element of compensation, rather, such agreements provide for participation in our standard employee benefit plans and contain
restrictive covenants concerning our confidential information.

Keith J. Schneider. Effective March 23, 2007, Networkfleet entered into a letter agreement with Keith J. Schneider concerning his employment.

In addition to providing for a base salary of $250,000 per annum, Mr. Schneider s letter agreement provides that he is eligible to receive a bonus
following the end of each full calendar year during his employment, based upon achievement against both objective and subjective goals
established by the board of directors of Networkfleet in its sole discretion (following consultation with him), in an amount equal to up to 50% of
his salary. Mr. Schneider s actual bonus for 2007 was pro-rated as he commenced employment with Networkfleet in April 2007. Mr. Schneider s
letter agreement provides that the board of directors of Networkfleet may consider granting an additional annual bonus if Mr. Schneider
significantly exceeds the goals previously set. Information concerning the termination provisions of Mr. Schneider s letter agreement is set forth
below, at Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control.

Outstanding Equity Awards

The following table summarizes the outstanding equity award holdings of our executive officers as of December 31, 2009.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Market
Equity Incentive Number Value of
Number of Number of Plan Awards: of Shares Shares or
Securities Securities Number of or Units Units of
Underlying Underlying Securities of Stock Stock
Unexercised Unexercised Underlying That That
Options Options Unexercised Option Have Not Have Not
Exercisable  Unexercisable Unearned Exercise Price Option Vested Vested
Name #) #) Options (#) [€3) Expiration Date #) €))
Jeffrey A. Leddy 56,064 28,032 403,567 $ 247 11/30/17M 80,000 $ 260,000
175,000 175,000 5.19 6/5/19®
Erik J. Goldman 42,048 21,024 302,675 2.47 11/30/17® 40,0004 130,000
75,000 75,000 5.19 6/5/19@
Craig J. Kaufmann 5,606 37,064 1.65 1/8/17® 20,0001 65,000
4,204 2,102 30,268 2.47 11/30/17©
60,000 5.19 6/5/197
Robert C. Lewis 5,606 37,064 1.65 3/9/17® 20,0004 65,000
4,204 2,102 30,268 247 11/30/17®
60,000 5.19 6/5/1910
Keith J. Schneider 5,606 2,803 64,740 1.65 4/11/174D 7,500 24,375
80,000 5.19 6/5/1912)

(1)  This option award was granted on November 30, 2007 and vests as follows: (i) 365,748 shares vest in three equal installments on
November 30, 2008, November 30, 2009 and November 30, 2010, provided that 281,652 of these shares are earn-out options which are
exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets within five years
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after closing of the Merger; and (ii) 121,915 shares vest upon the execution of an additional agreement with an additional automaker,
provided that 93,883 of these shares are earn-out options which are exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets
prior to March 31, 2014.

This option award was granted on June 5, 2009 and vests as follows: (i) 175,000 shares vest in three installments of 87,500 shares on

June 5, 2011, 43,750 shares on June 5, 2012 and 43,750 shares on June 5, 2013; and (ii) 175,000 shares are earn-out options which are
exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets prior to March 31, 2014.

This option award was granted on November 30, 2007 and vests as follows: (i) 274,311 shares vest in three equal installments on
November 30, 2008, November 30, 2009 and November 30, 2010, provided that 211,239 of these shares are earn-out options which are
exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets within five years after closing of the Merger; and (ii) 91,436 shares
vest upon the execution of an additional agreement with an additional automaker, provided that 70,412 of these shares are earn-out options
which are exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets prior to March 31, 2014.

This option award was granted on June 5, 2009 and vests as follows: (i) 75,000 shares vest in three installments of 37,500 shares on

June 5, 2011, 18,750 shares on June 5, 2012 and 18,750 shares on June 5, 2013; and (ii) 75,000 shares are earn-out options which are
exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets prior to March 31, 2014.

This option award was granted on January 8, 2007 and vests as follows: (i) 24,384 shares vest in two equal installments on August 1, 2008
and August 1, 2009, provided that 18,778 of these shares are earn-out options which are exercisable only upon the achievement of certain
share price targets within five years after closing of the Merger; and (ii) 18,286 shares vest upon the execution of an additional agreement
with an additional automaker, provided that 14,081 of these shares are earn-out options which are exercisable only upon the achievement
of certain share price targets prior to March 31, 2014.

This option award was granted on November 30, 2007 and vests as follows: (i) 27,432 shares vest in three equal installments on
November 30, 2008, November 30, 2009 and November 30, 2010, provided that 21,126 of these shares are earn-out options which are
exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets within five years after closing of the Merger; and (ii) 9,142 shares vest
upon the execution of an additional agreement with an additional automaker, provided that 7,040 of these shares are earn-out options
which are exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets prior to March 31, 2014.

This option award was granted on June 5, 2009 and vests in three installments of 30,000 shares on June 5, 2011, 15,000 shares on June 5,
2012 and 15,000 shares on June 5, 2013.

This option award was granted on March 9, 2007 and vests as follows: (i) 24,384 shares vest in two equal installments on August 1, 2008
and August 1, 2009, provided that 18,778 of these shares are earn-out options which are exercisable only upon the achievement of certain
share price targets within five years after closing of the Merger; and (ii) 18,286 shares vest upon the execution of an additional agreement
with an additional automaker, provided that 14,081 of these shares are earn-out options which are exercisable only upon the achievement
of certain share price targets prior to March 31, 2014.

This option award was granted on November 30, 2007 and vests as follows: (i) 27,432 shares vest in three equal installments on
November 30, 2008, November 30, 2009 and November 30, 2010, provided that 21,126 of these shares are earn-out options which are
exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets within five years after closing of the Merger; and (ii) 9,142 shares vest
upon the execution of an additional agreement with an additional automaker, provided that 7,040 of these shares are earn-out options
which are exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets prior to March 31, 2014.

This option award was granted on June 5, 2009 and vests in three installments of 30,000 shares on June 5, 2011, 15,000 shares on June 5,
2012 and 15,000 shares on June 5, 2013.

This option award was granted on April 11, 2007 and vests as follows: (i) 36,576 shares vest in three equal installments on April 9,

2008, April 9, 2009 and April 9, 2010, provided that 28,167 of these shares are earn-out options which are exercisable only upon the
achievement of certain share price targets within five years after closing of the Merger; and (ii) 36,573 shares vest on March 31, 2010 to
the extent the EBITDA of Networkfleet exceeds $18.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, provided that 28,163 of these shares
are earn-out options which are exercisable only upon the achievement of certain share price targets prior to March 31, 2014.

This option award was granted on June 5, 2009 and vests in three installments of 40,000 shares on June 5, 2011, 20,000 shares on June 5,
2012 and 20,000 shares on June 5, 2013.

These restricted stock awards were granted on June 5, 2009 and vest on June 5, 2012.
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested

No stock options were exercised and no restricted stock vested by our executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2009.
Pension Benefits and Non-qualified Deferred Compensation

None of our executive officers participates in or has an account balance in qualified or non-qualified defined benefit pension plans or
non-qualified defined contribution plans sponsored by us.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

We have entered into an employment agreement with Keith J. Schneider that provides for severance payments to be made in the event that

Mr. Schneider s employment is terminated by us without cause or if Mr. Schneider terminates his employment with us for good reason (both
terms as defined in the agreement). In this event, Mr. Schneider would be entitled to severance pay equal to one year s base salary and bonus,
subject to Mr. Schneider s execution and non-revocation of a release of claims in favor of us and our affiliates, and his agreement to make

himself available for consultation and transition services for a 90-day period following such termination of employment. If Mr. Schneider s
employment with us had been terminated under qualifying circumstances on December 31, 2009, he would have been entitled to severance pay
having an aggregate value not exceeding $397,500. Other material terms of Mr. Schneider s employment agreement with us are set forth above in
the section entitled Compensation Discussion and Analysis Employment Agreements.

None of our executive officers is entitled to payment upon a change of control.
Director Compensation

Each of our non-employee directors receives an annual retainer for service on our board of directors, along with expenses incurred in connection
with attending each meeting. On May 6, 2009, we granted 36,000 shares of restricted stock under the 2009 Equity and Incentive Plan to each of
our non-employee directors. Shares of such common stock may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed
by the reporting person until they vest and become transferable. The common stock vests in three equal installments. The first installment vests
and becomes transferable on March 31, 2010, and the next two installments vest and become transferable on March 31, 2011 and March 31,
2012. The following table sets forth a summary of the compensation we paid to our non-employee directors for the year ended December 31,
2009.

Fees Earned or

Paid in Cash Stock Awards Option Awards Total

Name $) $® D $)

Andrew D. Africk $ 15,000 $ 34,956 $ 11,286 $61,242
Marc V. Byron 15,000 34,956 49,956
Andrew P. Hines 26,250 34,956 61,206
Warren N. Lieberfarb 22,500 34,956 57,456
Steven Martinez 15,000 34,956 49,956
Matthew H. Nord 15,000 34,956 10,606 60,562
Aaron J. Stone 15,000 34,956 49,956
Mark VanStekelenburg 22,500 34,956 57,456

(1) The amount shown in these columns are the amounts that we recognized as compensation pursuant to the accounting guidance governing
share-based payment, except that in accordance with the rules of the SEC, these figures do not include estimates of forfeitures related to
service-based vesting conditions. For a discussion of the assumptions used in the valuation under the accounting guidance, see Note 10 to
our consolidated financial statements on page F-47 of this prospectus.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Hughes Communications, Inc. and Hughes Network Systems, LLC

In July 2006, HNS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HCI, which is controlled by investment funds that are affiliates of Apollo, granted a limited
license to us allowing us to use the HUGHES trademark. The license is limited in that we may use the HUGHES trademark only in connection
with our business of automotive telematics and only in combination with the Telematics name. As partial consideration for the license, the
agreement provides that HNS will be our preferred engineering services provider. The license is royalty-free, except that we agreed to
commence paying a royalty to HNS in the event we no longer have a commercial or affiliated relationship with HNS. As contemplated by the
license terms and while the definitive agreement governing the relationship was being negotiated, HNS provided engineering development
services to us pursuant to an Authorization to Proceed. In January 2008, we executed a definitive agreement with HNS pursuant to which HNS is
continuing to provide us with engineering development and manufacturing services. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
HNS provided approximately $23.4 million, $30.9 million and $21.6 million of services, respectively, to us. As of September 30, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, we had an outstanding balance, not including the equipment financing discussed below, of approximately $8.5 million and
$8.9 million, respectively, payable to HNS.

In October 2007, HNS entered into an agreement with us and a customer of ours, whereby HNS agreed to assume our rights and performance
obligations under that agreement in the event that it failed to perform its obligations due to a fundamental cause such as bankruptcy or the
cessation of its telematics business. In connection with that agreement, we entered into a letter agreement with HNS pursuant to which we
agreed to take certain actions to enable HNS to assume its obligations in the event that such action is required. We believe that agreement
terminated upon completion of the Merger.

In June 2008, we entered into an arrangement with HNS pursuant to which HNS purchased, on our behalf, certain production equipment for an
aggregate amount of approximately $2.0 million. Under this arrangement, we agreed to pay HNS at a rate of $4.94 per telematics hardware
device manufactured using the equipment, provided that (i) we were to pay HNS a minimum of $0.2 million under this arrangement by
December 31, 2009 and (ii) we were to pay HNS the balance of the amount owed under this arrangement plus all accrued interest by
December 31, 2010. Interest accrued on the outstanding balance at a rate of 11.00% per annum. As of September 30, 2009, we had an
outstanding balance related to the equipment financing of approximately $2.3 million.

In March 2009, prior to the Merger, HCI purchased 1,300,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock from us. The shares were issued to HCI in
satisfaction of $13.0 million of trade receivables then currently owed by us to HNS. In connection with the Merger, HCI became a party to the
Escrow Agreement and the Shareholders Agreement.

In December 2009, we issued to HNS a senior unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of approximately $8.3 million through the
conversion of a trade accounts payable balance of approximately $6.0 million and the approximately $2.3 million outstanding balance on the
equipment financing arrangement owed to HNS. The promissory note will accrue interest at a rate of 12.00% per annum, compounded annually,
and become due and payable on December 31, 2010. We are required to make scheduled principal payments of approximately $0.8 million on
April 15,2010 and $1.5 million on each of July 15, 2010 and October 15, 2010. In addition, subject to all restrictions in the First Lien Credit
Agreement and Second Lien Credit Agreement and certain other limitations, to the extent we sell any capital equipment purchased by us (or
purchased by HNS on our behalf) for use in connection with the Telematics Agreement between the parties, but no longer needed by us, we shall
make unscheduled prepayments of principal on the promissory note equal to the proceeds from the sale of such capital equipment (net of any
selling costs).
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HCl is controlled by investment funds affiliated with Apollo. In addition, three members of our board of directors, including Mr. Leddy, our
chief executive officer, and Messrs. Africk and Stone, board members affiliated with Apollo, are members of the board of managers of HNS and
the board of directors of HCI. In addition, Mr. Leddy owns less than 1% of the equity of HCI as of September 30, 2009 and approximately
16.4% of the non-voting Class B membership interests of HNS.

Apollo Global Management LLC
Communications LLC, AIF V PLASE and PLASE HT are each affiliated with Apollo.

In March 2008, we issued to Communications LLC a senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of $12.5 million
and a maturity date of October 1, 2013. The note bears interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum which is compounded and added to the principal
amount annually and is payable at maturity.

In December 2008, we issued AIF V PLASE (i) for aggregate consideration of $5.0 million, senior secured term indebtedness with a principal
amount of $5.0 million and warrants to purchase 402,993 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per share and (ii) a senior
subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of $3.5 million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013.

In March 2009, AIF V PLASE purchased 1,200,000 shares of our Series B Preferred Stock in exchange for $12.0 million of cash. In addition, in
connection with the Merger, Apollo or certain of its affiliates became signatories to each of the Shareholders Agreement and the Escrow
Agreement. Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, Apollo serves as escrow representative.

In December 2009, we entered into the Second Lien Credit Agreement with PLASE HT, as administrative agent, collateral agent and original
lender, pursuant to which we issued indebtedness due October 1, 2013 with an original principal amount of $15.0 million. The loans under the
Second Lien Credit Agreement bear interest at 9.00% per annum, payable-in-kind, and are guaranteed by all of our existing and future domestic
subsidiaries. The loans are secured by a second priority lien on substantially all of our tangible and intangible assets, including the equity
interests of our subsidiaries. The liens granted in connection with the Second Lien Credit Agreement are expressly subject and subordinated to
the liens securing our obligations under the First Lien Credit Agreement. In connection with the issuance of the Second Lien Credit Agreement,
we issued PLASE HT a warrant to purchase 3,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $6.00 per share and entered into a
customary registration rights agreement.

In December 2009, AIF V PLASE transferred its ownership in all of its equity and debt interests of us, including its holding of senior secured
term indebtedness, the senior subordinated unsecured promissory note and common stock, to PLASE HT.

Trivergance Business Resources, LLC and Trivergance, LLC

In September 2008, we entered into a services agreement with TBR, an affiliate of Marc Byron, a member of our board of directors, pursuant to
which TBR provided a marketing assessment and other research to aid in creating a marketing and retention platform for us. We paid TBR a fee
of approximately $0.2 million, reasonable and customary travel expenses and certain other expenses incurred in connection with the
engagement. Additionally, in November 2008, we entered into a letter agreement with TBR pursuant to which we engaged TBR to provide
certain marketing services in exchange for an approximately $0.1 million monthly draw against a per subscriber fee payable on certain
subscribers acquired beginning in November 2008 and continuing through December 2010. In January 2010, the parties entered into an amended
agreement to remove the per-subscriber fee and continue under a fixed fee retainer of approximately $0.1 million per month. For the year ended
December 31, 2009, TBR provided approximately $1.4 million of services to us.
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Mr. Byron is also an affiliate of Trivergance. For consulting and financial advisory services provided in connection with the sale of the Series B
Preferred Stock, we paid Trivergance approximately $1.3 million of cash and issued Trivergance a warrant to purchase 314,117 shares of
Company common stock, comprised of 72,224 initial shares and 241,893 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of approximately
$0.167 per share. Pursuant to the same engagement letter, in connection with the private placement completed in December 2009, we paid
Trivergance, an affiliate of a member of our board of directors, approximately $0.1 million of cash. Mr. Byron was the former Chief Executive
Officer of Polaris and served as a member of Polaris board of directors.

Director Independence

Because our equity securities are traded on the OTC Bulletin Board, we are not subject to any director independence requirements that may
apply if our common stock was listed a national securities exchange, such as the NYSE Amex. We are subject to the director independence
requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act with respect to members of our Audit Committee. Prior to their appointment to our board
of directors, each of Messrs. Lieberfarb, Hines and VanStekelenburg was determined by our board of directors to meet the independence
requirements of both the NYSE Amex and Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act.
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STOCK OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The table below sets forth the beneficial ownership as of February 11, 2010. The table sets forth the actual beneficial ownership of our common
stock by the following individuals or entities:

each person who own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our capital stock;

each of our directors and executive officers; and

all of our directors and executive officers as a group.
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC. Except as otherwise indicated, each person or entity named in the
tables is expected to have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our capital stock shown as beneficially owned, subject
to applicable community property laws.

As of February 11, 2010, 87,087,624 shares of our common stock were issued and outstanding, of which 58,498,131 were earn-out shares or
sponsor earn-out shares placed in escrow pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, to be released contingent upon our common stock meeting
specified share price targets over the five-year period following the closing of the Merger. The information presented under Column A in the
table below reflects beneficial ownership excluding all shares subject to earn-out. Note that the beneficial ownership percentages under Column
A do not reflect the voting power beneficially owned by these individuals and entities because their earn-out shares may be voted without
restriction, which will have the net effect of increasing the voting power held by the stockholders holding such earn-out shares and decreasing
the voting power held by other stockholders. The information presented under Column B in the table below reflects beneficial ownership
including all shares subject to earn-out and reflects the voting power beneficially owned by the listed individuals and entities.

We have assumed no exercise of the outstanding warrants or options (other than, in the case of each individual or entity listed in the table below,
warrants or stock options held by that individual or entity that will be exercisable for our common stock within 60 days of February 11, 2010).

Column A Column B
Beneficial Ownership Beneficial Ownership
(Excluding Earn-out Shares) (Including Earn-out Shares)
Amount Amount
and and
Nature of Percentage of Nature of Percentage of
Beneficial Outstanding Beneficial Outstanding

Name of Beneficial Owner(®) Ownership Common Stock Ownership Common Stock
Apollo Management V, L.P. 17,966,220@ 56.9% 63,467,2843) 70.5%
Wellington Management Company, LLP 6,164,827@ 21.6% 9,914,827 11.4%
Jeffrey A. Leddy 220,161©® 0.8% 689,580 0.8%
Erik J. Goldman 166,145® 0.6% 588,622 0.7%
Craig J. Kaufmann 36,81919 0.1% 93,1510 0.1%
Robert C. Lewis 36,8192 0.1% 93,1510 0.1%
Keith J. Schneider 15,9094 0.1% 44,0761 0.1%
Andrew D. Africk 39,5049 0.1% 51,240017 0.1%
Marc V. Byron 1,662,343 5.6% 2,237,26149 2.5%
Andrew P. Hines 36,0009 0.1% 36,0009 0.0%
Warren N. Lieberfarb 36,0009 0.1% 36,0009 0.0%
Steven Martinez 36,000D 0.1% 36,000D 0.0%
Matthew H. Nord 39,5042 0.1% 51,2403 0.1%
Aaron J. Stone 36,0004 0.1% 36,0004 0.0%
Mark VanStekelenburg 36,0002 0.1% 36,0002 0.0%

2,397,204 8.1% 4,028,321¢9 4.5%
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All current directors and executive officers as a group
(13 individuals)

€]

Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of the individuals who are our current officers and directors is 2002 Summit Boulevard,
Suite 1800, Atlanta, Georgia 30319.
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Includes (i) 12,373,560 shares of common stock held by Communications LLC, (ii) 1,292,660 shares of common stock held by PLASE
HT, (iii) 3,000,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants held by PLASE HT and (iv) 1,300,000 shares of common
stock held by HCI. Apollo Management V, L.P. ( Management V ) is the manager of Communications LLC. Apollo Management, L.P.
( Management ), an SEC registered investment adviser, is the sole member and manager of AIF V Management, LLC ( Management V
GP ), which is the general partner of Management V. Apollo Management GP, LLC ( Management GP ) is the general partner of
Management. Apollo Management Holdings, L.P. ( Management Holdings ) is the sole member and manager of Management GP. The
general partner of Management Holdings is Apollo Management Holdings GP, LLC ( Management Holdings GP ). AIF V PLASE has
been delegated management authority for PLASE HT. Apollo Advisors V, L.P. ( Advisors V ) is the general partner of AIF V PLASE.
Apollo Capital Management V, Inc. ( Capital Management V ) is the general partner of Advisors V. Apollo Principal Holdings I, L.P.

( Principal Holdings ) is the sole stockholder of Capital Management V, and Apollo Principal Holdings I GP, LLC ( Apollo Principal GP )

is the general partner of Principal Holdings. According to a Schedule 13D filed on April 10, 2009, Apollo Investment Fund IV, L.P. and
other investment funds affiliated with Apollo Investment Fund IV s manager, Apollo Management IV, L.P. or general partner, Apollo
Advisors IV, L.P., controlled approximately 57.7% of the voting power of HCI. Management is the managing general partner of Apollo
Management IV, L.P. Apollo Capital Management IV, Inc. (  Capital Management IV ) is the general partner of Apollo Advisors IV, L.P.
Principal Holdings is the sole stockholder of Capital Management IV. Leon Black, Joshua Harris and Marc Rowan are the principal
executive officers and managers of Management Holdings GP and Apollo Principal GP, and as such may be deemed to have voting
and/or dispositive powers with respect to the shares owned by Communications LLC, PLASE HT and HCI. Each of Messrs. Black,
Harris and Rowan disclaims beneficial ownership of any shares of common stock owned or to be received by Apollo, except to the extent
of any pecuniary interest therein. The business address of Management V is 9 West 57th Street, 43rd Floor, New York, New York 10019.
Includes (i) the shares of common stock described in footnote (2) above, (ii) 41,440,731 earn-out shares held by Communications LLC,
(iii) 2,110,333 earn-out shares held by PLASE HT and (iv) 1,950,000 earn-out shares held by HCI.

Includes shares of common stock held by investment advisory clients of Wellington Management. Wellington Management is an
investment adviser registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. Wellington Management, in such capacity, may
be deemed to share beneficial ownership over the shares held by its client accounts. The business address of Wellington Management is
75 State Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02109.

Includes the shares of common stock described in footnote (4) above and 3,750,000 earn-out shares held by investment advisory clients
of Wellington Management.

Includes (i) 58,391 shares of common stock held by Mr. Leddy, (ii) 25,706 shares of common stock held by the Jeffrey A. Leddy Grantor
Retained Annuity Trust, (iii) 80,000 shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Leddy under the 2009 Plan and (iv) 56,064 shares
of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options that are exercisable within 60 days.

Includes (i) the shares of common stock described in footnote (6) above, (ii) 195,560 earn-out shares held by Mr. Leddy, (iii) 86,091
earn-out shares held by the Jeffrey A. Leddy Grantor Retained Annuity Trust, and (iv) 187,768 shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of earn-out options that are exercisable within 60 days.

Includes (i) 84,097 shares of common stock held by Mr. Goldman, (ii) 40,000 shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Goldman
under the 2009 Plan and (iii) 42,048 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options that are exercisable within 60 days.
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Includes (i) the shares of common stock described in footnote (8) above, (ii) 281,651 earn-out shares held by Mr. Goldman and

(iii) 140,826 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of earn-out options that are exercisable within 60 days.

Includes (i) 7,009 shares of common stock currently held by Mr. Kaufmann, (ii) 20,000 shares of restricted common stock granted to
Mr. Kaufmann under the 2009 Plan and (iii) 9,810 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options that are exercisable
within 60 days.

Includes (i) the shares of common stock described in footnote (10) above, (ii) 23,470 earn-out shares held by Mr. Kaufmann and

(iii) 32,862 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of earn-out options that are exercisable within 60 days.

Includes (i) 7,009 shares of common stock currently held by Mr. Lewis, (ii) 20,000 shares of restricted common stock granted to

Mr. Lewis under the 2009 Plan and (iii) 9,810 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options that are exercisable within
60 days.

Includes (i) the shares of common stock described in footnote (12) above, (ii) 23,470 earn-out shares held by Mr. Lewis and (iii) 32,862
shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of earn-out options that are exercisable within 60 days.

Includes 7,500 shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Schneider under the 2009 Plan and 8,409 shares of common stock
issuable upon exercise of stock options that are exercisable within 60 days.

Includes the shares of common stock described in footnote (14) above and 28,167 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
earn-out options that are exercisable within 60 days.

Includes 36,000 shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Africk under the 2009 Plan and 3,504 shares of common stock issuable
upon exercise of stock options that are exercisable within 60 days. Does not include any shares of common stock held by
Communications LLC, HCI and PLASE HT, each of which is an affiliate of Apollo, of which Mr. Africk is a senior partner. Mr. Africk
disclaims beneficial ownership of any shares of common stock owned by any affiliates of Apollo, except to the extent of any pecuniary
interest therein.

Includes the shares of common stock described in footnote (16) above, and 11,736 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
earn-out options that are exercisable within 60 days.

Includes (i) 621,293 shares of common stock held by Byron Business Ventures XX, LLC, an entity controlled by Mr. Byron, (ii) 36,000
shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Byron under the 2009 Plan, (iii) 900,000 shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of warrants held by Byron Business Ventures XX, LLC and (iv) 105,050 shares of common stock held by Trivergance, an entity
controlled by Mr. Byron.

Includes (i) the shares of common stock described in footnote (18) above, (ii) 333,025 earn-out shares held by Byron Business

Ventures XX, LLC and (iii) 241,893 earn-out shares held by Trivergance.

Includes shares of restricted common stock granted under the 2009 Plan.

Includes shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Martinez under the 2009 Plan. Does not include any shares of common stock
held by Communications LLC, HCI and PLASE HT, each of which is an affiliate of Apollo, of which Mr. Martinez serves as a partner.
Mr. Martinez disclaims beneficial ownership of any shares of common stock owned by any affiliates of Apollo, except to the extent of
any pecuniary interest therein.

Includes 36,000 shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Nord under the 2009 Plan and 3,504 shares of common stock issuable
upon exercise of stock options that are exercisable within 60 days. Does not include any shares of common stock held by
Communications LLC, HCI and PLASE HT, each of which is an affiliate of Apollo, of which Mr. Nord serves as a principal. Mr. Nord
disclaims beneficial ownership of any shares of common stock owned by any affiliates of Apollo, except to the extent of any pecuniary
interest therein.

Includes the shares of common stock described in footnote (22) above, and 11,736 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
earn-out options that are exercisable within 60 days.

Includes shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Stone under the 2009 Plan. Does not include any shares of common stock held
by Communications LLC, HCI and PLASE HT, each of which is an affiliate of Apollo, of which Mr. Stone serves as a senior partner.
Mr. Stone disclaims beneficial ownership
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of any shares of common stock owned by any affiliates of Apollo, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein.

(25) Includes (i) 908,555 shares of common stock, (ii) 900,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants, (iii) 455,500
shares of restricted common stock granted under the 2009 Plan and (iv) 133,149 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock
options that are exercisable within 60 days.

(26) Includes (i) the shares of common stock described in footnote (25) above, (ii) 852,135 earn-out shares, (iii) 333,026 sponsor earn-out
shares and (iv) 445,957 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of earn-out options that are exercisable within 60 days.
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
Common Stock
Authorized and Outstanding

We are authorized to issue up to 155,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of which 87,087,624 shares are outstanding
as of the date of this prospectus.

Voting Rights

Holders of our common stock have the right to cast one vote for each share of stock in their name on the books of our company, whether
represented in person or by proxy, on all matters submitted to a vote of holders of common stock, including election of directors. There is no
right to cumulative voting in election of directors. Except where a greater requirement is provided by statute, by our certificate of incorporation
or by-laws, the presence, in person or by proxy duly authorized, of one or more holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of our common
stock constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business. The vote by the holders of a majority of outstanding shares is required to effect certain
fundamental corporate changes such as liquidation, merger, or amendment of our articles of incorporation.

Dividends

Although there are no restrictions in our certificate of incorporation or by-laws that prevent us from declaring dividends, we have not declared
any dividends to date and do not plan to declare any dividends in the foreseeable future. Our ability to pay dividends is subject to the terms of
our debt agreements which, among other things, limit the amount of dividends we may pay.

Preemptive Rights

Holders of our common stock are not entitled to preemptive rights, and no redemption or sinking fund provisions are applicable to our common
stock. All outstanding shares of our common stock are, and the shares of common stock sold in the offering will when issued, be fully paid and
non-assessable.

Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share. No shares of preferred stock are outstanding
as of the date of this prospectus.

Units and Warrants

On January 17, 2008, we completed our initial public offering of 15,000,000 units at $10.00 per unit. Each unit consists of one share of our
common stock, $0.0001 par value, and one redeemable common stock purchase warrant (the IPO warrants ). In conjunction with the
consummation of the initial public offering, we sold an aggregate of 4,500,000 warrants to certain existing stockholders on a private placement
basis at a price of $1.00 per warrant, for an aggregate price of $4.5 million. The 4,500,000 warrants sold to certain existing stockholders on a
private placement basis are the warrants being offered by the selling security holders pursuant to this prospectus. Each warrant and IPO warrant
entitles the holder to purchase from us one share of common stock at an exercise price of $7.00. The warrants and TPO warrants expire on

January 10, 2012 at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, or upon earlier redemption by us: (i) in whole and not in part; (ii) at a price of $0.01 per
warrant or [PO warrant at any time after the warrants or IPO warrants become exercisable; (iii) upon not less than 30 days prior written notice of
redemption; and (iv) if, and only if, the reported last sale price of the common stock equals or exceeds $14.25 per share, for any 20 trading days
within a 30 trading day period ending three business days before we send the notice of redemption.
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The right to exercise the warrants and IPO warrants will be forfeited unless they are exercised prior to the date specified in the notice of
redemption. On and after the redemption date, a record holder of a warrant or IPO warrants will have no further rights except to receive the
redemption price for such holder s warrant or [PO warrant upon surrender of such warrant or IPO warrant.

The warrants offered pursuant to this prospectus are identical to the [PO warrants underlying the units sold in our initial public offering except
that if the IPO warrants are called for redemption, the warrants offered pursuant to this prospectus will be exercisable on a cashless basis so long
as they are still held by the selling stockholders or their affiliates. If the selling security holders retain any warrants and take advantage of this
option, they would pay the exercise price by surrendering their warrants for that number of shares of common stock equal to the quotient
obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of common stock underlying the warrants, multiplied by the difference between the
exercise price of the warrants and the fair market value (defined below) by (y) the fair market value. The fair market value shall mean the
average reported last sale price of the common stock for the 10 trading days ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the notice
of redemption is sent to holders of warrants and IPO warrants.

The exercise price and number of shares of common stock issuable on exercise of the warrants may be adjusted in certain circumstances
including in the event of a stock dividend, or our recapitalization, reorganization, merger or consolidation. However, the warrants will not be
adjusted for issuances of common stock at a price below their respective exercise prices.

The warrants may be exercised upon surrender of the warrant certificate on or prior to the expiration date at the offices of Continental Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, as warrant agent, with the exercise form on the reverse side of the warrant certificate completed and executed as
indicated, accompanied by full payment of the exercise price, by certified or official bank check payable to us, for the number of warrants being
exercised. The warrant holders do not have the rights or privileges of holders of common stock and any voting rights until they exercise their
warrants and receive shares of common stock. After the issuance of shares of common stock upon exercise of the warrants, each holder will be
entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters to be voted on by stockholders.

No warrants will be exercisable and we will not be obligated to issue shares of common stock unless at the time a holder seeks to exercise such
warrant, a prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants is current and the common stock has been registered
or qualified or deemed to be exempt under the securities laws of the state of residence of the holder of the warrants. Under the terms of the
warrant agreement, we have agreed to use our best efforts to meet these conditions and to maintain a current prospectus relating to the common
stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants until the expiration of the warrants. However, we cannot assure you that we will be able to do so
and, if we do not maintain a current prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants, holders will be unable to
exercise their warrants and we will not be required to settle any such warrant exercise. If the prospectus relating to the common stock issuable
upon the exercise of the warrants is not current or if the common stock is not qualified or exempt from qualification in the jurisdictions in which
the holders of the warrants reside, we will not be required to net cash settle or cash settle the warrant exercise, the warrants may have no value,
the market for the warrants may be limited and the warrants may expire worthless.

No fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the warrants. If, upon exercise of the warrants, a holder would be entitled to receive a
fractional interest in a share, we will, upon exercise, round up to the nearest whole number the number of shares of common stock to be issued to
the warrant holder.

As of February 11, 2010, there were an aggregate of 16,743,180 warrants and IPO warrants outstanding.
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Immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger, Polaris, the initial shareholders of Polaris, and certain securityholders of Old HTI,
including those selling security holders who were holders of Series B Preferred Stock ( Series B Selling security holders ), entered into the
Shareholders Agreement.

The Series B Selling security holders agreed not to transfer any shares of our common stock issued to them in the Merger for a period of six
months after the closing of the Merger, with certain limited exceptions for private transfers (e.g., to family members) where the transferee agrees
to be bound by the terms of the lock-up exceptions. The holders of Old HTI s common stock party to the Shareholders Agreement agreed not to
transfer any shares of our common stock, including shares of our common stock underlying stock options, issued to them in the Merger for a
period of two years after the closing of the Merger, with certain limited exceptions for private transfers (e.g., to family members) where the
transferee agrees to be bound by the terms of the lock-up exceptions. Polaris initial stockholders agreed not to transfer any shares of our common
stock for a period of one year after the closing of the Merger, with certain limited exceptions for private transfers (e.g., to family members)

where the transferee agrees to be bound by the terms of the lock-up exceptions.

Additionally, Polaris 1initial stockholders and holders of Old HTI s common stock agreed not to transfer, as applicable, (i) any sponsor earn-out
shares or (ii) any earn-out shares, including shares of our common stock underlying earn-out options, issued to them in the Merger and placed in
escrow pursuant to the escrow agreement, until:

with respect to shares released from escrow between the first and second anniversaries (including the second anniversary) of the
closing of the Merger, upon the achievement of the share price target for the first tranche of earn-out shares, one year following the
distribution of these securities from escrow; and

with respect to any other shares released from escrow (including sponsor earn-out shares and earn-out shares in the first tranche that
are not released on or before the second anniversary of the closing of the Merger), the earlier of (i) six months following the
distribution of these shares from escrow and (ii) the fifth anniversary of the closing of the Merger.
All of the holders of Old HTI s common stock are subject to these transfer restrictions except for one non-employee, unaffiliated stockholder of
HUGHES Telematics, who owned fewer than 50,000 shares of our common stock at the closing of the Merger (including earn-out shares).
Parties to the Shareholders Agreement may vote the earn-out shares, escrowed indemnity shares and sponsor earn-out shares, as applicable,
without restriction while they remain in escrow.

The parties to the Shareholders Agreement agreed that in the event Marc V. Byron, one of our directors, resigns, is removed, or is unable to
serve on our board of directors while earn-out shares or escrowed indemnity shares remain in escrow (the escrow period ), we will nominate a
replacement designated by Polaris initial stockholders (as determined by a majority-in-interest of such stockholders) and parties to the
Shareholders Agreement will vote their shares in favor of Marc V. Byron or a replacement director designated by Polaris initial stockholders
until the earlier of (i) the termination of the escrow period and (ii) the date when Polaris initial stockholders hold less that 50% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock held by Polaris initial stockholders at the closing of the Merger.

The Shareholders Agreement also provides for certain registration rights beginning after the expiry of the applicable transfer restrictions for the

shares of our common stock issued to the Series B Selling security holders and holders of Old HTI s common stock in the Merger, the shares of

our common stock held by Polaris initial stockholders, the Polaris warrants and shares of Polaris common stock underlying such warrants (the
registerable securities ). Under the Shareholders Agreement, the Series B Selling security holders, holders of Old HTI s common stock and Polaris

initial stockholders are afforded demand rights, shelf registration rights and piggyback rights.
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Pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement, we are required to file the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part covering all of
the shares of our common stock received by the Series B Selling security holders in connection with the Merger. Additionally, the Series B

Selling security holders are entitled to piggyback rights and are separately entitled to two demand registrations and may demand an underwritten
offering beginning on March 31, 2010. If we fail to meet our obligation to have this registration statement declared effective within six months

of the closing of the Merger, the Series B Selling security holders will be entitled to receive, at our election, cash or additional shares of our
common stock, equal in value to (i) $0.10 multiplied by (ii) the number of shares of our common stock held by such purchasers, on

September 30, 2009 and for every 30-day period that such shelf registration statement has not been declared effective and/or a proportionate
fraction of such amount for any delay period or additional delay period of less than 30 days.

Holders of Old HTT s common stock holding a majority-in-interest of the such stockholders registerable securities and Polaris initial stockholders
holding a majority-in-interest of such stockholders registerable securities will be able to make written demands to us to register all or any portion
of their respective registerable securities at any time after the expiry of the applicable transfer restrictions and will also be able to make shelf
takedown demands for their respective registerable securities at any time after we have become eligible to file registration statements on Form

S-3 and after the expiry of the applicable transfer restrictions. We are not required to (i) effect more than two demand registrations and two shelf
takedown demands initiated by Polaris initial stockholders or four demand registrations and four shelf takedown demands initiated by holders of
Old HTI s common stock or (ii) effect a demand registration or shelf takedown for Polaris initial stockholders if the value of registerable
securities in the proposed registration or shelf takedown is less than $2.0 million, or effect a demand registration or shelf takedown for the

holders of Old HTI s common stock if the value of registerable securities in the proposed registration or shelf takedown is less than $20.0
million. The demand notice and demand registration are subject to customary limitations on demands, cutbacks, withdrawals and underwriters.
Holders of Old HTI s common stock and Polaris initial stockholders will have unlimited piggyback rights after the expiry of the applicable
transfer restrictions, subject to customary restrictions. Securities will cease to be registerable pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement once they
are saleable under Rule 144 and not subject to the volume restrictions therein.

We agreed to indemnify the parties to the Shareholders Agreement from any losses arising out of, or based upon, any untrue statement of a
material fact contained in any registration statement or prospectus, any omission to state a material fact therein or necessary to make the
statements therein not misleading or any violation by us of the Securities Act. However, the SEC has taken the position that indemnification for
liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 is against public policy and unenforceable. The Shareholders Agreement will terminate

(i) with respect to the securityholders of Old HTI, on the date when the securityholders of Old HTI together hold less than 10% of the
outstanding our common stock, and (ii) with respect to all parties, on the date of a change of control of our company. The registration rights of
the securityholders of Old HTI and Polaris initial stockholders, as applicable, will survive until such holders no longer own any of our common
stock (or, with respect to Polaris initial stockholders, any warrants). The indemnification provisions will survive the termination of the
Shareholders Agreement.

Amended and Restated Co-Sale and Stock Restriction Agreement

In connection with the private financings that we consummated between March 2008 and March 2009, we entered into the Co-Sale Agreement
with the selling security holders. The provisions of the Co-Sale Agreement that provided for piggyback registration rights with respect to the
common stock held by the selling security holders survived the consummation of the Merger. In connection with the piggyback registration
rights provided to the selling security holders, we agreed to indemnify the selling security holders from any losses arising out of, or based upon,
any untrue statement of a material fact contained in any registration statement or prospectus, any omission to state a material fact therein or
necessary to make the statements therein not misleading insofar as such registration statement or prospectus included securities requested to be
registered pursuant to the Co-Sale Agreement. We are not required to provide indemnification for any losses arising out of,
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or based upon, any untrue statement of a material fact contained in any registration statement or prospectus, any omission to state a material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statement therein not misleading, if the statement or omission was made in reliance upon
and in conformance with information furnished in writing or on behalf of any selling security holder to us expressly for use in the registration
statement or prospectus.

Registration Rights Agreements

In connection with the issuance of the our Second Lien Credit Agreement, we entered into a registration rights agreement with PLASE HT,
dated as of December 17, 2009, pursuant to which we granted PLASE HT customary piggyback registration rights.

In connection with the private placement we consummated on December 28, 2009, we entered into a registration rights agreement with the
purchasers requiring that, among other things, we file this registration statement to register the resale of the shares of common stock sold in the
private placement. Cash penalties of 1% of the purchase price per month for up to twelve months may apply if this registration statement is not
effective by the earlier of (i) March 31, 2010 (or the 150th calendar day following the closing date of the private placement in the event that this
registration statement is subject to review by the SEC) and (ii) the fourth business day after the date we are notified by the SEC that this
registration statement will not be reviewed or will not be subject to further review if such notification is received from the SEC either (A) on or
prior to February 8, 2010 or (B) on or after the date we file our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Stock Incentive Plans

Our 2006 Plan provides for share-based compensation awards, including incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options and share awards,
to our officers, employees, non-employee directors and non-employee consultants. There are 3,047,900 shares of common stock authorized for
issuance under the 2006 Plan. The 2006 Plan is administered by the compensation committee of our board of directors which determines
eligibility, amount, and other terms and conditions of awards. Options awarded under the 2006 Plan generally have a term of ten years and an
exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the underlying shares of common stock on the date of grant. Generally, half of each award
vests in equal parts over a period of three years of continued employment or service to the Company. The remaining half of each award vests
upon the achievement of certain pre-established performance goals set by our board of directors. In the event an option holder s service to us is
terminated for either (i) other than good reason, as defined in the 2006 Plan, before the fifth anniversary of the holder s service to the Company
or (ii) cause, we may repurchase any stock obtained through the exercise of a stock option within 180 days of such holder s termination date at a
price equal to the lesser of the fair market value of the stock on the date of termination or the exercise price of the stock option. In the event an
option holder s service is terminated for any of (i) good reason, as defined in the 2006 Plan, (ii) other than cause or (iii) following the fifth
anniversary of such holder s service to us, we may repurchase any stock obtained through the exercise of a stock option within 180 days of such
holder s termination date at a price equal to the fair market value of the stock on the date of termination.

In March 2009, we adopted the 2009 Plan which provides for the grant of equity-based awards, including restricted common stock, restricted
stock units, stock options, stock appreciation rights and other equity-based awards, as well as cash bonuses and long-term cash awards to
directors, officers, employees, advisors and consultants of us and our subsidiaries who are selected for participation in the 2009 Plan. There are
2,500,000 shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the 2009 Plan. The 2009 Plan is administered by the compensation committee
of our board of directors which determines eligibility, amount and other terms and conditions of awards.

Transfer Agent

Our transfer agent is Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the securities offered in this prospectus is being passed upon for us by Robert C. Lewis, Esq., our general counsel. Mr. Lewis

presently holds (i) stock options to purchase an aggregate of 79,244 shares of our common stock under the HUGHES Telematics 2006 Stock

Incentive Plan and (ii) 20,000 shares of our restricted common stock and a stock option to purchase 60,000 shares of our common stock, each
issued under the HUGHES Telematics, Inc. 2009 Equity and Incentive Plan and (iii) 30,479 shares of our common stock.

EXPERTS

The financial statements as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for each of the two years ended December 31, 2008 and for the period from
January 9, 2006 (Inception) to December 31, 2006 included in this Prospectus have been so included in reliance on the report (which contains an
explanatory paragraph relating to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern as described in Note 1 to the financial statements) of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and
accounting.

DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION POSITION ON INDEMNIFICATION FOR
SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the
registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification
is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus, which is part of a registration statement filed with the SEC, does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration
statement or the exhibits filed therewith. For further information with respect to us and the common stock and warrants offered by this
prospectus, please see the registration statement and exhibits filed with the registration statement.

You may also read and copy any materials we have filed with the SEC at the SEC s public reference room, located at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, DC 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. In addition, our SEC
filings, including reports, proxy statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, are also available to the
public at no cost from the SEC s website at http://www.sec.gov. You also may request a copy of the registration statement and these filings by
writing or calling us at 2002 Summit Boulevard, Suite 1800, Atlanta, Georgia 30319, telephone number (770) 391-6400.

No person is authorized to give any information or to make any representation other than those contained in this prospectus, and if made such
information or representation must not be relied upon as having been given or authorized. This prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a
solicitation of an offer to buy any security other than the securities offered by this prospectus, or an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to
buy any securities by anyone in any jurisdiction in which the offer or solicitation is not authorized or is unlawful. The delivery of this prospectus
will not, under any circumstances, create any implication that the information is correct as of any time subsequent to the date of this prospectus.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total current assets
Restricted cash

Property and equipment, net
Capitalized software
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill

Debt issuance costs

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Current portion of capital lease obligations
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock (Note 7)
Long-term debt

Capital lease obligations

Deferred income taxes

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)

Stockholders equity (deficit):

HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share data)

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, Authorized 10,000,000 shares, no shares issued and

outstanding at March 31, 2009

Table of Contents

September 30,
2009

$ 21,842

3,946
1,834
1,911

51
1,951

31,535
450
31,427
17,975
13,859
5,169
5,112
8,060

$ 113,587

$ 15,820
6,607

216

4,306

279

27,228

77,620
3,969
51
1,098

109,966

December 31,
2008

$ 17,837
5,333

5,697

2,014

967

116

974

32,938
3,750
21,341
16,749
16,419
5,169
6,086
6,530

$ 108,982

$ 16,158
6,237

480

1,738

361

24,974
62,092
66,596
5,593
116
281

159,652
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Common stock, $0.0001 par value, Authorized 155,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding
84,570,957 and 22,778,782 shares at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively

Additional paid-in capital 338,923
Accumulated deficit (335,310)
Total stockholders equity (deficit) 3,621
Total liabilities and stockholders equity (deficit) $ 113,587

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

F-2
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$

42,964
(93,636)

(50,670)

108,982
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HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share data)

Three Months Ended
September 30,
2009 2008
Revenues:
Services $ 5,845 $ 4,249
Hardware 2,868 3,741
Total revenues 8,713 7,990
Costs and expenses:
Cost of services 1,755 1,565
Cost of hardware sold 2,136 2,546
Research and development 8,089 8,480
Sales and marketing 2,766 2,023
General and administrative 11,159 5,484
Impairment charges 20,762
Total costs and expenses 46,667 20,098
Loss from operations (37,954) (12,108)
Interest income 51 291
Interest expense (3,195) (3,577)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
Other income
Loss before income taxes (41,098) (15,394)
Income tax expense 12
Net loss (41,110) (15,394)
Deemed dividend on and accretion of convertible preferred
stock
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ 4l1,110) $ (15,394)
Basic and diluted loss per common share $ (1.71) $ (3.27)
Basic and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 24,042,090 4,712,501

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

F-3

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2009 2008
$ 16,750 $ 11,389
7,818 9,576
24,568 20,965
5,023 4,315
6,104 6,803
26,551 23,678
7,825 5,356
28,121 14,050
20,762
94,386 54,202
(69,818) (33,237)
104 777
(9,385) (7,328)
(62,316)
143
(141,415) (39,645)
12
(141,427) (39,645)
(56,619)
$ (198,046) $ (39,645)
$ (11.19) $ (8.41)
17,692,728 4,712,501
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HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Non-cash impairment charges

Interest expense on Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock

Interest expense on long-term debt and capital leases

Amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts on long-term debt
Share-based compensation expense

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable, net

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable and accrued and other liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Increase in capitalized software

Decrease (Increase) in restricted cash

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from merger with Polaris Acquisition Corp.

Proceeds from the issuance of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
Payment of fees related to issuance of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
Repayment of capital lease obligations

Repurchase of common stock

Payment of fees related to the warrant exchange

Proceeds from exercise of warrants

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Payments of debt issuance costs

Redemption of Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Table of Contents

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2009 2008
$(141,427) $ (39,645)
7,486 4,209
62,316
19,097
496 2,056
5,522 3,847
3,362 1,425
975 337
1,751 (862)
180 149
(7,127) (6,563)
12,478 4,532
(264) (198)
(35,155) (30,713)
(11,231) (6,470)
(10,241) (7,788)
8,633 (10,323)
(12,839) (24,581)
97,242
37,000
(1,780)
(5,961) (523)
(74,356)
(200)
54
67,500
(3,046)
(5,000)
51,999 58,931
4,005 3,637
17,837 22,017
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Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental noncash disclosure:

Issuance of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for a trade payable
Issuance of common stock in connection with the exercise of warrants using shares of Series A Redeemable

Preferred Stock

Issuance of common stock in exchange for Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock
Issuance of common stock in exchange for Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock

Property and equipment acquired by capital lease obligations

$ 21,842
$ 13,000
$ 207,218
$ 20,000
$ 109,750
$ 6,302

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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$ 25,654

$

$

$

$

$ 8,026
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Balance, December 31, 2008
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle (see Note 4)
Issuance of warrant to advisor in
connection with the sale of the
Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock

Issuance of common stock and
recapitalization in connection with
merger with Polaris Acquisition
Corp.

Issuance of common stock in
connection with the exercise of
warrants

Issuance of common stock in
connection with the exercise of
warrants using shares of Series A
Redeemable Preferred Stock
Issuance of common stock in
exchange for Series A Redeemable
Preferred Stock

Extinguishment of Series A
Redeemable Preferred Stock prior
to mandatory redemption date
Issuance of common stock in
exchange for Series B Convertible
Preferred

Deemed dividend on and accretion
of Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock

Repurchase of common stock
Issuance of common stock to
advisors of Polaris Acquisition
Corp.

Share-based compensation expense
Issuance of common stock in
connection with the warrant
exchange.

Net loss

Balance, September 30, 2009

Table of Contents

HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS

(Unaudited)

EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(In thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Shares Amount

22,778,782 $ 2

14,082,663 2
6,296,473 1
33,526,894 3
2,000,000
12,500,000 1
(7,439,978) (1)
226,592
544,800
54,731

84,570,957 $ 8

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

$ 42,964

(33,639)

2,099

94,006

37,027

207,215

20,000

(12,288)

109,749

(56,619)
(74,355)

1,989
975

(200)

$ 338,923

Stock
Accumulated  Repurchase
Deficit Obligation
$ (93,636) $
(100,247)
(74,356)
(74,356)
(141,427)
$ (3353100 $

Total
Stockholders
Equity (Deficit)
$ (50,670)

(133,886)

2,099

19,652

37,028

207,218

20,000

(12,288)

109,750

(56,619)

1,989
975

(200)
(141,427)

$ 3,621

Comprehensive
Income

$ (141,427)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
(1) Description of Business

HUGHES Telematics, Inc. (the Company ) is a telematics services company that currently provides and is further developing a broad suite of
real-time services and applications to serve drivers and owners of automobiles. The Company s technology allows for two-way voice and data
communications with a vehicle which supports numerous applications including safety and security services, infotainment and convenience
services, location-based services and remote vehicle diagnostics. These applications are enabled through a state-of-the-art communications
infrastructure that can interface with either a hardware device that is factory-installed in vehicles through arrangements with automotive
manufacturers or is installed in existing vehicles on an aftermarket basis through distribution arrangements with companies and organizations
with large customer or membership bases. Through its Networkfleet, Inc. ( Networkfleet ) subsidiary, the Company also provides an aftermarket
wireless fleet management solution targeted to the local fleet market.

On March 31, 2009, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 13, 2008 (as amended and restated on November 10,

2008 and March 12, 2009, the Merger Agreement ), Hughes Telematics, Inc. ( Old HTI ), a privately held company, and Polaris Acquisition Corp.
( Polaris ), a publicly held blank check company, consummated the merger (the Merger ) whereby Old HTI merged with and into a wholly owned
direct subsidiary of Polaris with Old HTI as the surviving corporation, and immediately thereafter, Old HTI merged with and into Polaris, with
Polaris as the surviving corporation. In connection with the Merger, Polaris changed its name from Polaris Acquisition Corp. to HUGHES
Telematics, Inc. Notwithstanding the legal form of the Merger, Old HTI was deemed the acquiring entity for accounting purposes (see Note 2).
Accordingly, as used throughout these condensed consolidated financial statements, HUGHES Telematics or the Company refers to the
business, operations and financial results of (i) Old HTI prior to the closing of the Merger and (ii) HUGHES Telematics, Inc. subsequent to the
closing of the Merger, as the context requires.

(2) Merger with Polaris Acquisition Corp.

On March 31, 2009, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Old HTI and Polaris consummated the Merger. Upon closing of the Merger, the
outstanding equity securities of Old HTI were exchanged for an aggregate of 77,102,149 shares of Company common stock, comprised of
19,854,018 initial shares and 57,248,131 earn-out shares. In addition, all options exercisable for Old HTI common stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Merger were exchanged for options exercisable for an aggregate of 2,274,935 shares of Company common stock, which
includes 1,751,859 earn-out options. The earn-out shares, which were issued into escrow, will be released to the Old HTI stockholders and the
earn-out options will be eligible to be exercised, according to their terms, by the optionholders, each in three tranches, upon the trading share
price of the Company's common stock reaching at least $20.00, $24.50 and $30.50 (as may be adjusted or amended in accordance with the
escrow agreement) within certain measurement periods over the five-year period following the closing of the Merger. The Old HTI stockholders
placed 5,782,661 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 1,489,053 initial shares and 4,293,608 earn-out shares, in escrow until

June 30, 2010 to indemnify the Company for the payment of indemnification claims that may be made as a result of breaches of Old HTI s
covenants, representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Polaris founders agreed to deposit
an aggregate of 1,250,000 shares of their Company common stock into escrow at closing with such shares being released upon the achievement
of the first share price target between the first and fifth anniversary of closing. Upon consummation of the Merger, the Polaris founders also
transferred an aggregate of 168,000 shares of common stock to the Company, and such shares were cancelled.

Immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger, Old HTT extinguished its outstanding shares of Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock (the
Series A Preferred Stock ) through (i) the exercise by Communications Investors LLC ( Communications LLC ), an affiliate of Apollo Global
Management LLC
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Unaudited)

( Apollo ), of outstanding warrants to purchase common stock of Old HTI using shares of Series A Preferred Stock with an aggregate face value
of $55.0 million with such shares of Old HTI common stock being subsequently exchanged in connection with the Merger for 33,526,894 shares
of Company common stock, comprised of 7,708,863 initial shares and 25,818,031 earn-out shares and (ii) the exchange of shares of Series A
Preferred Stock with an aggregate face value of $20.0 million for shares of Old HTI common stock which were subsequently exchanged in
connection with the Merger for 2,000,000 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 459,861 initial shares and 1,540,139 earn-out shares.
In connection with the Merger, all outstanding shares of Old HTI Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the Series B Preferred Stock ) were
exchanged for an aggregate of 12,500,000 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 5,000,000 initial shares and 7,500,000 earn-out
shares.

In order to consummate the Merger, the Company agreed to purchase an aggregate of 7,439,978 shares of Polaris common stock from a limited
number of institutional shareholders in separate and privately negotiated transactions which were executed prior to the conclusion of the special
meeting in which Polaris' shareholders voted on the Merger. In order to consummate these private purchases following the Merger, the Company
used funds released from the Polaris trust account and funds received from the sale of Series B Preferred Stock. In addition, Polaris stockholders
holding an aggregate of 4,499,337 shares of common stock exercised their right to convert their stock into a pro rata share of the funds held in
the trust account.

In connection with the Merger, pursuant to certain letter agreements dated March 12, 2009, the Company was obligated to issue, and certain of
Polaris financial advisors agreed to accept, an aggregate of 226,592 shares of Company common stock in lieu of cash compensation to such
advisors for services rendered to Polaris. The obligation to issue such shares in lieu of cash payments was conditioned upon consummation of
the Merger and other factors that were not determinable until the conclusion of the special meeting. On May 6, 2009, the Company issued such
shares to the advisors.

Notwithstanding the legal form of the transaction, the Merger has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting as a reverse
acquisition, equivalent to a recapitalization, through the issuance of stock by Old HTI for the net monetary assets of Polaris. The determination
of Old HTI as the accounting acquirer was made based on consideration of all quantitative and qualitative factors of the Merger, including
significant consideration given to the fact that following consummation of the Merger (i) the stockholders of Old HTI controlled a majority of
the voting power of the Company, (ii) the controlling stockholder of Old HTI prior to the Merger, together with its affiliates, controlled
approximately 72% of the voting power of the Company and had the right to select a majority of the members of the Company s board of
directors and (iii) the management of Old HTI continued in all executive officer and other senior management positions of the Company and,
accordingly, had day-to-day authority to carry out the business plan after the Merger. Accordingly, the historical financial statements of the
Company prior to March 31, 2009 are the historical financial statements of Old HTI. The consolidated financial statements of Old HTI have
been retroactively restated to reflect the recapitalization of Old HTI with the 77,102,149 shares of Company common stock issued to Old HTI
equity holders in connection with the Merger.

The following table presents the net assets of Polaris acquired in connection with the Merger:

March 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Cash $ 97,242

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,234)

Net assets acquired $ 94,008
F-7
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(Unaudited)

(3) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with United States generally
accepted accounting principles ( GAAP ) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation
S-X and include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary Networkfleet. Accordingly, they do not include all of the
information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, the accompanying condensed
consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments, consisting only of those of a normal recurring nature, necessary for a fair presentation
of the Company s financial position, results of operations and cash flows at the dates and for the periods indicated. While the Company believes
that disclosures presented are adequate to make the information not misleading, these condensed consolidated financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008 and the related notes thereto which
have been included in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC ) on July 24, 2009. The
results of the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from January 9, 2006 to
December 31, 2006, the Company incurred a net loss of approximately $141.4 million, $57.5 million, $32.3 million and $3.8 million,

respectively, and used cash in operations of approximately $35.2 million, $39.1 million, $23.6 million and $2.8 million, respectively. As a result
of the Company s historical net losses and its limited capital resources, the Company s independent registered public accounting firm s report on
the Company s financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 includes an explanatory paragraph expressing substantial
doubt about the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. As of September 30, 2009, the Company had unrestricted cash and cash
equivalents of approximately $21.8 million and an accumulated deficit of approximately $335.3 million. Management believes that the cash and
cash equivalents on hand will allow the Company to continue operations through at least March 31, 2010. There is no assurance that the

Company will be successful in obtaining additional financing to fund its operations beyond such period. The financial statements do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

(4) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Adopted Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued a new accounting standard governing fair value measurement.
This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with GAAP and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. The fair value standard was to be effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within
those fiscal years. In February 2008, the FASB delayed the effective date of the fair value standard by one year for all nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities, except those recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. Those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value as of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 did not have a material impact on the Company s financial
position or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB revised prior guidance governing accounting for business combinations. Significant revisions include: (i) all
transaction costs related to a business combination are to be expensed when incurred; (ii) certain contingent assets and liabilities purchased in a
business combination are to be measured at fair value; (iii) contingent consideration (earn-out arrangements) paid in connection with a business
combination are to be measured at fair value depending on the structure of the arrangements; and (iv) subsequent material

F-8
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(Unaudited)

adjustments made to the purchase price allocation will be recorded back to the acquisition date, which will cause revision of previously issued
financial statements when reporting comparative period financial information in subsequent financial statements. The revised guidance is
effective for business combinations that are completed on or after January 1, 2009. As of December 31, 2008, the Company had incurred
approximately $0.9 million in transaction costs related to the Merger which are included in other current assets in the accompanying condensed
consolidated balance sheets. Upon adoption of the revised business combinations guidance, the Company expensed such transaction costs which
are included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations for the nine months
ended September 30, 2009.

In June 2008, the Emerging Issues Task Force ( EITF ) issued guidance on determining whether an instrument, including embedded features, is
indexed to an entity s own stock. Under the new guidance, a company first evaluates any contingent exercise provisions based on the previously
existing guidance, and second, evaluates the instruments settlement provisions. This guidance is effective for fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2008. Based on an evaluation of the newly effective guidance, the Company determined that the warrants issued in connection
with the issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock and the warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the senior secured term indebtedness
contained provisions which under the new guidance, indicated that the warrants were not indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock. Accordingly,
upon the adoption of the new guidance, the Company reclassified the $133.9 million fair value of the warrants from equity to a liability and
recorded such amount as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle as of January 1, 2009. The Company also determined that the
automatic exchange feature of the Series B Preferred Stock pursuant to which the Series B Preferred Stock would be directly exchanged for
shares of Polaris common stock in connection with the Merger should be considered a separate derivative instrument as, pursuant to the new
guidance, the exchange provision was not considered indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock but rather indexed to Polaris stock. The Company
recognized a charge of approximately $62.3 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 related to the increase in fair market value of
these instruments during such period. As the warrants were exercised and the Series B Preferred Stock was extinguished in connection with the
Merger, the Company will not record additional charges in future periods related to these instruments.

In June 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance over the disclosure of subsequent events that requires companies to recognize in the financial
statements the effects of subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. An entity shall disclose the date through which subsequent events have been
evaluated, as well as whether that date is the date the financial statements were issued. Companies are not permitted to recognize subsequent
events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance sheet date but arose after the balance sheet date and before the
financial statements are issued. Some non-recognized subsequent events must be disclosed to keep the financial statements from being
misleading. For such events a company must disclose the nature of the event, an estimate of its financial effects or a statement that such estimate
cannot be made. This guidance applies prospectively for interim or annual financial periods ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of the
subsequent events guidance did not affect the consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

In June 2009, the FASB issued the Accounting Standards Codification ( Codification ) which established the Codification as the single source of
authoritative non-governmental GAAP which was launched on July 1, 2009. The Codification does not change current GAAP but is intended to
simplify user access to all authoritative GAAP by providing all the authoritative literature related to a particular topic in one place. All existing
accounting standard documents have been superseded and all other accounting literature not included in the Codification will be considered
non-authoritative. Rules and interpretative releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP
for SEC registrants. Our adoption of the
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(Unaudited)

Codification was effective for the three month period ended September 30, 2009 and did not have an impact on the Company s financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2009, the EITF issued a consensus on Issue No. 08-1, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables ( EITF 08-1 ). EITF 08-1
provides a greater ability to separate and allocate arrangement consideration in a multiple element revenue arrangement. EITF 08-1 requires the
use of an estimated selling price to allocate arrangement consideration, and eliminates the residual method of allocation. EITF 08-1 will become
effective for the Company on January 1, 2011; however, earlier adoption is permitted. The adoption of EITF 08-1 is not expected to have a
material effect on the Company s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2009, the EITF issued a consensus on Issue No. 09-3, Certain Revenue Arrangements that Include Software Elements ( EITF 09-3 ).
EITF 09-3 amends the scope of existing guidance to exclude tangible products that include software and non-software components that function
together to deliver the products essential functionality. EITF 09-3 will become effective for the Company on January 1, 2011; however, earlier
adoption is permitted. The adoption of EITF 09-3 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company s financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

(5) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

On April 30, 2009, Chrysler LLC, now known as Old Carco LLC ( Old Chrysler ), filed for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of the United
States bankruptcy code. On June 10, 2009, Chrysler Group LLC ( New Chrysler ) purchased substantially all of the assets of Old Chrysler in the
bankruptcy process. At a hearing held on July 16, 2009, Old Chrysler rejected certain contracts, including the Company s telematics services
contract with Old Chrysler, and therefore, the contract was terminated. The Company had been in negotiations with New Chrysler concerning a
new telematics services agreement. However, during the third quarter, the parties reached an impasse in the negotiations, and as a result, the
Company discontinued working with New Chrysler to deploy the Company s hardware and launch the Company s services in the fourth quarter of
2009 as previously planned.

In light of the termination of the Company s contract with Old Chrysler and the discontinuation of work towards launch with New Chrysler, the
Company evaluated for impairment certain equipment, capitalized software costs and other assets related to the deployment of hardware and
services to New Chrysler vehicles. Accordingly, the Company recorded impairment charges in the three months ended September 30, 2009
totaling approximately $20.8 million to write down these assets to their estimated net realizable values. The impairment consisted of
approximately $11.8 million of capitalized software, approximately $3.6 million of equipment and approximately $5.4 million of other assets.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company continues to market portions of the underlying technology that was developed in the effort for Old
Chrysler to other interested parties.

(6) Long-Term Debt

The components of long-term debt were as follows:

September 30, December 31,
2009 2008
(in thousands)
Senior secured term indebtedness $62,132 $ 53,572
Senior subordinated unsecured promissory note 15,488 13,024
Total long-term debt $ 77,620 $ 66,596
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Senior Secured Term Indebtedness

On March 31, 2008, the Company entered into a credit agreement (as amended and restated, the Credit Agreement ) pursuant to which it issued
in multiple tranches during the year ended December 31, 2008 for aggregate consideration of $60.0 million, senior secured term indebtedness
due March 31, 2013 with an original principal amount of $60.0 million and warrants to purchase the equivalent of 4,801,112 shares of Company
common stock, comprised of 1,103,922 initial shares and 3,697,190 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share.
The Company deposited 25% of the gross proceeds into an escrow account which was released to the Company on a pro rata basis as it raised
additional debt and equity capital. If a balance remained in the escrow account on March 31, 2009, the Company would have been required to
make an offer to prepay outstanding term indebtedness with an aggregate principal amount equal to such remaining balance. As of December 31,
2008, the escrow account had a balance of approximately $5.3 million. On March 12, 2009, as a result of the issuance and sale of the Series B
Preferred Stock, the remaining balance was released from the escrow account.

As additional consideration for services provided by the lead arranger in connection with the issuance and syndication of the term indebtedness,
the Company issued warrants to an affiliate of the lead arranger to purchase the equivalent of an aggregate of 1,181,244 shares of common stock,
comprised of 271,604 initial shares and 909,640 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share.

The senior secured term indebtedness is guaranteed by all of the Company s existing and future domestic subsidiaries and is secured by all of its
tangible and intangible assets. At the election of the Company, the term indebtedness bears interest at (i) the Prime Lending Rate plus 10.00% or
(ii) for Eurocurrency borrowings, 11.00% plus the greater of London Interbank Offered Rate ( LIBOR ) or 3.00%. In accordance with an
agreement between the Company and one of the senior secured note holders, the interest rate on term indebtedness with an initial principal
amount of $5.0 million will have an interest rate of no higher than 14.00% for the term of the debt. With respect to Eurocurrency borrowings, the
Company may elect interest periods of one, two, three, or six months (or nine or twelve months if approved by each senior secured note holder),
and interest is payable in arrears at the end of each interest period but, in any event, at least every three months. With respect to any interest
period ending on or prior to March 31, 2010 and unless the Company elects at least three days prior to the beginning of any such interest period,
the interest accrued on the term indebtedness will be paid in kind in arrears with such accrued interest being added to the outstanding principal
balance of the term indebtedness. With respect to all interest periods ending after March 31, 2010, the accrued interest will be paid in cash in
arrears. As of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, senior secured term indebtedness with an aggregate principal amount, including the
accrued interest which had been paid in kind, of approximately $72.1 million and $65.4 million, respectively, was outstanding. As of

September 30, 2009, the Company had elected that all outstanding amounts consist of Prime Lending borrowings which resulted in the term
indebtedness bearing an interest rate of 13.25%.

The Credit Agreement requires the Company to comply with negative covenants which include, among others, limitations on the Company s
ability to incur additional debt; create liens; pay dividends or make other distributions; make loans and investments; sell assets; redeem or
repurchase capital stock or subordinated debt; engage in specified transactions with affiliates; consolidate or merge with or into, or sell
substantially all of its assets to, another person; and enter into new lines of business. The Company may incur indebtedness beyond the specific
limits allowed under the Credit Agreement, provided it maintains a leverage ratio of 5.0 to 1.0. In addition, the Company may incur limited
indebtedness secured by junior and subordinated liens to the liens created under the Credit Agreement. Noncompliance with any of the
covenants without cure or waiver would constitute an event of default. An event of default resulting from a breach of a covenant may result, at
the option of the note holders, in an acceleration of the principal and interest outstanding. The Credit Agreement also
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contains other events of default (subject to specified grace periods), including defaults based on the termination of the Company s contract with
either Old Chrysler, or Mercedes-Benz USA, LLC ( Mercedes-Benz ), events of bankruptcy or insolvency with respect to the Company and
nonpayment of principal, interest or fees when due. On June 26, 2009, the Company obtained a waiver from the senior secured lenders under the
Credit Agreement providing that the termination of the Old Chrysler contract would not constitute an event of default under the Credit
Agreement. The Credit Agreement also requires the Company to use 25% of the net cash proceeds from certain equity issuances for the
repayment of senior secured term indebtedness. As of September 30, 2009, the Company was in compliance with all covenants in the Credit
Agreement.

In accordance with the guidance over accounting for debt with conversion and other options, as of each issuance date, the Company ascribed
value to the senior secured term indebtedness and the related warrants based on their relative fair values. As such, an aggregate of $46.9 million
was allocated to the senior secured term indebtedness and an aggregate of $12.1 million was allocated to the warrants. The resulting discount
from the face value of the senior secured term indebtedness resulting from the ascribed value to the warrants will be amortized as additional
interest expense over the term of the senior secured term indebtedness using the effective interest rate method.

In connection with the issuance of the senior secured term indebtedness to Apollo Investment Fund V (PLASE) LP ( AIF V PLASE ), an affiliate
of Apollo, on December 12, 2008, the Company recorded a deemed capital contribution of approximately $1.0 million related to the difference
between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated interest rate the Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and
(ii) the fair value of the note using the stated interest rate. The Company determined the estimated fair value amount by using available market
information and commonly accepted valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to

develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the fair value estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amount that the
Company or holders of the instruments could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value. The discount from the face value of the senior secured term indebtedness
resulting from the deemed capital contribution will be amortized as additional interest expense over the term of the senior secured term
indebtedness using the effective interest rate method.

Based on an evaluation of the newly effective guidance over whether an instrument or embedded features are indexed to an entity s own stock,
the Company determined that the warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the senior secured term indebtedness contained provisions
which, in accordance with the applicable guidance, indicated that the warrants were not indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock and thus required
the Company to account for the warrants as a derivative instrument which was marked to market with the change in fair value of the warrant
being recognized as a gain or loss in the Company s consolidated statements of operations. Specifically, the provision which indicated that the
warrants were not indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock was an anti-dilution provision which allowed for a reduction in the exercise price of
the warrant to the extent an affiliate of HUGHES Telematics who also held warrants received a more favorable anti-dilution adjustment than the
adjustment otherwise provided for in the lender warrants. Accordingly, upon the adoption of the newly effective guidance, the Company
reclassified the $26.7 million fair value of the warrants from equity to a liability and recorded such amount as a cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle as of January 1, 2009. The Company recognized a charge of approximately $10.3 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 related to the increase in fair market value of these instruments during such period. Such charge is included in change in fair
value of derivative instruments on the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations. As the warrants were automatically
exercised in accordance with their terms upon consummation of the Merger, the Company will not record additional charges in future periods
related to these warrants.
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Senior Subordinated Unsecured Promissory Notes

On March 31, 2008, the Company issued to Communications LLC a senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of
$12.5 million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013. The note bears interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum which is compounded and added to
the principal amount annually and is payable at maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a deemed capital
contribution of approximately $2.4 million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated interest rate the
Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the 15.00% stated interest rate. The
discount from the face value of the note resulting from the deemed capital contribution will be amortized as additional interest expense over the
term of the note using the effective interest rate method.

On December 12, 2008, the Company issued to AIF V PLASE an additional senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal
amount of $3.5 million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013. The note bears interest at 15.00% per annum which is compounded and added to
the principal amount annually and is payable at maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded an additional
deemed capital contribution of approximately $2.4 million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated
interest rate the Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the 15.00% stated
interest rate. The discount from the face value of the note resulting from the deemed capital contribution will be amortized as additional interest
expense over the term of the note using the effective interest rate method.

At the time of issuance of each promissory note, the Company determined the estimated fair value amount by using available market information
and commonly accepted valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop estimates
of fair value. Accordingly, the fair value estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amount that the Company or holders of
the instruments could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a
material effect on the estimated fair value.

(7) Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock

In July 2006, the Company issued and sold to Communications LLC, for an aggregate purchase price of $40.0 million, 4,000 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase the equivalent of 12,191,598 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 2,803,223 initial shares
and 9,388,375 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of $0.82 per share. In June 2007, the Company issued and sold to Communications
LLC, for an aggregate purchase price of $15.0 million, an additional 1,500 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase the
equivalent of 9,143,698 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 2,102,417 initial shares and 7,041,281 earn-out shares, at an equivalent
exercise price of $1.64 per share. In November 2007, the Company issued and sold to Communications LLC, for an aggregate purchase price of
$20.0 million, an additional 2,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase the equivalent of 12,191,598 shares of Company
common stock, comprised of 2,803,223 initial shares and 9,388,375 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of $2.46 per share. The
Series A Preferred Stock was non-voting, had a liquidation preference of $10,000 per share and was senior in priority to the HUGHES
Telematics common stock. As of December 31, 2008, there were 7,500 shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding, and the aggregate
liquidation preference of the Series A Preferred Stock was $75.0 million. On October 1, 2013, the Company was to be required to redeem the
Series A Preferred Stock at a redemption price equal to $10,000 per share.
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As of each sale date, the Company ascribed value to the Series A Preferred Stock and the warrant based on their relative fair values. As such, an
aggregate of $54.8 million was allocated to Series A Preferred Stock and an aggregate of $20.2 million was allocated to the warrants. The Series
A Preferred Stock was accounted for in accordance with the guidance on accounting for instruments with characteristics of liabilities and equity,
with the accretion of the book value of the Series A Preferred Stock up to the $75.0 million redemption amount being recorded as interest
expense on the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Based on an evaluation of newly effective guidance in determining whether an instrument or embedded features are indexed to an entity s own
stock, the Company determined that the warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock contained provisions
which, in accordance with the new guidance, indicated that the warrants were not indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock and thus required the
Company to account for the warrants as a derivative instrument which are marked to market with the change in fair value of the warrant being
recognized as a gain or loss in the Company s consolidated statements of operations. Specifically, the provisions which indicated that the
warrants were not indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock were (i) an anti-dilution provision which allowed for a reduction in the exercise price
of the warrant if the Company either issued equity shares for a price that was lower than the exercise price of the warrant or issued new warrants
or convertible instruments that had a lower exercise price and (ii) a provision which allowed for an adjustment to the anti-dilution provisions to
the extent the Company issued new warrants or convertible instruments that contained more favorable anti-dilution provisions. Accordingly,
upon the adoption of the newly effective guidance, the Company reclassified the $107.2 million fair value of the warrants from equity to a
liability and recorded such amount as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle of January 1, 2009. The Company recognized a
charge of approximately $45.0 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 related to the increase in fair market value of these
instruments during such period. Such charge is included in change in fair value of derivative instruments on the accompanying condensed
consolidated statements of operations. As the warrants were exercised in connection with the Merger, the Company will not record additional
charges in future periods related to these warrants.

Immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger, the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock were extinguished through (i) the
exercise by Communications LLC of the warrants issued in connection with the Series A Preferred Stock using 5,500 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock with an aggregate face value of $55.0 million and (ii) the exchange of 2,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock with an
aggregate face value of $20.0 million for shares of Old HTI common stock which were subsequently exchanged in connection with the Merger
for 2,000,000 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 459,861 initial shares and 1,540,139 earn-out shares. In connection with the
extinguishment of the Series A Preferred Stock, the Company recorded an approximately $12.3 million decrease in additional paid in capital for
the difference between (i) the fair value of the shares of Company common stock issued and (ii) the carrying value of the Series A Preferred
Stock and the warrants.

(8) Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

On March 12, 2009, the Company issued and sold 5,000,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $50.0 million.
ATF V PLASE purchased 1,200,000 of such shares of Series B Preferred Stock for $12.0 million of cash, and Hughes Communications, Inc.

( HCI ) parent of Hughes Network Systems, LLC ( HNS ) and an affiliate of Apollo, purchased 1,300,000 of such shares of Series B Preferred
Stock through the conversion of $13.0 million of trade accounts payable transferred from HNS. The remaining 2,500,000 shares of Series B
Preferred Stock were purchased by unrelated institutional investors for $25.0 million of cash. As a result of the sale of Series B Preferred Stock,
the remaining approximately $5.3 million was released from the escrow account held for the benefit of the senior secured note holders. For
consulting and
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financial advisory services provided in connection with the sale of the Series B Preferred Stock, the Company paid Trivergance, LLC

( Trivergance ), an affiliate of a member of the Company s board of directors, approximately $1.3 million of cash and issued Trivergance a warrant
to purchase the equivalent of 314,117 shares of common stock, comprised of 72,224 initial shares and 241,893 earn-out shares, at an equivalent
exercise price of approximately $0.167 per share.

The Series B Preferred Stock had an initial liquidation preference of $10.00 per share which was to increase quarterly at a rate of 8.0% per
annum and was senior in priority to each of the Series A Preferred Stock and the HUGHES Telematics common stock. The Series B Preferred
Stock was convertible at any time at the option of the holder into shares of HUGHES Telematics common stock and was subject to redemption
at the option of the holder at any time after October 1, 2013. Pursuant to the terms of the Series B Preferred Stock, in connection with the
Merger, the Series B Preferred Stock was automatically exchanged for 12,500,000 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 5,000,000
initial shares and 7,500,000 earn-out shares.

The Company evaluated the Series B Preferred Stock to determine whether any of the features included in the Series B Preferred Stock should
be treated as an embedded derivative which would be accounted for as a separate instrument under the guidance over accounting for derivative
instruments and hedging activities. The Company determined that the automatic exchange feature of the Series B Preferred Stock pursuant to
which the Series B Preferred Stock would be directly exchanged for shares of Polaris common stock in connection with the Merger should be
considered a separate derivative instrument as, pursuant to new guidance over determining whether an instrument or embedded features are
indexed to an entity s own stock, the exchange provision was not considered indexed to HUGHES Telematics stock but rather indexed to Polaris
stock. Accordingly, at the time of issuance, the Company estimated the fair value of the exchange feature by using available market information
and commonly accepted valuation methodologies and ascribed approximately $7.1 million of the proceeds from the issuance of the Series B
Preferred Stock to the exchange feature and recorded a liability in such amount. During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the
Company recognized a charge of approximately $7.0 million related to the increase in fair market value of the exchange feature during the
period. Such charge is included in change in fair value of derivative instruments on the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of
operations. As the Series B Preferred Stock was extinguished in connection with the Merger, the Company will not record additional charges in
future periods related to this derivative instrument.

The remaining $42.9 million of proceeds from the issuance of the Series B Preferred Stock was accounted for in accordance with the applicable
guidance over accounting for convertible securities with beneficial conversion features. Accordingly, a discount on the Series B Preferred Stock
was recorded for the entire balance of the remaining proceeds, with that amount allocated to a beneficial conversion feature resulting from the
ability of the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock to convert the shares of Series B Preferred Stock into shares of HUGHES Telematics
common stock at a conversion price lower than the fair value of the HUGHES Telematics common stock at such time. As this conversion feature
was immediately available to the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock, the related discount on the Series B Preferred Stock was immediately
accreted and a deemed dividend of approximately $42.9 million was recorded on the date of issuance. The Company recorded an additional
deemed dividend of approximately $0.1 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 representing the accretion of the discount on the
Series B Preferred Stock related to the embedded derivative and issue costs over the 4.5 year period through October 1, 2013 when the Series B
Preferred Stock first became redeemable at the option of the holder. Upon consummation of the Merger and the exchange of the Series B
Preferred Stock for Company common stock, the Company recorded an additional deemed dividend of approximately $13.6 million related to
the difference between (i) the fair value of the Company common stock received by the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock and (ii) the
carrying value of the Series B Preferred Stock,
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the amount allocated to the beneficial conversion feature and the embedded derivative for the automatic exchange provision. Each of these
deemed dividends have been reflected in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations in determining the net loss
attributable to common stockholders.

(9) Warrant Exchange

On June 16, 2009, the Company initiated an offer to the holders of all of the 19,500,000 outstanding warrants to purchase shares of its common
stock the opportunity, for a limited time, to exchange 20 warrants for one share of its common stock. The offer expired on July 24, 2009, and
pursuant to the offer, the Company accepted for exchange 1,094,620 warrants and issued 54,731 shares of common stock. All of the warrants
acquired in the exchange were cancelled.

(10) Share-Based Compensation

The Company s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan ( 2006 Plan ) provides for share-based compensation awards, including incentive stock options,
non-qualified stock options and share awards, to the Company s officers, employees, non-employee directors and non-employee consultants.
There are 3,047,900 shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the 2006 Plan. The 2006 Plan is administered by the Company s
board of directors which determines eligibility, amount, and other terms and conditions of awards. Options awarded under the 2006 Plan
generally have a term of ten years and an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the underlying shares of common stock on the
date of grant. Generally, half of each award vests in equal parts over a period of three years of continued employment or service to the Company.
The remaining half of each award vests upon the achievement of certain pre-established performance goals set by the Company s board of
directors. In the event an option holder s service to the Company is terminated for either (i) other than good reason, as defined in the 2006 Plan,
before the fifth anniversary of the holder s service to the Company or (ii) cause, the Company may repurchase any stock obtained through the
exercise of a stock option within 180 days of such holder s termination date at a price equal to the lesser of the fair market value of the stock on
the date of termination or the exercise price of the stock option. In the event an option holder s service to the Company is terminated for any of
(1) good reason, as defined in the 2006 Plan, (ii) other than cause or (iii) following the fifth anniversary of such holder s service to the Company,
the Company may repurchase any stock obtained through the exercise of a stock option within 180 days of such holder s termination date at a
price equal to the fair market value of the stock on the date of termination. As of September 30, 2009, options to purchase 2,160,335 shares of
common stock were outstanding under the 2006 Plan, and there were 826,607 shares of common stock available for future grants.

In March 2009, the Company adopted the 2009 Equity and Incentive Plan (the 2009 Plan ) which provides for the grant of equity-based awards,
including restricted common stock, restricted stock units, stock options, stock appreciation rights and other equity-based awards, as well as cash
bonuses and long-term cash awards to directors, officers, employees, advisors and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries who are
selected for participation in the 2009 Plan. There are 2,500,000 shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the 2009 Plan. The 2009
Plan is administered by the compensation committee of the Company s board of directors which determines eligibility, amount, and other terms
and conditions of awards. During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the Company granted, under the 2009 Plan, options to purchase an
aggregate of 1,327,486 shares of common stock, 543,000 shares of restricted common stock and 16,800 shares of unrestricted common stock. As
of September 30, 2009, options to purchase 1,267,486 shares of common stock, and 528,000 shares of restricted stock were outstanding under

the 2009 Plan, and there were 687,714 shares of common stock available for future grants under the 2009 Plan.
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In accordance with the applicable accounting guidance governing share-based payments, the Company records compensation expense for all
share-based awards issued. For the three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded approximately $0.5 million and
$0.1 million of compensation expense, respectively, related to share-based grants. For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, the
Company recorded approximately $1.0 million and $0.3 million of compensation expense, respectively, related to share-based grants. Such
compensation expense is included in research and development, sales and marketing and general and administrative expense in the
accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Stock Options

The following table reflects stock option activity:

Outstanding at December 31, 2008
Granted
Forfeited

Outstanding at September 30, 2009

Exercisable at September 30, 2009

Number
of
Shares

2,302,366
1,327,486
(202,031)

3,427,821

162,230

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

2.20
5.19
2.94

&hH PHPH

$ 331

The following table provides information about stock options that are outstanding and exercisable as of September 30, 2009:

Number
of
Exercise Price Shares
$1.65 683,333
$2.47 1,477,002
$5.19 1,267,486

Stock Options Outstanding

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Remaining
Price Life (Yrs)
$ 1.65 7.6
$ 247 8.2
$ 5.19 9.7

Number of
Shares

71,715

84,515

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

$ 1.65

$ 247
n/a

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value
(in thousands)

$ 1,295

$ 119

Stock Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Life (Yrs)
7.5
8.2
n/a

For stock option awards outstanding as of September 30, 2009, the Company expects to recognize approximately $5.5 million of additional
compensation expense over the remaining average service period of approximately 2.6 years.

Restricted Stock

The following table reflects restricted stock activity:
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543,000
(15,000)

528,000
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For restricted stock awards outstanding as of September 30, 2009, the Company expects to recognize approximately $2.1 million of additional
compensation expense over the remaining average service period of approximately 2.0 years.

(11) Loss Per Common Share

Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding for the period. Diluted loss per common share reflects the potential dilution from the exercise or conversion of securities into
common stock. During all periods presented, the Company had potential common shares, including shares issuable upon the exercise of
outstanding stock options and warrants and shares held in escrow pending satisfaction of a contingency, which could potentially dilute basic loss
per common share in the future but have been excluded from the computation of diluted loss per common share as the effect would have been
anti-dilutive. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, there were 82,537,985 and 56,035,715 potential common
shares, respectively, excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share, consisting of shares (i) issuable upon the exercise of outstanding
stock options and warrants, (ii) held in escrow be released to the Old HTI stockholders upon achievement of the specified price targets and

(iii) held in escrow to indemnify the Company for the payment of indemnification claims that may be made as a result of breaches of Old HTT's
covenants, representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement. For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the Company excluded the
7,439,978 shares of common stock which the Company repurchased following consummation of the Merger from the calculation of the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during such period.

(12) Related Party Transactions
Apollo Global Management LLC

Communications LLC and AIF V PLASE are investment funds affiliated with Apollo. As of September 30, 2009, Apollo, through
Communications LLC and AIF V PLASE, owned approximately 68% of the Company's outstanding common stock. HCI, also an affiliate of
Apollo, owned an additional approximately 4% of the Company s outstanding common stock.

On March 31, 2008, the Company issued to Communications LLC a senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of
$12.5 million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013 (see Note 6). The note bears interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum which is compounded
and added to the principal amount annually and is payable at maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a
deemed capital contribution of approximately $2.4 million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated
interest rate the Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the 15.00% stated
interest rate.

On December 12, 2008, the Company issued AIF V PLASE, for aggregate consideration of $5.0 million, additional senior secured term
indebtedness with a principal amount of $5.0 million and warrants to purchase the equivalent of 402,993 shares of Company common stock,
comprised of 92,660 initial shares and 310,333 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share (see Note 6). In
connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a deemed capital contribution of approximately $1.0 million related to the
difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated interest rate the Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a
similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the stated interest rate.

On December 12, 2008, the Company issued to AIF V PLASE a senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of $3.5
million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013 (see Note 6). The note bears interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum which is compounded and
added to the principal amount annually and is
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payable at maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a deemed capital contribution of approximately $2.4
million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated interest rate the Company would have paid an unrelated
third party on a similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the 15.00% stated interest rate.

On the date of each issuance, the Company determined the estimated fair value amount by using available market information and commonly
accepted valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value.
Accordingly, the fair value estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amount that the Company or holders of the
instruments could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material
effect on the estimated fair value.

On March 12, 2009, the Company issued and sold 1,200,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock to AIF V PLASE for $12.0 million. In
connection with the Merger, such shares of Series B Preferred Stock were exchanged for 3,000,000 shares of Company common stock,
comprised of 1,200,000 initial shares and 1,800,000 earn-out shares. On March 12, 2009, the Company also issued and sold 1,300,000 shares of
Series B Preferred Stock to HCI in exchange for the conversion of $13.0 million of trade accounts payable transferred to HCI from HNS. In
connection with the Merger, such shares of Series B Preferred Stock were exchanged for 3,250,000 shares of Company common stock,
comprised of 1,300,000 initial shares and 1,950,000 earn-out shares.

Hughes Network Systems

In July 2006, HNS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HCI and an affiliate of Apollo, granted a limited license to HUGHES Telematics allowing the
Company to use the HUGHES trademark. The license is limited in that the Company may use the HUGHES trademark only in connection with
its business of automotive telematics and only in combination with the Telematics name. As partial consideration for the license, the agreement
provides that HNS will be the Company s preferred engineering services provider. The license is royalty-free, except that the Company has
agreed to commence paying a royalty to HNS in the event the Company no longer has a commercial or affiliated relationship with HNS. As
contemplated by the license terms and while the definitive agreement governing the relationship was being negotiated, HNS provided
engineering development services to the Company pursuant to an Authorization to Proceed. In January 2008, HUGHES Telematics and HNS
executed a definitive agreement pursuant to which HNS is continuing to provide the Company with engineering development and manufacturing
services. For the three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, HNS provided approximately $4.0 million and $9.3 million of services,
respectively, to the Company. For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, HNS provided approximately $20.3 million and $22.0
million of services, respectively, to the Company. As of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Company had an outstanding balance,
not including the equipment financing discussed below, of approximately $8.5 million and $8.9 million, respectively, payable to HNS.

In June 2008, the Company and HNS entered into an arrangement pursuant to which HNS purchased, on behalf of the Company, certain
production equipment for an aggregate amount of approximately $2.0 million. The Company was to pay HNS at a rate of $4.94 per telematics
hardware device manufactured using the production equipment; provided that (i) the Company will pay HNS a minimum of approximately $0.2
million under this arrangement by December 31, 2009 and (ii) the Company shall have paid HNS the balance of the amount owed under this
arrangement plus all accrued interest by December 31, 2010. Interest will accrue on the outstanding balance at a rate of 11.00% per annum. The
Company may pay the balance of the amount owed plus accrued interest in full at any time, and at the time the balance is paid in full, the
Company will have the option to purchase the production test equipment from HNS for $1.00. As of September 30, 2009, the Company had an
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outstanding balance related to the equipment financing of approximately $2.3 million which is reflected in capital lease obligations on the
accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Three members of the Company s board of directors, the Chief Executive Officer and two additional directors who are affiliated with Apollo, are
members of the board of managers of HNS and the board of directors of HCI.

Trivergance

For consulting and financial advisory services provided in connection with the sale of the Series B Preferred Stock, the Company paid
Trivergance, an affiliate of a member of the Company s board of directors, approximately $1.3 million of cash and issued Trivergance a warrant
to purchase the equivalent of 314,117 shares of common stock, comprised of 72,224 initial shares and 241,893 earn-out shares, at an equivalent
exercise price of approximately $0.167 per share.

Trivergance Business Resources

In September 2008, the Company entered into a services agreement with Trivergance Business Resources ( TBR ), an affiliate of a member of the
Company s board of directors, pursuant to which TBR provided a marketing assessment and other research for the Company to aid in creating a
marketing and retention platform. The Company paid TBR a fee of approximately $0.2 million, reasonable and customary travel expenses and
certain other expenses incurred in connection with the engagement. Additionally, in November 2008, the Company entered into a letter

agreement with TBR pursuant to which the Company has engaged TBR to provide certain marketing services in exchange for an approximately
$0.1 million monthly draw against a per subscriber fee payable on certain subscribers acquired beginning in November 2008 and continuing
through December 2010. The parties have agreed to amend the letter agreement to remove the per-subscriber fee and continue under a fixed fee
retainer. Such amendment is expected to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2009. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009,
TBR provided approximately $0.3 million and $1.0 million of services, respectively, to the Company.

(13) Contingencies and Commitments
Contractual Payment Obligations

The Company has a long-term contract with an automaker pursuant to which the automaker agreed to install telematics devices in its vehicles
and permit the Company to exclusively provide telematics services to its new customers. This contract also required the Company to pay the
automaker for certain non-recurring costs associated with the initiation of telematics services. Pursuant to the contract, the Company is currently
committed to pay $4.0 million to the automaker on January 4, 2010.

The Company has a software license agreement with a software provider pursuant to which the Company is required to pay the software
provider $2.2 million for prepaid royalties for licenses within three business days of the date on which the Company (i) completes a financing
resulting in net proceeds in excess of $15.0 million and (ii) has no fewer than three contracts executed with automotive manufacturers for a
factory installed telematics system of which at least two of such contracts expressly provide for the installation of no fewer than an aggregate of
500,000 vehicles that use the software.

In April 2008, the Company entered into an amended agreement with a supplier pursuant to which the Company committed to purchase services
in an aggregate amount of no less than $6.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2009 and $9.0 million in each of the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012. If it becomes probable that the anticipated services to be purchased under this agreement will be below the
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contractual minimums, the Company will record a liability for such anticipated shortfall. As of September 30, 2009, the Company expects to
meet the contractual minimums and, accordingly, has not recorded a liability for an anticipated shortfall under this agreement.

Litigation and Claims

On May 7, 2009, Networkfleet was served with a complaint in a patent infringement case titled Innovative Global Systems LLC vs. Turnpike
Global Technologies L.L.C. et al. that was filed in the Eastern District of Texas. The case seeks damages from Networkfleet and five other
defendants for allegedly infringing on five patents held by the plaintiffs. Networkfleet intends to vigorously defend itself in this action. Though
it intends to vigorously contest the case, the Company is unable to predict the outcome, or reasonably estimate a range of possible losses, if any,
given the current status of the case.

Additionally, from time to time, the Company is subject to litigation in the normal course of business. The Company is of the opinion that, based
on information presently available, the resolution of any such legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial
position, results of operations or its cash flows.

(14) Segment Information

The Company presents its segment information along the same lines that its chief executive officer reviews its operating results in assessing
performance and allocating resources. Accordingly, the Company s operations have been classified into two business segments: (i) HUGHES
Telematics and (ii) Networkfleet. The HUGHES Telematics segment is developing the factory installed, end-to-end telematics solution which is
being marketed to automakers and includes the Company s corporate expenses. The Networkfleet segment provides an aftermarket wireless fleet
management solution targeted to the local fleet market.

The following table presents certain financial information on the Company s reportable segments:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
(in thousands)

Revenues:
HUGHES Telematics $ $ $ $
Networkfleet 8,713 7,990 24,568 20,965
Total $ 8,713 $ 7,990 $ 24,568 $ 20,965

(Loss) Income from operations:

HUGHES Telematics $ (38,687) $ (12,205) $(71,309) $(32,517)
Networkfleet 733 97 1,491 (720)
Total $(37,954) $(12,108) $(69,818) $ (33,237)
September 30, December 31,
2009 2008
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Total assets:

HUGHES Telematics $ 95,114 $ 88,341

Networkfleet 18,473 20,641

Total $ 113,587 $ 108,982
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Substantially all of the Company s assets are located within the United States. As of each of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the
Company included the $5.2 million of goodwill in the total assets of the Networkfleet segment.

(15) Subsequent Events

The Company s management has evaluated the period from October 1, 2009 through February 16, 2010, the date of filing of this registration
statement on Form S-1, for subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure in the financial statements contained herein. During the period,
no material recognizable subsequent events were identified. Non- recognizable subsequent events were identified and are disclosed below.

On December 17, 2009, the Company entered into a credit agreement (the Second Lien Credit Agreement ) with PLASE HT, LLC ( PLASE HT ),
as administrative agent, collateral agent and original lender, pursuant to which the Company issued indebtedness due October 1, 2013 with an
original principal amount of $15.0 million. PLASE HT is an affiliate of Apollo and of the Company s controlling stockholder, Communications
LLC. The loans under the Second Lien Credit Agreement bear interest at 9.00% per annum, payable-in-kind, and are guaranteed by all of the
Company s existing and future domestic subsidiaries. The loans are secured by a second priority lien on substantially all of the Company s

tangible and intangible assets, including the equity interests of the Company s subsidiaries. The liens granted in connection with the Second Lien
Credit Agreement are expressly subject and subordinated to the liens securing the Company s obligations under the Credit Agreement with

Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc. as administrative agent, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, as collateral agent, and the lenders from time

to time party thereto. In connection with the issuance of the Second Lien Credit Agreement, the Company issued PLASE HT a warrant to

purchase 3,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $6.00 per share and entered into a registration rights agreement.

On December 18, 2009, the Company issued HNS a senior unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of approximately $8.3 million
through the conversion of a trade accounts payable balance of approximately $6.0 million and the approximately $2.3 million outstanding
balance on the equipment financing arrangement owed to HNS. The promissory note accrues interest at a rate of 12.00% per annum,
compounded annually, and becomes due and payable on December 31, 2010. The Company is required to make scheduled principal payments of
approximately $0.8 million on April 15,2010 and $1.5 million on each of July 15, 2010 and October 15, 2010. In addition, subject to all
restrictions in the Credit Agreement and the Second Lien Credit Agreement and certain other limitations, to the extent the Company sells any
capital equipment purchased by it (or purchased by HNS on its behalf) for use in connection with the Telematics Agreement between the parties,
but no longer needed by the Company, the Company shall make unscheduled prepayments of principal on the promissory note equal to the
proceeds from the sale of such capital equipment (net of any selling costs).

On December 28, 2009, the Company completed a private placement of 2,516,667 shares of common stock to a group of institutional accredited
investors at a per share price of $3.00. The aggregate purchase price for the common stock sold in the private placement was approximately $7.4
million in cash and the exchange of 1,662,200 of the Company s publicly-traded warrants which were cancelled following the closing of the
private placement. The Company intends to use the net proceeds from the private placement for general corporate purposes. In connection with
the private placement, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement with the purchasers requiring that, among other things, the
Company file this registration statement to register the resale of the shares of common stock sold in the private placement. If the Company does
not meet certain deadlines with respect to making this registration statement effective, then cash penalties of 1% of the purchase price per month
for up to twelve months may apply.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
HUGHES Telematics, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders (deficit) equity
and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31,
2008 and 2007 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from
January 9, 2006 (Inception) to December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,

and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2007 the Company adopted a new accounting standard that required it to
change the manner in which it accounts for uncertain tax positions.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note
1 to the financial statements, the Company has incurred recurring losses from operations and has a net capital deficiency that raises substantial
doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Atlanta, GA
March 16, 2009, except for the effects of the recapitalization

described in Note 1, as to which the date is July 24, 2009
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Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share data)

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $689 and $696, respectively

Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total current assets
Restricted cash

Property and equipment, net
Capitalized software
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill

Debt issuance costs

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Deficit

Current portion of capital lease obligations
Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock (Note 10)

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock (Note 10)

Long-term debt

Capital lease obligations
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Stockholders deficit:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, Authorized 10,000,000 shares

Common stock, $0.01 par value, Authorized 155,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding 22,778,782 shares at

December 31, 2008 and 2007
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit

Table of Contents

December 31,
2008 2007
$ 17,837 $ 22,017
5,333
5,697 3,911
2,014 2,758
967 387
116 412
974 45
32,938 29,530
3,750 997
21,341 3,884
16,749 3,412
16,419 19,833
5,169 5,169
6,086
6,530 107
$ 108,982 $ 62,932
$ 16,158 $ 7,959
6,237 4,191
480 449
1,738
5,000
361 767
24,974 18,366
62,092 57,017
66,596
5,593
116 412
281
159,652 75,795
2 2
42,964 23,304
(93,636) (36,169)
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Total stockholders deficit
Total liabilities and stockholders deficit

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-24

Table of Contents

(50,670)

$ 108,982

(12,863)

$ 62,932
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Revenues:
Hardware
Services

Total revenues

Costs and expenses:

Cost of hardware sold
Cost of services

Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative

Total costs and expenses

Loss from operations
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income

Loss before income taxes
Income tax benefit

Net loss

HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands)

Basic and diluted loss per share

Basic and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding

Table of Contents

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007
$ 13,642 $ 11,009
16,618 9,343
30,260 20,352
9,585 7,767
6,009 4,102
33,626 23,540
7,622 5,712
21,076 12,808
77,918 53,929
(47,658) (33,577)
868 853
(10,820) (1,811)
143
(57,467) (34,535)
2,202
$ (57,467) $ (32,333)
$ (12.19) $ (6.88)
4,712,501 4,700,993

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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January 9, 2006
(Inception) to
December 31,

2006

$ 5,050
1,863

6,913

3,275
1,251
3,129
1,257
4,137

13,049

(6,136)
441
(409)

(6,104)
2,268

$ (3,836)
$ (0.92)

4,182,940
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HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Interest expense on Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock

Interest expense on long-term debt and capital leases

Amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts on long-term debt
Share-based compensation expense

Deferred income taxes

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable, net

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable and accrued and other liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchases of short-term investments

Maturities of short-term investments

Purchases of property and equipment

Increase in capitalized software

Increase in restricted cash

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Repayment of capital lease obligations

Payments of debt issuance costs

Proceeds from issuance of Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock and warrants
Proceeds from issuance of Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock

Redemption of Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
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Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007
$ (57,467) $ (32,333)
5,911 4,454
2,561 1,811
5,863
2,396
448 53
(2,202)
(1,785) (153)
744 (1,981)
(6,705) 65
8,886 6,787
31 (63)
(39,117) (23,562)
1,800
(11,410) (3,497)
(12,237) (3,412)
(8,086)
(31,733) (5,109)
76,000
(1,045)
(3,285)
35,000
(5,000)
100
66,670 35,100
(4,180) 6,429
22,017 15,588
$ 17,837 $ 22,017

January 9, 2006
(Inception) to
December 31,

2006

$ (3,836)
1,525
409
1
(2,268)
(1,876)
190
(246)

2,801
512

(2,788)

(23,094)
(1,800)

(1,083)
(997)

(26,974)

40,000
5,000

350
45,350

15,588

$ 15,588
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Supplemental noncash disclosure:
Property and equipment acquired by capital lease obligations $ 8,026 $
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS

(In thousands, except share data)

Balance, January 9, 2006 (inception)

Initial capitalization

Issuance of common stock to executive officers

Issuance of common stock to acquire assets of SecureTnet
International, LLC

Issuance of Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock and warrant
Share-based compensation expense

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2006

Issuance of common in connection with the exercise of stock
options

Issuance of Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock and
warrants

Share-based compensation expense

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2007

Issuance of warrants in connection with senior secured term
indebtedness

Issuance of warrants as debt issuance cost

Deemed capital contribution from a related party (Note 11)
Extension of mandatory redemption date of Series A
Redeemable Preferred Stock

Share-based compensation expense

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2008

Common Stock

Shares Amount
$

18,287,397 2
731,496
3,698,931

22,717,824 2
60,958

22,778,782 2

22,778,782 $ 2

EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Additional
Paid-In Accumulated
Capital Deficit
$ $
348
2,598
5,137
1
(3,836)
8,084 (3,836)
100
15,067
53
(32,333)
23,304 (36,169)
12,103
3,580
5,778
(2,249)
448
(57,467)
$ 42,964 $  (93,636)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Total
Stockholders
Equity
(Deficit)

$
350

2,598

5,137

1
(3,836)

4,250
100
15,067

53
(32,333)

(12,863)
12,103
3,580
5,778

(2,249)

448
(57.,467)

$ (50,670)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1) Organization, Basis of Presentation and Business

On March 31, 2009, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 13, 2008 (as amended and restated on November 10,

2008 and March 12, 2009, the Merger Agreement ), Hughes Telematics, Inc. ( Old HTI ), a privately held company, and Polaris Acquisition Corp.

( Polaris ), a publicly held blank check company, consummated the merger (the Merger ) whereby Old HTI merged with and into a wholly owned
direct subsidiary of Polaris with Old HTI as the surviving corporation, and immediately thereafter, Old HTI merged with and into Polaris, with

Polaris as the surviving corporation (the Company ) (see Note 2). In connection with the Merger, Polaris changed its name from Polaris

Acquisition Corp. to HUGHES Telematics, Inc. As used throughout these consolidated financial statements, the Company refers to the business,
operations and financial results of (i) Old HTI prior to the closing of the Merger and (ii) HUGHES Telematics, Inc. subsequent to the closing of

the Merger, as the context requires.

Notwithstanding the legal form of the transaction, the Merger has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting as a reverse
acquisition, equivalent to a recapitalization, through the issuance of stock by Old HTI for the net monetary assets of Polaris. The determination
of Old HTI as the accounting acquirer was made based on consideration of all quantitative and qualitative factors of the Merger, including
significant consideration given to the fact that following consummation of the Merger (i) the stockholders of Old HTI control a majority of the
voting power of the Company, (ii) the controlling stockholder of Old HTI prior to the Merger, together with its affiliates, controls approximately
72% of the voting power of the Company and has the right to select a majority of the members of the Company s board of directors and (iii) the
management of Old HTI continued in all executive officer and other senior management positions of the Company and, accordingly, has
day-to-day authority to carry out the business plan after the Merger. Accordingly, the historical financial statements of the Company prior to
March 31, 2009 are the historical financial statements of Old HTI. The consolidated financial statements of Old HTI have been retroactively
restated to reflect the recapitalization of Old HTI with the 77,102,149 shares of Company common stock issued to Old HTI equity holders in
connection with the Merger. All share and per share amounts in these consolidated financial statements have been restated to reflect such
recapitalization.

The Company is developing an embedded, end-to-end telematics solution which is being marketed to automakers. The Company s technology
allows for two-way communications with a vehicle which supports numerous applications including safety and security services, remote vehicle
diagnostics, remote emissions monitoring and other location-based services. Following the acquisition of Networkcar, Inc., now known as
Networkfleet, Inc. ( Networkfleet ), on August 1, 2006, the Company also provides an aftermarket wireless fleet management solution targeted to
the local fleet market.

The Company s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary Networkfleet following the acquisition of Networkfleet. All intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated. Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current presentation.

During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, the Company incurred a
net loss of approximately $57.5 million, $32.3 million and $3.8 million, respectively, and used cash in operations of approximately $39.1

million, $23.6 million and $2.8 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
$17.8 million and an accumulated deficit of approximately $93.6 million. Management believes that the cash on hand, the cash proceeds
received in connection with the sale of the Company s Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the New Series B Preferred Stock ) on March 12,
2009, and a combination of any of the cash to be received in connection with the Merger (see Note 2); future potential financing from affiliates
of Apollo Advisors V, L.P. ( Apollo ); and other financing transactions being pursued will allow the Company to continue operations
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

beyond December 31, 2009. There is no assurance that the Company will be successful in obtaining additional financing to fund its operations.
The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

(2) Merger with Polaris Acquisition Corp.

On March 31, 2009, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Old HTI and Polaris consummated the Merger. Upon closing of the Merger, the
outstanding equity securities of Old HTI were exchanged for an aggregate of 77,102,149 shares of Company common stock, comprised of
19,854,018 initial shares and 57,248,131 earn-out shares. In addition, all options exercisable for Old HTI common stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Merger were exchanged for options exercisable for an aggregate of 2,274,935 shares of Company common stock, which
includes 1,751,859 earn-out options. The earn-out shares, which were issued into escrow, will be released to the Old HTI stockholders and the
earn-out options will be eligible to be exercised, according to their terms, by the optionholders, each in three tranches, upon the trading share
price of the Company s common stock reaching at least $20.00, $24.50 and $30.50 (as may be adjusted or amended in accordance with the
escrow agreement) within certain measurement periods over the five-year period following the closing of the Merger. The Old HTI stockholders
placed 5,782,661 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 1,489,053 initial shares and 4,293,608 earn-out shares, in escrow until

June 30, 2010 to indemnify the Company for the payment of indemnification claims that may be made as a result of breaches of Old HTI s
covenants, representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Polaris founders agreed to deposit
an aggregate of 1,250,000 shares of their Company common stock into escrow at closing with such shares being released upon the achievement
of the first share price target between the first and fifth anniversary of closing. Upon consummation of the Merger, the Polaris founders also
transferred an aggregate of 168,000 shares of common stock to the Company with such shares to be cancelled.

In order to consummate the Merger, the Company agreed to purchase an aggregate of 7,439,978 shares of Company common stock from a
limited number of institutional shareholders in separate and privately negotiated transactions which were executed prior to the conclusion of the
special meeting in which Polaris shareholders voted on the Merger. On April 2, 2009, the Company consummated these purchases using
approximately $74.4 million of the approximately $97.2 million of cash received from Polaris in connection with the Merger.

(3) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. The
Company considers all debt securities with maturities of more than three months but less than one year as short-term investments and classifies
investments in such short-term debt securities as held to maturity. The cost of these securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and
accretion of discounts to maturity over the contractual life of the security.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable consists primarily of trade receivables from customers and are generally due within 30 days of the invoice date. The
Company estimates uncollectible accounts receivable based on specific troubled accounts or other currently available evidence. The specific
allowances are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional information regarding collectability is received. After all reasonable attempts to collect
the receivable have been exhausted, the account is written off against the allowance.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market. The Company periodically assesses the market value of its
inventory, based on sales trends and forecasts and technological changes, and records a charge to current-period income when such factors
indicate that a reduction in net realizable value has occurred.

Restricted Cash

To secure certain lease obligations, the Company must maintain letters of credit in an aggregate amount of approximately $3.8 million. The
agreements governing the letters of credit require the Company to maintain restricted cash accounts which hold collateral equal to no less than
the aggregate face amount of the outstanding letters of credit. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had approximately $3.8 million
and $1.0 million, respectively, in the restricted cash accounts.

Pursuant to a Credit Agreement (see Note 8), the Company is required to maintain an escrow account for the benefit of the lenders of the senior
secured term indebtedness. Following the initial issuance of senior secured term indebtedness in March 2008, the Company was required to
maintain a balance in the escrow account of no less than 25% of the outstanding principal balance of the senior secured term indebtedness. The
25% coverage was to be reduced on a pro rata basis over the next $67.5 million of debt or equity capital raised by the Company after March
2008. If a balance remains in the escrow account on March 31, 2009, the Company will be required to make an offer to prepay outstanding term
indebtedness with an aggregate principal amount equal to such remaining balance. As of December 31, 2008, the amount held in the escrow
account was approximately $5.3 million. As the Company raises an additional $24.0 million of debt or equity financing, the remaining amount
held in the escrow account will be released on a pro rata basis. As a result of the sale of New Series B Preferred Stock on March 12, 2009 (see
Note 14), the remaining approximately $5.3 million was released from the escrow account.

Restricted cash balances which are expected to be restricted for more than one year have been classified as non-current assets on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at original acquisition cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvement,
whichever is shorter. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Capitalized Software

Software development costs are capitalized in accordance with the AICPA s Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer
Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use ( SOP 98-1 ). SOP 98-1 requires companies to capitalize qualifying computer software costs
that are incurred during the application development stage and amortize them over the software s estimated useful life. Costs capitalized include
direct labor, outside services, materials, software licenses and capitalized interest. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the
Company capitalized $13.3 million and $3.4 million, respectively, of software development costs. Amortization will begin when the software is
ready for its intended use and will be recognized over the expected useful life of the software, but not to exceed five years.

F-30

Table of Contents 118



Edgar Filing: GABELLI UTILITY TRUST - Form N-Q

Table of Conten
HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Goodwill and Intangibles

The Company records goodwill when consideration paid in a purchase acquisition exceeds the fair value of the net tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (  SFAS ) No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, goodwill and identified intangible assets with an indefinite life are not amortized but are tested for impairment at least
annually or whenever changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The Company performs its annual
goodwill impairment analysis as of December 31 of each year. The annual impairment analysis as of December 31, 2008 indicated that there was
no goodwill impairment for the year ended December 31, 2008. The Company amortizes the identified intangible assets with a finite life over
their respective useful lives on a straight-line basis, which approximates the projected utility of such assets based on the available information.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and identifiable intangibles with finite useful lives are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net undiscounted cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the
amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Debt Issuance Costs

Costs associated with the issuance of debt are deferred and amortized to interest expense, using the effective interest method, over the term of
the respective debt.

Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue through the sale of Networkfleet s products and services. Hardware sales consist principally of revenues from the
sale of Networkfleet s telematics device, primarily to resellers. Shipping and handling costs for hardware shipped to resellers are classified as
cost of hardware sold. Networkfleet s customers enter into a service contract which generally has a 12-month initial term which automatically
renews for successive one-month periods thereafter. The Company has determined that the sale of Networkfleet s hardware and its services
constitutes a revenue arrangement with multiple deliverables in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force ( EITF ) Issue No. 00-21,
Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Element Deliverables. The Company accounts for the sale of hardware and the
accompanying service as separate units of accounting. Revenue is recognized on sales of hardware when shipped to resellers or other customers
and collection is considered probable. Consideration received for the monitoring and tracking services are recognized as service revenue when
earned. Prepaid service fees are recorded as deferred revenue and are recognized as revenue when earned.

The Company has a long-term contract with each of two automakers pursuant to which the automakers have agreed to install telematics devices
in their vehicles and permit the Company to exclusively provide telematics services to their new customers. Those contracts also require the
Company to pay each automaker for certain non-recurring costs associated with the initiation of telematics services (see Note 12). In accordance
with EITF Issue No. 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor s Products),
amounts paid under these agreements will be capitalized and recognized as a reduction of revenue over the term of the respective agreement.
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Research and Development
The Company incurs research and development costs in the course of developing its products and services. Such costs are expensed as incurred.
Share-Based Compensation

The Company records expense for share-based compensation awards based on the fair value recognition provisions contained in SFAS

No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment ( SFAS 123(R) ). The fair value of stock option awards is determined using an option pricing model that is
based on established principles of financial economic theory. Assumptions regarding volatility, expected term, dividend yield and risk-free rate
are required for valuation of stock option awards (see Note 10).

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

In assessing the need to record a valuation allowance against the Company s deferred tax assets, management considers, based upon all available
evidence, whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Due to the Company s early
stage and its operating losses, there is uncertainty with respect to whether the Company will ultimately realize its deferred tax assets.
Accordingly, as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax asset.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
( FIN 48 ). The adoption of FIN 48 did not result in an increase or decrease to the Company s accrual for uncertain tax positions and no adjustment
was recorded to retained earnings upon adoption.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from nonowner
sources. The Company s comprehensive loss for years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from January 9, 2006 to
December 31, 2006 equaled the Company s net loss.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted loss
per share reflects the potential dilution from the exercise or conversion of securities into common stock. The potential dilutive effect of
outstanding stock options and warrants is calculated using the treasury stock method.

During all periods presented, the Company had potential common shares, including shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock
options and warrants, which could potentially dilute basic loss per share in the future, but were excluded in the computation of diluted loss per
share in such periods, as their effect would have
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been antidilutive. Potential common shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options and warrants but excluded from the
calculation of diluted loss per share were 41,811,616 shares, 35,512,283 shares and 12,612,206 shares for the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007 and for the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of
management estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company s financial instruments include cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, letters of credit, the Series A
Redeemable Preferred Stock (the Series A Preferred Stock ) and long-term debt. The Company discloses the estimated fair values for all financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the fair value of these instruments, other than

the Series A Preferred Stock and long-term debt, approximates book value due to their short-term duration.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist of cash, cash equivalents, short-term
investments and accounts receivable. Although the Company maintains cash balances at financial institutions that exceed federally insured
limits, these balances are placed with various high credit quality financial institutions.

The Company generates revenues principally from customers located in the United States. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and
for the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, one, one and two customers, respectively, individually accounted for more than 10%
of the Company s revenues. Combined, these customers accounted for approximately $3.6 million and $2.1 million of total revenues for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $1.7 million of total revenues for the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006.

The Company s significant customers, as measured by percentage of total revenues, were as follows:

Year Ended January 9, 2006
December 31, (Inception) to
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
Customer A 11.8% 10.3%
Customer B 13.4%
Customer C 11.7%

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, three and two customers, respectively, individually accounted for over 10% of the Company s total accounts
receivable balance. Combined, these customers accounted for $3.0 million of the Company s total accounts receivable balance as of
December 31, 2008 and $1.2 million of the Company s total accounts receivable balance as of December 31, 2007.
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The Company s significant customers, as measured by percentage of total accounts receivable, were as follows:

December 31,
2008 2007
Customer A 18.6% 13.9%
Customer D 16.8% 12.0%
Customer E 10.8%

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard ( SFAS ) No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements ( SFAS 157 ). This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years

beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. In February 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position No. 157-2

( FSP 157-2 ) which delays the effective date of SFAS 157 by one year for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. Those assets and liabilities measured at fair value under
SFAS 157 in the year ended December 31, 2008 did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements. In
accordance with FSP 157-2, the Company will measure the remaining assets and liabilities no later than the three months ended March 31, 2009.
The Company is evaluating the impact the adoption of FSP 157-2 may have on its financial position and results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities Including an Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 115 ( SFAS 159 ). Under this standard, entities will be permitted to measure many financial instruments and certain other
assets and liabilities at fair value on an instrument-by-instrument basis. SFAS 159 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The
Company determined that the utilization of fair value reporting is not appropriate for the Company s financial instruments for which fair value
measurement is not required. Consequently, the adoption of SFAS 159 did not have a material impact on the Company s financial position and
results of operations.

In November 2007, the EITF issued Issue No. 07-1, Accounting for Collaborative Arrangements ( EITF 07-1 ). EITF 07-1 states that income
statement classification of payments between parties in an arrangement should be based on a consideration of (a) the nature and terms of the
arrangement, (b) the nature of the entities operations and (c) whether the parties payments are within the scope of other existing generally
accepted accounting principles. EITF 07-1 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The adoption of EITF 07-1 did not have a
material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

In June 2008, the EITF issued Issue No. 07-5, Determining Whether an Instrument (or Embedded Feature) is Indexed to an Entity s Own Stock
( EITF 07-5 ), which provides guidance on determining what types of instruments or embedded features in an instrument held by a reporting
entity can be considered indexed to its own stock. Under EITF 07-5, the Company first evaluates any contingent exercise provisions based on
the guidance that was originally issued in EITF Issue No. 01-6, and second, evaluates the instruments settlement provisions. EITF 07-5 is
effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2008. Based on a preliminary evaluation of the impact of the adoption of EITF 07-5,
the Company has determined that the warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock and the warrants issued in
connection with the issuance of the senior secured term indebtedness may contain provisions which, in accordance with EITF 07-5, would
indicate that the warrants are not indexed to the Company s stock. If the warrants are deemed not to be
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indexed to the Company s stock, then upon the adoption of EITF 07-5, the Company will reclassify the warrants from equity to a liability and
will record a gain or loss each period, beginning in the first quarter of 2009 and continuing through the date the warrants are exercised, to
recognize the change in fair market value of these instruments. The Company continues to evaluate the impact the adoption of EITF 07-5 may
have on its financial position and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations ( SFAS 141(R) ), which revised the guidance contained in SFAS
No. 141, Business Combinations. Significant revisions include: (i) all transaction costs related to a business combination are to be expensed

when incurred; (ii) certain contingent assets and liabilities purchased in a business combination are to be measured at fair value; (iii) contingent
consideration (earn-out arrangements) paid in connection with a business combination are to be measured at fair value depending on the

structure of the arrangements; and (iv) subsequent material adjustments made to the purchase price allocation will be recorded back to the
acquisition date, which will cause revision of previously issued financial statements when reporting comparative period financial information in
subsequent financial statements. SFAS 141(R) will be prospectively applied for business combinations that have an acquisition date on or after
January 1, 2009. As of December 31, 2008, the Company has incurred approximately $0.9 million in transaction costs related to the Merger.

Such costs are included in other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and will be expensed in the period that the
Company adopts SFAS 141(R).

(4) Acquisition of Networkfleet

On August 1, 2006, the Company purchased all of the outstanding common stock of Networkfleet, a provider of hardware and services for
remotely monitoring the performance and location of fleet vehicles, and certain intellectual property related to the provision of telematics
services for approximately $24.7 million of cash, including approximately $0.3 million of legal and advisory fees incurred in connection with
the transaction. The Company will pay up to an additional $3.2 million of cash if certain sales targets are achieved from 2009 to 2010. The
acquisition of Networkfleet gave the Company immediate access to the growing fleet telematics market and provided the Company an
intellectual property portfolio which consists of patents covering certain of the Company s planned service offerings. The results of
Networkfleet s operations are included in the Company s results of operations for the period beginning August 1, 2006.
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The acquisition of Networkfleet has been accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. The $24.7 million purchase

price has been allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities based on their fair value. If the certain sales targets are achieved from 2009 to 2010

and the Company pays additional consideration, such amount will be recorded as an increase in goodwill. The following table presents the initial
purchase price allocation:

August 1,
2006

(in thousands)
Cash $ 1,699
Accounts receivable 1,882
Inventories 967
Other current assets 358
Property and equipment 447
Intangible assets:
Intellectual property 11,400
Existing technology 6,700
Trade name 1,100
Distributor relationships 1,000
Goodwill 5,169
Total assets acquired 30,722
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 671
Technology upgrade program 2,658
Deferred income taxes 2,682
Total liabilities acquired 6,011
Net assets acquired $ 24,711

The following unaudited pro forma information is presented as if the Company had completed the acquisition of Networkfleet as of January 9,
2006. The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of what the results of operations would have been had the acquisitions taken place
at those dates or of the future results of operations.

January 9, 2006
(Inception) to
December 31,
2006
(in thousands,
except per
share data)
Revenues $ 12,774
Net loss $ (7,470)
Loss per share basic and diluted $ (22.52)
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(5) Supplemental Balance Sheet Information
Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following:

Raw material components
Finished goods

Total
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and consisted of the following:

Estimated
Useful Lives
(Years)
Computer equipment and software 3t05
Machinery and equipment 2to5
Furniture and fixtures 5to7
Leasehold improvements 1to2

Construction in process

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

December 31,
2008 2007
(in thousands)
$1,202 $ 1,357

812 1,401

$2,014 $2,758

December 31,

2008 2007
(in thousands)
$ 5,734 $ 3,705
4,845 1,268
217 50
149 4
14,036
24,981 5,027
(3,640) (1,143)
$21,341 $ 3,884

Construction in process consists primarily of software and systems infrastructure that is being developed to support the Company s business and

operations, but which is not yet ready for use.

Depreciation expense was approximately $2.5 million, $1.0 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the

period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, respectively.
Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:
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Accrued non-inventory purchases

Accrued compensation and benefits
Technology upgrade program (see Note 12)
Accrued inventory purchases

Accrued professional and consulting fees
Accrued cost of service

Accrued marketing and promotion expenses
Other accrued expenses
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December 31,
2008 2007
(in thousands)

$2,921 $
1,760 1,903
816
236 713
180 150
157
151
832 609
$ 6,237 $4,191
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(6) Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets

On August 1, 2006, the Company acquired Networkfleet and recorded goodwill of approximately $5.2 million resulting from the allocation of
the purchase price.

Intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization were as follows:

Estimated Gross
Useful Lives Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
(Years) Amount Amortization Amount
(in thousands)

As of December 31, 2008:
Intellectual property 5to 15 $ 15,869 $  (3,997) $ 11,872
Existing technology 5 6,700 (3,238) 3,462
Trade name 5 1,100 (532) 568
Distributor relationships 5 1,000 (483) 517
Total $ 24,669 $ (8,250) $ 16,419
As of December 31, 2007:
Intellectual property 5to 15 $ 15,869 $  (2,343) $ 13,526
Existing technology 5 6,700 (1,898) 4,802
Trade name 5 1,100 (312) 788
Distributor relationships 5 1,000 (283) 717
Total $ 24,669 $ (4,836) $ 19,833

Intellectual property consists of the patent portfolio acquired in connection with the purchase of Networkfleet (see Note 4) and know-how
acquired in connection with the issuance of common stock to the shareholders of SecureTnet International, LLC (see Note 10). The existing
technology, trade name and distributor relationships intangible assets were acquired in connection with the purchase of Networkfleet.
Amortization of existing technology is included in the cost of hardware sold in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. For the
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, amortization expense was approximately
$3.4 million, $3.4 million and $1.4 million, respectively.

The estimated future amortization of intangible assets as of December 31, 2008 is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31:

2009 $ 3414
2010 3,414
2011 2,308
2012 760
2013 760
Thereafter 5,763
Total $16,419
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(7) Income Taxes

The Company and its eligible subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal income tax return. For Federal income tax purposes, the Company has
unused net operating loss ( NOL ) carryforwards of approximately $51.8 million expiring in 2021 through 2028 and unused tax credits of
approximately $2.5 million expiring in 2021 through 2027. Due to the Company s acquisition of Networkfleet, approximately $2.0 million of the
NOL carryforwards
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are subject to an annual limitation in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 382. After 2010, all of Networkfleet s NOL carryforwards
and unused tax credits will be available to offset future taxable income of the Company and its subsidiaries unless subject to other limitation.
The Company and Networkfleet also have NOL carryforwards available to offset future taxable income in certain states where income tax
returns are filed. The amounts available vary by state due to apportionment of losses to each state, and the expiration of the state NOL

carryforwards vary in accordance with applicable state laws.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, the Company s loss before
income taxes was approximately $57.5 million, $34.5 million and $6.1 million, respectively. The income tax benefit consists of the following:

Current benefit:
Federal
State

Total current benefit

Deferred benefit:
Federal
State

Total deferred benefit

Total income tax benefit

Year Ended
December 31,

2008 2007

January 9, 2006
(Inception) to
December 31,

2006

(in thousands)

$ $
1,726
476
2,202
$ $2,202

$
1,832
436
2,268
$ 2,268

The income tax benefit differs from the amount computed by applying the Federal statutory rate of 35% to the Company s loss before income

taxes as follows:

Income tax benefit at Federal statutory rate
State taxes, net of Federal benefit

Change in valuation allowance

Research tax credits

Interest expense on Series A Preferred Stock
Permanent differences and other

Total income tax benefit
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Year Ended
December 31,

2008

$ 20,114
2,725
(23,103)
1,302
(989)
(49)

2007
(in thousands)
$ 12,087
1,630
(11,784)
944
(634)
1

$ 2202

January 9, 2006
(Inception) to

December 31,
2006
$ 2,136
284
(143)
©
$ 2,268
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The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the net deferred tax liability are as follows:

December 31,
2008 2007
(in thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss and credit carryforwards $ 23,115 $ 9,243
Capitalized software 14,120 6,294
Accrued expenses 589 818
Allowance for bad debt 276 279
Inventory reserves and capitalization 227 227
Fixed assets 405 112
Other 303 132
Total gross deferred tax assets 39,035 17,105
Less: valuation allowance (34,887) (11,784)
Total deferred tax assets 4,148 5,321

Deferred tax liabilities:

Acquired intangible assets 4,148 5,321
Total deferred tax liabilities 4,148 5,321
Net deferred tax asset $ $

In assessing the need to record a valuation allowance against the Company s deferred tax assets, management considers, based upon all available
evidence, whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Due to the Company s early
stage and its operating losses, there is uncertainty with respect to whether the Company will ultimately realize its deferred tax assets.
Accordingly, as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax asset.

The adoption of FIN 48 did not result in an accrual for the year ended December 31, 2008 or 2007 for uncertain tax positions taken in current or
prior years, settlements with the taxing authorities or a lapse of the applicable statute of limitations. There are no uncertain tax positions as of
December 31, 2008 or 2007 that, if recognized, would significantly affect the effective tax rate, and there are no uncertain tax positions for
which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of the unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve months. The
Company may be subject to examination by the U.S. federal and various state tax jurisdictions for the 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 tax years.
Under the terms of the purchase agreement between the Company and the former parent company of Networkfleet, the former parent company
agreed to indemnify the Company for any taxes imposed on Networkfleet for periods prior to August 1, 2006. The Company will include interest
and penalties related to its tax contingencies in income tax expense. No interest or penalties have been recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2008 or 2007.
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(8) Long-Term Debt

The components of long-term debt were as follows:

December 31,
2008 2007
(in thousands)
Senior secured term indebtedness $53,572 $
Senior subordinated unsecured promissory note 13,024
Total long-term debt $ 66,596 $

Senior Secured Term Indebtedness

On March 31, 2008, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement pursuant to which it issued, for aggregate consideration of $20.0 million,
senior secured term indebtedness with a principal amount of $20.0 million and warrants to purchase 1,576,983 shares of Company common
stock, comprised of 362,597 initial shares and 1,214,386 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share. The
Company deposited $5.0 million of the proceeds into an escrow account which will be released to the Company on a pro rata basis over the next
$67.5 million of debt or equity capital raised by the Company. If a balance remains in the escrow account on March 31, 2009, the Company will
be required to make an offer to prepay outstanding senior secured term indebtedness with an aggregate principal amount equal to such remaining
balance.

As additional consideration for services provided by Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc. (the Lead Arranger ) in connection with the issuance
and syndication of the term indebtedness, the Company (i) issued a warrant to an affiliate of the Lead Arranger to purchase 590,622 shares of
Company common stock, comprised of 135,802 initial shares and 454,820 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per
share and (ii) agreed to issue the Lead Arranger or its designated affiliate additional warrants to purchase up to 590,622 shares of Company
common stock, comprised of 135,802 initial shares and 454,820 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share on a
pro rata basis in connection with the issuance of up to $40.0 million of incremental senior secured term indebtedness under the Credit
Agreement.

On April 9, 2008, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement pursuant to which it issued, for aggregate
consideration of $20.0 million, additional senior secured term indebtedness with a principal amount of $20.0 million and warrants to purchase
1,612,095 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 370,671 initial shares and 1,241,424 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price
of less than $0.01 per share. The Company deposited approximately $2.0 million of the proceeds into the escrow account, bringing the total
amount held in the escrow account for the benefit of all senior secured note holders to approximately $7.0 million. Pursuant to the agreement
with the Lead Arranger, the Company issued an additional warrant to purchase 295,341 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 67,908
initial shares and 227,433 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share.

On July 8, 2008, the Company entered into an Incremental Loan Commitment Agreement pursuant to which it issued, for aggregate
consideration of $15.0 million, additional senior secured term indebtedness with a principal amount of $15.0 million and warrants to purchase
1,209,041 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 277,994 initial shares and 931,047 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of
less than $0.01 per share. As a result of this transaction, approximately $0.4 million was released from the escrow account, reducing the total
amount held in the escrow account for the benefit of all senior secured note holders to approximately $6.6 million. Pursuant to the agreement
with the Lead Arranger, the Company issued an additional warrant to purchase 221,460 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 50,920
initial shares and 170,540 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share.
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On December 12, 2008, the Company entered into an Incremental Loan Commitment Agreement with Apollo Investment Fund V (PLASE), LP
( AIF V PLASE ), an affiliate of Apollo, pursuant to which it issued, for aggregate consideration of $5.0 million, additional senior secured term
indebtedness with a principal amount of $5.0 million and warrants to purchase 402,993 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 92,660
initial shares and 310,333 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share. As a result of this transaction and the
issuance of a senior subordinated unsecured promissory note on the same date, approximately $1.3 million was released from the escrow
account, reducing the total amount held in the escrow account for the benefit of all senior secured note holders to approximately $5.3 million.
Pursuant to the agreement with the Lead Arranger, the Company issued an additional warrant to purchase 73,821 shares of Company common
stock, comprised of 16,974 initial shares and 56,847 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share.

The senior secured term indebtedness is guaranteed by all of the Company s existing and future domestic subsidiaries and is secured by all of its
tangible and intangible assets. At the election of the Company, the term indebtedness bears interest at (i) the Prime Lending Rate plus 10.00% or
(ii) for Eurocurrency borrowings, 11.00% plus the greater of the London Interbank Offered Rate ( LIBOR ) or 3.00%. In accordance with an
agreement between the Company and one of the senior secured note holders, the interest rate on term indebtedness with a principal amount of
$5.0 million will have a fixed interest rate of 14.00% for the term of the debt. With respect to Eurocurrency borrowings, the Company may elect
interest periods of one, two, three, or six months (or nine or twelve months if approved by each senior secured note holder), and interest is
payable in arrears at the end of each interest period but, in any event, at least every three months. With respect to any interest period ending on
or prior to March 31, 2010 and unless the Company elects at least three days prior to the beginning of any such interest period, the interest
accrued on the term indebtedness will be paid in kind in arrears with such accrued interest being added to the outstanding principal balance of
the term indebtedness. With respect to all interest periods ending after March 31, 2010, the accrued interest will be paid in cash in arrears. As of
December 31, 2008, the Company had elected to convert all outstanding amounts of the term indebtedness to Prime Lending Rate borrowings
which resulted in the term indebtedness bearing an interest rate of 13.25%.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement governing the term indebtedness requires the Company to comply with certain negative covenants
which include limitations on the Company s ability to incur additional debt; create liens; pay dividends or make other distributions; make loans
and investments; sell assets; redeem or repurchase capital stock or subordinated debt; engage in specified transactions with affiliates; consolidate
or merge with or into, or sell substantially all of its assets to, another person; and enter into new lines of business. The Company may incur
indebtedness beyond the specific limits allowed under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, provided it maintains a leverage ratio of no
greater than 5.0 to 1.0. Noncompliance with any of the covenants without cure or waiver would constitute an event of default. An event of
default resulting from a breach of a covenant may result, at the option of the note holders, in an acceleration of the principal and interest
outstanding. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement also contains other events of default (subject to specified grace periods), including
defaults based on the termination of the Company s contract with an automaker, events of bankruptcy and insolvency, and nonpayment of
principal, interest or fees when due.

The warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the term indebtedness are exercisable upon the earlier to occur of (i) the repayment of the
term indebtedness, (ii) a change of control as defined in the warrant agreement, (iii) a transaction or event causing or allowing the holders to sell
the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants pursuant to the Co-Sale Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, as amended, by
and among the Company, Communications LLC and the holders of the warrants. If not exercised prior to the earlier of (i) the date on which the
Company becomes subject to the requirement to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or (ii) March 31, 2013, the warrants will be
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automatically exercised on such date with no action required on the part of the holders (except the payment of the aggregate exercise price). In
the event that the term indebtedness is prepaid in full prior to March 31, 2010, the number of shares for which each warrant is exercisable shall
be reduced by 18.75%. As additional consideration for services provided by the Lead Arranger in connection with the issuance and syndication
of the term indebtedness, the Company agreed to issue the Lead Arranger or its designated affiliate additional warrants to purchase a number of
shares of common stock equal to the reduction in the number of shares of common stock issuable under the warrants held by Morgan Stanley
Senior Funding, Inc. or its affiliates in the event the term indebtedness is prepaid in full by March 31, 2010. The number of shares for which
each warrant is exercisable is subject to additional adjustment under certain anti-dilution and other provisions as set forth in the warrant
agreement.

In accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 14, Accounting for Convertible Debt and Debt Issued with Stock Purchase
Warrants, as of each issuance date, the Company ascribed value to the senior secured term indebtedness and the related warrants based on their
relative fair values. As such, $16.7 million, $16.7 million, $10.5 million and $2.9 million was allocated to the senior secured term indebtedness
and $3.3 million, $3.3 million, $4.5 million and $1.0 million was allocated to the warrants on the March 31, 2008, April 9, 2008, July 8, 2008
and December 12, 2008 issuance dates, respectively. The resulting discount from the face value of the senior secured term indebtedness resulting
from the ascribed value to the warrants will be amortized as additional interest expense over the term of the senior secured term indebtedness
using the effective interest rate method.

In connection with the issuance of the senior secured term indebtedness to AIF V PLASE on December 12, 2008, the Company recorded a
deemed capital contribution from Apollo of approximately $1.0 million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an
estimated interest rate the Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the stated
interest rate. The Company determined the estimated fair value amount by using available market information and commonly accepted valuation
methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the fair
value estimates presented herein is not necessarily indicative of the amount that the Company or holders of the instruments could realize in a
current market exchange. The use of different assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair
value. The discount from the face value of the senior secured term indebtedness resulting from the deemed capital contribution will be amortized
as additional interest expense over the term of the senior secured term indebtedness using the effective interest rate method.

Senior Subordinated Unsecured Promissory Notes

On March 31, 2008, the Company issued to Communications LLC a senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of
$12.5 million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013. The note bears interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum which is compounded and added to
the principal amount annually and is payable at maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a deemed capital
contribution from Apollo of approximately $2.4 million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated interest
rate the Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the 15.00% stated interest
rate. The discount from the face value of the note resulting from the deemed capital contribution will be amortized as additional interest expense
over the term of the note using the effective interest rate method.

On December 12, 2008, the Company issued to AIF V PLASE an additional senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal
amount of $3.5 million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013. The note bears interest at 15.00% per annum which is compounded and added to
the principal amount annually and is payable at
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maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded an additional deemed capital contribution of approximately $2.4
million from Apollo related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated interest rate the Company would have paid
an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the 15.00% stated interest rate. The discount from the face value
of the note resulting from the deemed capital contribution will be amortized as additional interest expense over the term of the note using the
effective interest rate method.

At the time of issuance of each promissory note, the Company determined the estimated fair value amount by using available market information
and commonly accepted valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop estimates
of fair value. Accordingly, the fair value estimates presented herein is not necessarily indicative of the amount that the Company or holders of
the instruments could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a
material effect on the estimated fair value.

(9) Capital Lease Obligations

The Company leases certain equipment under capital lease arrangements expiring at various times through 2011. The assets and liabilities under
capital leases are recorded at the lower of the present values of the minimum lease payments or the fair values of the assets. The interest rates
pertaining to these capital leases range from 7.25% to 11.00% (average interest rate is 8.18%). One of the lease arrangements is between the
Company and Hughes Network Systems, LLC ( HNS ), a related party (see Note 11).

Minimum future lease payments under these capital leases are:

December 31,

2008 2007
(in thousands)
Total future minimum lease payments $ 7,819 $
Less: amounts representing interest (488)
Net minimum lease payments 7,331
Current portion (1,738)
Long-term portion $ 5,593 $

(10) Stockholders Equity
Common Stock

On July 21, 2006, the Company sold an aggregate of 731,496 shares of its common stock, comprised of 168,194 initial shares and 563,302
earn-out shares, for nominal consideration to two individuals who later became the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the President of
the Company to whom it had previously agreed to sell such equity.

On July 31, 2006, the Company issued 3,698,931 shares of its common stock, comprised of 850,496 initial shares and 2,848,435 earn-out shares,
to the shareholders of SecureTnet International, LLC as consideration for the contribution of intellectual property, including technical know-how
related to the development of an end-to-end telematics solution.
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Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock

On July 28, 2006, the Company issued and sold to Communications LLC, for an aggregate purchase price of $40.0 million, 4,000 shares of the
Company s Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase 12,191,598 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 2,803,223 initial
shares and 9,388,375 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of $0.82 per share. On June 19, 2007, the Company issued and sold to
Communications LLC, for an aggregate purchase price of $15.0 million, an additional 1,500 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant to
purchase 9,143,698 shares of Company common stock, comprised of 2,102,417 initial shares and 7,041,281 earn-out shares, at an equivalent
exercise price of $1.64 per share. On November 29, 2007, the Company issued and sold to Communications LLC, for an aggregate purchase
price of $20.0 million, an additional 2,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase 12,191,598 shares of Company common
stock, comprised of 2,803,223 initial shares and 9,388,375 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of $2.46 per share. The Series A
Preferred Stock is non-voting, has a liquidation preference of $10,000 per share and is senior in priority to the Company s common stock. As of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, there were 7,500 shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding, and the aggregate liquidation preference of the
Series A Preferred Stock was $75.0 million. On October 1, 2013, the Company will be required to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock at a
redemption price equal to $10,000 per share. In the event of a change of control, as defined, at the option of the holders of the majority of the
then outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, the Company is required to redeem all or any number of such holders shares of Series A
Preferred Stock. The holders of at least a majority of the Series A Preferred Stock, generally voting together as a single class, must consent in
order for the Company to take certain defined actions. Significant actions subject to protective provisions include the payment of dividends on
capital stock of the Company and the redemption, repurchase or retirement of any capital stock of the Company.

The warrants are currently exercisable and expire ten years after the date of issuance. The holder of each warrant has the option to pay the
exercise price of the warrant in cash, surrendering Company common stock or Series A Preferred Stock previously acquired, or instructing the
Company to withhold a number of Company shares with an aggregate fair value equal to the aggregate exercise price. The exercise price and the
number of shares for which each warrant is exercisable for is subject to adjustment under certain anti-dilution and other provisions as set forth in
the warrant agreement.

As of each sale date, the Company ascribed value to the Series A Preferred Stock and the warrant based on their relative fair values. As such,
$34.9 million, $8.2 million and $11.7 million was allocated to Series A Preferred Stock and $5.1 million, $6.8 million and $8.3 million was
allocated to the warrants on the July 28, 2006, June 19, 2007 and November 29, 2007 sale dates, respectively. The Series A Preferred Stock is
accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and
Equity ( SFAS 150 ), with the accretion of the book value of the Series A Preferred Stock up to the $75.0 million redemption amount being
recorded as interest expense on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

In connection with the issuance of the term indebtedness, on March 31, 2008, Communications LLC agreed to extend the mandatory redemption
date of the Series A Preferred Stock to October 1, 2013. In accordance with EITF Issue No. 96-19, Debtor s Accounting for a Modification or
Exchange of Debt Instruments, this extension was deemed to be an extinguishment and reissuance of the Series A Preferred Stock, and
accordingly, the Company recorded approximately $2.2 million as a decrease to additional paid in capital for the difference between the fair
value of the Series A Preferred Stock following the extension and the book value prior to the extension.
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Retired Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock

On September 29, 2006, the Company issued and sold to a strategic partner 1,000 shares of the Company s Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock
(the Retired Series B Preferred Stock ) for a purchase price of $5.0 million. The Retired Series B Preferred Stock was non-voting, had a
liquidation preference of $5,000 per share and was senior in priority to each of the Company s Series A Preferred Stock and the Company s
common stock. There were no shares of Retired Series B Preferred Stock outstanding as of December 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2007, there
were 1,000 shares of Retired Series B Preferred Stock outstanding with a liquidation preference of $5.0 million. The sale of the Retired Series B
Preferred Stock was in connection with a strategic relationship entered into by and between the Company and the strategic partner in September
2006 that the parties agreed to further document in a detailed commercial agreement. Since the commercial agreement was not executed by
March 31, 2007, the Retired Series B Preferred Stock became redeemable by its terms at the option of either party for $5.0 million. Accordingly,
the Retired Series B Preferred Stock has been reflected on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as a liability in accordance with SFAS
150. The Company redeemed the outstanding shares of Retired Series B Preferred Stock on March 26, 2008 for $5.0 million.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan ( Plan ) provides for share-based compensation awards, including incentive stock options,
non-qualified stock options and share awards, to the Company s officers, employees, non-employee directors and non-employee consultants.
There are 3,047,900 shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the Plan. The Plan is administered by the Company s Board of
Directors which determines eligibility, amount, and other terms and conditions of awards. Options awarded under the Plan generally have a term
of ten years and an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the underlying shares of common stock on the date of grant.

Generally, half of each award vests in equal parts over a period of three years of continued employment or service to the Company. The
remaining half of each award vests upon the achievement of certain pre-established performance goals set by the Company s Board of Directors.
In the event an option holder s service to the Company is terminated for either (i) other than good reason, as defined in the Plan, before the fifth
anniversary of the holder s service to the Company or (ii) cause, the Company may repurchase any stock obtained through the exercise of a stock
option within 180 days of such holder s termination date at a price equal to the lesser of the fair market value of the stock on the date of
termination or the exercise price of the stock option. In the event an option holder s service to the Company is terminated for any of (i) good
reason, as defined in the Plan, (ii) other than cause or (iii) following the fifth anniversary of such holder s service to the Company, the Company
may repurchase any stock obtained through the exercise of a stock option within 180 days of such holder s termination date at a price equal to the
fair market value of the stock on the date of termination.

Since January 1, 2007, the Company granted stock options with exercise prices as follows:

Intrinsic
Number of Exercise Fair Value Value

Month Shares Price per Share per Share
January 2007 204,817 $ 1.65 $ 0.70 $
March 2007 73,149 $ 1.65 $ 0.70 $
April 2007 73,149 $ 1.65 $ 0.70 $
October 2007 382,204 $ 1.65 $ 1.54 $
November 2007 1,078,950 $ 247 $ 1.64 $
January 2008 333,436 $ 247 $ 164 $
May 2008 165,195 $ 247 $ 2.40 $

The fair value of the common stock was determined contemporaneously with the grants.
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In accordance with SFAS 123(R), the Company records compensation expense for all share-based awards issued. For the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, the Company recorded approximately $0.4
million, $0.1 million and $1,000 of compensation expense, respectively, related to stock option grants. Such compensation expense is included
in research and development, sales and marketing and general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. For awards outstanding as of December 31, 2008, the Company expects to recognize approximately $1.2 million of additional
expense related to stock option awards on a straight-line basis over the remaining average service period of approximately 2.9 years.

The fair value of each award is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. For the years ended December 31,
2008, 2007 and 2006, the weighted average grant-date fair value of options awarded was $1.32, $0.98 and $0.45 per share, respectively, and was
based on the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31, January 9, 2006
(Inception) to
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
Risk free rate 3.8 3.9% 40 4.7% 4.4%
Expected term (years) 10 10 10
Expected volatility 622 63.7% 62.2% 64.0% 66.5%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon the grant date closing rate for United States treasury notes that have a life which
approximates the expected term of the option. The expected term is based upon the contractual term of each employee stock option grant as the
repurchase feature of the Plan encourages a longer holding period and the Company does not have sufficient operating history to estimate a term
shorter than the contractual term. The expected volatility is based on the average historical volatility of comparable guideline companies. The
dividend yield assumption is based on the Company s expectation that it will not pay dividends for the foreseeable future. Due to the Company s
limited operating history, forfeitures are estimated based on actual terminations.

The following table reflects stock option activity:

Number Weighted Aggregate
of Average Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price Value

(in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 1,985,389 $ 2.10
Granted 498,631 $ 2.47
Forfeited (181,654) $ 1.84
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 2,302,366 $ 2.20 $ 5,224
Exercisable at December 31, 2008 131,822 $ 1,360
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The following table provides information about stock options that are outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2008:

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Average Average Average
of Exercise Remaining Number of Exercise Remaining
Exercise Price Shares Price Life (Yrs) Shares Price Life (Yrs)
$1.65 767,455 $ 1.65 8.3 60,522 $ 1.65 8.2
$2.47 1,534,911 $ 247 9.0 71,300 $ 247 9.0

(11) Related Party Transactions
Apollo

Communications LLC and AIF V PLASE are investment funds affiliated with Apollo. As of December 31, 2008, Apollo, through
Communications LLC and AIF V PLASE, owned approximately 81% of Company s outstanding common stock on a fully diluted basis.

On March 31, 2008, the Company issued to Communications LLC a senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of
$12.5 million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013 (see Note 8). The note bears interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum which is compounded
and added to the principal amount annually and is payable at maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a
deemed capital contribution from Apollo of approximately $2.4 million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an
estimated interest rate the Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the
15.00% stated interest rate.

On December 12, 2008, the Company issued AIF V PLASE, for aggregate consideration of $5.0 million, additional senior secured term
indebtedness with a principal amount of $5.0 million and warrants to purchase 402,993 shares of common stock, comprised of 92,660 initial
shares and 310,333 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of less than $0.01 per share (see Note 8). In connection with the issuance of
the note, the Company recorded a deemed capital contribution from Apollo of approximately $1.0 million related to the difference between

(1) the fair value of the note using an estimated interest rate the Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the
fair value of the note using the 15.00% stated interest rate.

On December 12, 2008, the Company issued to AIF V PLASE a senior subordinated unsecured promissory note with a principal amount of $3.5
million and a maturity date of October 1, 2013 (see Note 8). The note bears interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum which is compounded and
added to the principal amount annually and is payable at maturity. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a deemed
capital contribution from Apollo of approximately $2.4 million related to the difference between (i) the fair value of the note using an estimated
interest rate the Company would have paid an unrelated third party on a similar note and (ii) the fair value of the note using the 15.00% stated
interest rate.

On the date of each issuance, the Company determined the estimated fair value amount by using available market information and commonly
accepted valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value.
Accordingly, the fair value estimates presented herein is not necessarily indicative of the amount that the Company or holders of the instruments
could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the
estimated fair value.

On March 12, 2009, the Company issued and sold 1,200,000 shares of New Series B Preferred Stock to AIF V PLASE for $12.0 million (see
Note 14).
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Polaris Acquisition Corp.

In September 2008, the Company entered into a services agreement with Trivergance Business Resources ( TBR ), an affiliate of certain officers
and directors of Polaris, pursuant to which TBR provided a marketing assessment and other research for the Company to aid in creating a
marketing and retention platform. The Company agreed to pay TBR a fee of approximately $0.2 million, reasonable and customary travel
expenses and certain other expenses incurred in connection with the engagement. Additionally, in November 2008, the Company entered into a
letter agreement with TBR pursuant to which the Company has engaged TBR to provide certain marketing services in exchange for a $125,000
monthly draw against a per subscriber fee payable on certain subscribers acquired beginning in November 2008 and continuing through
December 2010. A portion of the monthly draw has been deferred until the Company raises additional capital.

Hughes Network Systems

In July 2006, HNS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hughes Communications, Inc. ( HCI ) and an affiliate of Apollo, granted a limited license to
the Company allowing the Company to use the HUGHES trademark. The license is limited in that the Company may use the HUGHES
trademark only in connection with its business of automotive telematics and only in combination with the Telematics name. As partial
consideration for the license, the agreement provides that HNS will be the Company s preferred engineering services provider. The license is
royalty-free, except that the Company has agreed to commence paying a royalty to HNS in the event the Company no longer has a commercial
or affiliated relationship with HNS. As contemplated by the license terms and while the definitive agreement governing the relationship was
being negotiated, HNS provided engineering development services to the Company pursuant to an Authorization to Proceed. In January 2008,
the Company and HNS executed a definitive agreement pursuant to which HNS is continuing to provide the Company with engineering
development and manufacturing services. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from January 9, 2006 through
December 31, 2006, HNS provided approximately $30.9 million, $21.6 million and $1.6 million of services, respectively, to the Company. As of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had an outstanding balance, not including the equipment financing discussed below, of
approximately $8.9 million and $4.9 million, respectively, payable to HNS. On March 12, 2009, the Company issued and sold 1,300,000 shares
of New Series B Preferred Stock to HCI through the conversion of $13.0 million of trade accounts payable (see Note 14).

In June 2008, the Company and HNS entered into an arrangement pursuant to which HNS purchased, on behalf of the Company, certain
production equipment for an aggregate amount of approximately $2.0 million. Starting in June 2009, the Company will pay HNS at a rate of
$4.94 per telematics hardware device manufactured using the equipment; provided that (i) the Company will pay HNS a minimum of $0.2
million under this arrangement by December 31, 2009 and (ii) the Company shall have paid HNS the balance of the amount owed under this
arrangement plus all accrued interest by December 31, 2010. Interest will accrue on the outstanding balance at a rate of 11.00% per annum. The
Company may pay the balance of the amount owed plus accrued interest in full at any time, and at the time the balance is paid in full, the
Company will have the option to purchase the production test equipment from HNS for $1.00. As of December 31, 2008, the Company had an
outstanding balance related to the equipment financing of approximately $2.1 million which is reflected in capital lease obligations on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Two members of the Company s board of directors, the Chief Executive Officer and another board member who is affiliated with Apollo, are
both members of the Board of Managers of HNS and the Board of Directors of HCI.
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SkyTerra Communications

On August 1, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with SkyTerra Communications, Inc. ( SkyTerra ), a former affiliate of Apollo,
pursuant to which the Company received consulting services from three personnel of SkyTerra. The agreement allowed for such personnel to
provide the Company up to an aggregate of 200 hours of service per month for a monthly fee of $25,000. The agreement was amended effective
December 18, 2006 when the Company s Chief Executive Officer and Vice President Finance, two of the SkyTerra personnel providing services
to the Company, became employees of the Company. The amended agreement provided that the Company would pay $8,000 per month to
SkyTerra for the services of the remaining employee of SkyTerra who had been providing services to the Company. This amended agreement
was terminated effective February 1, 2007 when that remaining SkyTerra employee, SkyTerra s General Counsel and Secretary, became a
part-time employee and General Counsel of the Company, while continuing to serve part-time with SkyTerra. Also effective December 18,

2006, the Company and SkyTerra executed a second agreement pursuant to which the Company s Vice President Finance was to provide services
to SkyTerra in exchange for SkyTerra paying the Company $5,000 per month. This agreement terminated on March 31, 2007. During the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from January 9, 2006 through December 31, 2006, the Company incurred approximately
$0, $0, and $0.2 million, of net expense, respectively, under these consulting agreements.

The Company s Chief Executive Officer of the Company is the former Chief Executive Officer and President of SkyTerra and a former member
of SkyTerra s board of directors. Another member of the Company s board of directors who is affiliated with Apollo is also a former member of
SkyTerra s board of directors.

(12) Contingencies and Commitments
Leases

The Company has non-cancelable operating leases. Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, under operating leases with initial
or remaining terms of one year or more consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31:

2009 $ 764
2010 609
2011 630
2012 652
2013 675
Thereafter 878
Total minimum lease payments $ 4,208

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, and for the period from January 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006, total expense under operating
leases was approximately $0.7 million, $0.6 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

Technology Upgrade Program

Prior to its acquisition by the Company, Networkfleet sold products which utilized a wireless network which the network operator informed the
Company would be decommissioned and used for other purposes. Consequently, Networkfleet initiated an upgrade program through which
customers may exchange certain of these products which were purchased between April 2002 and July 2006 for the current version of
Networkfleet s
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hardware which operates on a different wireless network. During 2007, the network operator informed the Company that they had decided not to
decommission the network. However, due to inconsistent coverage within the network coverage area, the Company continued with the upgrade
program. Networkfleet completed the program in December 2008. The estimated cost of the upgrade program was approximately $2.7 million
and was recorded as a liability in the Company s purchase price allocation for the Networkfleet acquisition. The remaining liability as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $0 and approximately $0.8 million, respectively, and is included in accrued expenses in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007, the Company reassessed the estimated remaining cost of the
upgrade program and, as a result, reduced the liability by approximately $0.4 million and $0.4 million, respectively. This reduction was recorded
as a decrease in cost of hardware sold. In connection with the completion of the technology upgrade program, Networkfleet evaluated its
inventory on hand and recorded an approximately $0.4 million charge related to excess or obsolete inventories which were being used primarily
in the exchange provided under the program.

Changes in the remaining liability related to the technology upgrade program were as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007

(in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $ 816 $2,178
Costs incurred (384) (922)
Reduction in the estimated cost to complete the program (432) (440)
Balance at end of period $ $ 8l6

Warranty Liability

The Company warrants its hardware to be free of defects in materials and workmanship and to substantially conform to the specifications for
such hardware. The Company estimates its future warranty obligations by considering historical product return experience and related costs. As
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company s estimated warranty liability was approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

Changes in accrued warranty liability costs were as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007

(in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $ 156 $ 21
Warranty cost accrual 659 733
Warranty costs incurred (679) (598)
Balance at end of period $ 136 $ 156

Contractual Payment Obligations

The Company has a long-term contract with each of two automakers pursuant to which the automakers have agreed to install telematics devices
in their vehicles and permit the Company to exclusively provide telematics services to their new customers. Those contracts also require the
Company to pay each automaker for certain non-recurring costs associated with the initiation of telematics services, up to an aggregate of $29.0
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between the two companies. The Company committed to pay $4.0 million of this amount on the first business day following each of January 1,
2008, January 1, 2009 and January 1, 2010. The remaining balance will be paid as the automaker incurs certain actual costs and are expected to
be paid in full by December 31, 2011. In accordance with EITF Issue No. 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer
(Including a Reseller of the Vendor s Products), amounts paid under these agreements will be capitalized and recognized as a reduction of
revenue over the term of the respective agreement. During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company incurred $4.3 million under these
agreements, which is included in other assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

In April 2008, the Company entered into a software license agreement pursuant to which it agreed to pay the software provider, in installments
and upon certain conditions set forth below, an aggregate of $5.5 million in exchange for licenses to use its software in the Company s service
offerings enabled by the factory installed hardware. Upon execution of the agreement, the Company paid the software provider $1.0 million for
an initial amount of licenses. In addition, within three business days of the date on which the Company completes a financing resulting in net
proceeds in excess of $15.0 million, the Company is required to pay the software supplier an additional $2.5 million as prepaid royalties for
additional licenses. Finally, within three business days of the date on which the Company completes an additional financing resulting in net
proceeds in excess of an additional $15.0 million, the Company is required to pay the software provider an additional $2.0 million as prepaid
royalties for additional licenses. In addition, the Company has the option to acquire additional licenses on terms and conditions set forth in the
agreement. Pursuant to the license agreement, the software supplier also agreed not to license its software to certain automotive manufacturers,
other than through the Company. During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company paid the software provider an aggregate of $2.1
million for prepaid royalties for licenses. Such amount has been reflected in other noncurrent assets on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

In April 2008, the Company entered into an amended agreement with a supplier pursuant to which the Company committed to purchase services
in an aggregate amount of no less than $6.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2009, and $9.0 million in the years ended December 31,
2010, 2011 and 2012. If it becomes probable that the anticipated services to be purchased under this agreement will be below the contractual
minimums, the Company will record a liability for such anticipated shortfall. As of December 31, 2008, the Company expects to meet the
contractual minimums and, accordingly, has not recorded a liability for an anticipated shortfall under this agreement.

Litigation and Claims

From time to time, the Company is subject to litigation in the normal course of business. The Company is of the opinion that, based on
information presently available, the resolution of any such legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial
position, results of operations or its cash flows.

(13) Segment Information

The Company presents its segment information along the same lines that its chief executive officer reviews its operating results in assessing
performance and allocating resources. Accordingly, the Company s operations have been classified into two business segments: (i) HUGHES
Telematics and (ii) Networkfleet. The HUGHES Telematics segment is developing the factory installed, end-to-end telematics solution which is
being marketed to automakers and includes our corporate expenses. The Networkfleet segment provides an aftermarket wireless fleet
management solution targeted to the local fleet market. For each period presented, all reported revenues were attributable to Networkfleet.

F-52

Table of Contents 148



Edgar Filing: GABELLI UTILITY TRUST - Form N-Q

Table of Conten

HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The following table presents certain financial information on the Company s reportable segments:

Revenues:
HUGHES Telematics
Networkfleet

Total

Loss from operations:
HUGHES Telematics
Networkfleet

Total

Total assets:
HUGHES Telematics
Networkfleet

Total

Year Ended January 9, 2006
December 31, (Inception) to
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)
$ $ $
30,260 20,352 6,913
$ 30,260 $ 20,352 $ 6,913
$ (47,556) $(29,431) $ (4,487)
(102) (4,146) (1,649)
$ (47,658) $ (33,577) $ (6,136)
December 31,
2008 2007
(in thousands)
$ 88,341 $42,580
20,641 20,352
$ 108,982 $ 62,932

All of the Company s assets are located within the United States. As of each of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company included the $5.2

million of goodwill in the total assets of the Networkfleet segment.

(14) Subsequent Events

On March 12, 2009, the Company issued and sold 5,000,000 shares of New Series B Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $50.0

million. AIF V PLASE purchased 1,200,000 of such shares of New Series B Preferred Stock for $12.0 million of cash, and HUGHES

Communications, parent of HNS, purchased 1,300,000 of such shares of New Series B Preferred Stock through the conversion of $13.0 million
of trade accounts payable transferred from HNS. The remaining 2,500,000 shares of New Series B Preferred Stock were purchased by unrelated
institutional investors for $25.0 million of cash. As a result of sale of New Series B Preferred Stock, the remaining approximately $5.3 million

was released from the escrow account held for the benefit of the senior secured note holders. For consulting and financial advisory services

provided in connection with the sale of the New Series B Preferred Stock, the Company paid Trivergance, LLC ( Trivergance ), an affiliate of
Polaris, approximately $1.3 million of cash and issued Trivergance a warrant to purchase 314,117 shares of Company common stock, comprised
of 72,224 initial shares and 241,893 earn-out shares, at an equivalent exercise price of approximately $0.167 per share.

The New Series B Preferred Stock has an initial liquidation preference of $10.00 per share which will increase quarterly at a rate of 8.0% per

annum and is senior in priority to each of the Company s Series A Preferred Stock and the Company s common stock. The New Series B
Preferred Stock is convertible at any time at the option of the holder into such number of shares of common stock equal to the then current
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basis on all matters which holders of the Company s common stock are entitled to vote. Beginning on October 1, 2013, the New Series B
Preferred Stock is subject to redemption at the option of the holder at the then current liquidation preference plus any accrued and unpaid
dividends.

In connection with the sale of the New Series B Preferred Stock, on March 12, 2009, the Company also amended the Merger Agreement with
Polaris to, among other things, increase the number of shares of Polaris common stock issued to the Company s security holders at closing by
approximately 5,000,000 shares to a total of 19,854,018 shares. The aggregate number of additional shares issued to the Company s security
holders which will be subject to the escrow subject to the achievement of certain share price targets agreement remained unchanged at
57,248,131. At the closing of the Merger, the New Series B Preferred Stock will convert into the right to receive an aggregate of 5,000,000 of
the 19,854,018 initial shares of Polaris common stock and 7,500,000 of the approximately 57,248,131 shares placed in escrow.

Unaudited
On March 31, 2009, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Old HTT and Polaris consummated the Merger (see Note 2).

On April 30, 2009, Old Chrysler filed for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of the United States bankruptcy code. On June 10, 2009, New
Chrysler purchased substantially all of the assets of Old Chrysler in the bankruptcy process. At a hearing held on July 16, 2009, Old Chrysler
rejected certain contracts, including the Company s telematics services contract with Old Chrysler, and therefore, the contract was terminated.
The Company had been in negotiations with New Chrysler concerning a new telematics services agreement. However, the parties recently
reached an impasse in the negotiations, and as a result, the Company discontinued working with New Chrysler to deploy the Company s
hardware and launch the Company s services in the fourth quarter of 2009 as previously planned. In light of the termination of the Company s
contract with Old Chrysler and the recent impasse in negotiations with New Chrysler, if the impasse is not resolved promptly, the Company will
further evaluate for impairment the amounts capitalized in connection with the provision of telematics services under the contract with Old
Chrysler. On June 26, 2009, the Company obtained a waiver from its senior secured lenders under the Credit Agreement providing that the
rejection of the Old Chrysler contract will not impact the Company s existing obligations under the Credit Agreement.
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Item 13.  Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution
The following table sets forth the costs and expenses, other than underwriting discounts and commissions, if any, payable by us relating to the
sale of common stock and warrants being registered. All amounts are estimates except the SEC registration fee.

SEC registration fee $ 3,165.01
Legal fees and expenses $ 25,000.00
Accounting fees and expenses $ 10,000.00
Miscellaneous $ 25,000.00
Total $ 63,165.01

Item 14.  Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, referred to herein as the certificate of incorporation, provides that a director of our
company shall not be personally liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for
liability (i) for any breach of the director s duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve
intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) under Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the DGCL ), or (iv) for
any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. If the DGCL is amended to authorize corporate action further
eliminating or limiting the personal liability of directors, then the liability of a director of our company will be eliminated or limited to the fullest
extent permitted by the DGCL, as so amended. Our amended and restated by-laws, referred to herein as the by-laws, provide for the same
indemnification for directors and officers of our company.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation also provides that all directors, officers, employees and agents of our company shall be
entitled to be indemnified by us to the fullest extent permitted by Section 145 of the DGCL. Section 145 of the DGCL provides that a
corporation has the power to indemnify a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation and certain other persons serving at the request
of the corporation in related capacities against amounts paid and expenses incurred in connection with an action or proceeding to which he or
she is a party or is threatened to be made a party by reason of such position, if such person shall have acted in good faith and in a manner he or
she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, in any criminal proceeding, if such person had no
reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful; provided that, in the case of actions brought by or in the right of the corporation, no
indemnification shall be made with respect to any matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless
and only to the extent that the adjudicating court determines that such indemnification is proper under the circumstances.

Our by-laws provide that we will indemnify any of our directors and officers who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, other than an action by or in
the right of our company, referred to herein as a Third Party Proceeding, by reason of the fact that he or she was or is a director or officer,
employee or agent of ours, acting solely in such capacity, or a person serving at our request as a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or
agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, committee or other enterprise, each referred to herein as an Authorized
Representative, against his or her expenses and liabilities (including attorneys fees), actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in
connection with the Third Party Proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed by him or her to be in, or not
opposed to, our best interests and, with respect to any Third Party Proceeding involving potential criminal liability, referred to herein as a

Criminal Third Party Proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any Third Party
Proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction or upon a
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plea of nolo contendere, or its equivalent, will not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which
he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, our best interests or, with respect to any Criminal Third Party Proceeding, had
reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful.

Our by-laws provide that we will indemnify any director or officer of ours who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action or suit by us to produce a judgment in favor of our shareholders, or any threatened, pending or
completed action or suit in the right of our company by our stockholders to procure a judgment in our favor, referred to herein as a Derivative
Action, by reason of the fact that the director or officer was or is an Authorized Representative of ours, against his or her expenses (including
attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred by the director or officer in the action if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably
believed by him or her to be in, or not opposed to, our best interests; except that no indemnification will be made in respect of any claim, issue
or matter as to which he or she has been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his or her duty to us unless
and only to the extent that the court of common pleas, or other similarly constituted state court, located in the county where our registered office
is located or the court in which such Derivative Action is or was pending, determines upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability
but in view of all circumstances of the case, he or she is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification for expenses which the court deems
proper.

An Authorized Representative of our company (other than a director or officer of ours) may be indemnified by us or have his or her expenses
advanced in accordance with the procedures described below. To the extent that an Authorized Representative of ours has been successful on the
merits or otherwise in defense of any Third Party Proceeding or Derivative Action or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, the
Authorized Representative will be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in
connection therewith.

Indemnification under the provisions of our by-laws described above (unless ordered by a court) will be made by us only as authorized in the
specific case upon a determination that the indemnification of the Authorized Representative is required or proper in the circumstances because
he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth above or has been successful on the merits or as otherwise in defense of any Third
Party Proceeding or Derivative Action and that the amount requested has been actually and reasonably incurred. Such determination shall be
made:

(a) by our board of directors or a committee thereof, acting by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of our directors who are not parties to a
Third Party Proceeding or Derivative Action, referred to herein as Disinterested Directors ; or

(b) if a quorum is not obtainable or, even if obtainable, a majority vote of a quorum of Disinterested Directors so directs, by independent legal
counsel in a written opinion; or

(c) by our stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation and by-laws provide that expenses incurred in defending a Third Party Proceeding or Derivative Action will be
paid on behalf of a director or officer, and may be paid on behalf of any other Authorized Representative under our by-laws, by us in advance of
the final disposition of the action as authorized in the manner provided above upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or
officer to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is not entitled to be indemnified by us as authorized by our
certificate of incorporation or by-laws. The financial ability of any Authorized Representative to make repayment will not be a prerequisite to
making of an advance. Such expenses incurred by other employees and agents may be paid upon such terms and conditions, if any, as our board
of directors deems appropriate.

1I-2

Table of Contents 153



Edgar Filing: GABELLI UTILITY TRUST - Form N-Q

Table of Conten

Our certificate of incorporation provides that expenses (including attorneys fees) incurred by an officer or director in defending any civil,
criminal, administrative, or investigative action, suit or proceeding for which such officer or director may be entitled to indemnification
hereunder shall be paid by us in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf
of such director or officer to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is not entitled to be indemnified by us as
authorized by the certificate of incorporation.

The indemnification provided by our by-laws is not deemed to be exclusive of any other right to which a person seeking indemnification or
advancement of expenses may be entitled under any by-law, agreement, vote of stockholders or Disinterested Directors, or otherwise, both as to
action taken in another capacity while holding his or her office or position, and will continue as to a person who has ceased to be an Authorized
Representative of ours and will inure to the benefit of his or her heirs and personal representatives.

Our by-laws provide that we may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was an Authorized Representative against
any expenses and liabilities asserted against him or her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, whether or not we would have the
power to indemnify him or her against such expenses and liabilities under the provisions of our by-laws.

Our board of directors is expected to approve a form of Indemnification Agreement (the Indemnification Agreement ) to be entered into between
us and our directors and officers. We may from time to time enter into additional indemnification agreements with future directors and officers
of ours or other key personnel.

Each of the Indemnification Agreements is expected to provide, among other things, that we will, to the extent permitted by applicable law,
indemnify and hold harmless each indemnitee if, by reason of such indemnitee s status as a director or officer of ours, such indemnitee was, is or
is threatened to be made a party or a participant (as a witness or otherwise) in any threatened, pending or completed proceeding, whether of a
civil, criminal, administrative or investigative nature, against all losses, judgments, fines, penalties and amounts paid in settlement (if such
settlement is approved in writing in advance by us) and incurred by such indemnitee in connection with such proceeding. In addition, each of the
Indemnification Agreements is expected to provide for the advancement of expenses incurred by the indemnitee in connection with any
proceeding covered by the agreement, subject to certain exceptions. None of the Indemnification Agreements is expected to preclude any other
rights to indemnification or advancement of expenses to which the indemnitee may be entitled, including but not limited to, any rights arising
under our governance documents, or any other agreement, any vote of our stockholders or any applicable law.

Item 15.  Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On March 31, 2009, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 13, 2008, Old HTI, a privately held company, and
Polaris, a publicly held blank check company, consummated the Merger whereby Old HTI merged with and into a wholly owned direct

subsidiary of Polaris with Old HTT as the surviving corporation, and immediately thereafter, Old HTI merged with and into Polaris, with Polaris

as the surviving corporation. In connection with the Merger, Polaris changed its name from Polaris Acquisition Corp. to HUGHES Telematics,
Inc.

At the closing of the Merger, we issued to the Old HTI securityholders, among other consideration, 77,102,149 shares of our common stock,
which included 58,737,184 shares of common stock which were issued into escrow, subject to certain indemnification obligations and the
achievement of certain share price targets in the five years after the closing. The shares were issued in a private placement not involving a public
offering under the Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 or Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933.
Polaris did not engage in general solicitation or advertising with regard to the issuance of its shares of common stock and did not offer securities
to the public in connection with this issuance.
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In addition, in connection with the Merger, pursuant to certain letter agreements dated March 12, 2009, we issued an aggregate of 226,592
shares of common stock in lieu of cash compensation to such advisors for services rendered to us. Such shares were issued in a private
placement not involving a public offering under the Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. We did not
engage in general solicitation or advertising with regard to the issuance of its shares of common stock and did not offer to the public in
connection with this issuance.

On December 28, 2009, we completed a private placement of 2,516,667 shares of common stock to a group of institutional accredited investors
at a per share price of $3.00. The aggregate purchase price for the common stock sold in the private placement was approximately $7.4 million
in cash and the exchange of 1,662,200 of our publicly-traded warrants which were cancelled following the closing of the private placement. We
intend to use the net proceeds from the private placement for general corporate purposes. The sale of the common stock in the private placement
was not registered under the Securities Act, and the shares may not be sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption
from registration requirements. The shares were offered and sold pursuant to the exemption from registration afforded by Rule 506 under the
Securities Act and/or Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.

Item 16.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
The exhibits to this registration statement are listed on the Exhibit Index on page II-6 hereof, which is incorporated by reference in this Item 16.

Item 17.  Undertakings
(A) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
(1) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective
amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration
statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered
would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be
reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price
represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of Registration Fee table in the
effective registration statement;

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any
material change to such information in the registration statement.

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to
be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the
termination of the offering.

(4) For the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser, if the registrant is subject to Rule 430C, each
prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) as part of a registration statement relating to an offering, other than registration statements relying on
Rule 430B or other than
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prospectuses filed in reliance on Rule 430A, shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the date it is first used
after effectiveness. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement
or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the
registration statement will, as to the purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such first use, supersede or modify any statement that was
made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to
such date of first use.

(B) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling
persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities
and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore,
unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred
or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such
director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel
the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it
is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Atlanta, State of Georgia, on February 16, 2010.

HUGHES TELEMATICS, INC.

By: /s/  Jerrrey A. LEDDY

Name: Jeffrey A. Leddy

Title: Director and Chief Executive Officer
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Jeffrey A. Leddy, Craig
J. Kaufmann and Robert C. Lewis his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent with full power of substitution and re-substitution, for him/her
and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities to sign any or all amendments (including, without limitation, post-effective
amendments) to this Registration Statement, any related Registration Statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933
and any or all pre- or post-effective amendments thereto, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent, full power and authority to do and
perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully for all intents and purposes as he or
she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming that said attorney-in-fact and agent, or any substitute or substitutes for him,
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.

NAME POSITION DATE
/s/ Jerrrey A. LEDDY Director and Chief Executive Officer February 16, 2010

Jeffrey A. Leddy
/s/  CraiG J. KAUFMANN Vice President Finance and Treasurer February 16, 2010
Craig J. Kaufmann
/s/  ANDREw D. AFrick Director February 16, 2010
Andrew D. Africk

/s/ Marc V. BYRoN Director February 16, 2010
Marc V. Byron

/s/ Anprew P. HiNEs Director February 16, 2010

Andrew P. Hines
/s/  WARREN N. LIEBERFARB Director February 16, 2010

Warren N. Lieberfarb
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NAME
/s/ MattHEW H. NorD
Matthew H. Nord
/s/ AARON J. STONE
Aaron J. Stone
/s/ MARK VANSTEKELENBURG

Mark VanStekelenburg
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POSITION

Director

Director

Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The agreements included as exhibits to this registration statement contain representations and warranties by each of the parties to the
applicable agreement. These representations and warranties were made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the applicable
agreement and (i) were not intended to be treated as categorical statements of fact, but rather as a way of allocating the risk to one of
the parties if those statements prove to be inaccurate; (ii) have been qualified by disclosures that were made to the other party in
connection with the negotiation of the applicable agreement; (iii) may apply contract standards of materiality that are different from

materiality under the applicable securities laws; and (iv) were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or such other date
or dates as may be specified in the agreement. The registrant acknowledges that, notwithstanding the inclusion of the foregoing
cautionary statements, it is responsible for considering whether additional specific disclosures of material information regarding
material contractual provisions are required to make the statements in this registration statement not misleading. Additional
information about the registrant may be found elsewhere in this registration statement and in the registrant s other public filings, which
are available without charge through the SEC s website at www.sec.gov.

Exhibit
No. Description
2.1 Second Amended and Restated Merger Agreement, dated March 12, 2009, by and among Polaris Acquisition Corp., HUGHES

Telematics, Inc., and Communication Investors, LLC (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the Company s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated March 12, 2009)

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of HUGHES Telematics, Inc. filed with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware on March 31, 2009 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form
8-A filed on July 29, 2009 (File No. 000-53743))

32 Amended and Restated By-laws of HUGHES Telematics, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)
4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 6, 2009)
4.2 Specimen Warrant Certificate (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-145759))
4.3 Form of Unit Purchase Option (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.4 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-145759))
44 Form of Warrant Agreement (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.5 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-145759))
5.1% Opinion of Robert C. Lewis, Esq., regarding legality of the securities being registered
10.1 Shareholders Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2009, among Polaris Acquisition Corp. and each of the Persons listed on
Schedules I, IT and III (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April
6, 2009)
10.2 Escrow Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2009, by and among Polaris Acquisition Corp., Trivergance, LLC and Continental

Stock Transfer & Trust Company (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 6, 2009)

10.3 Amendment to Stock Escrow Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2009, by and among Polaris Acquisition Corp., its initial
stockholders and Lazard Capital Markets LLC (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.4 Letter Agreement, dated as of March 23, 2007, between Networkcar, Inc. and Keith Schneider (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)
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Exhibit
No. Description

10.5 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, effective as of November 30, 2007, between HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and Craig
Kaufmann (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.6 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, effective as of November 30, 2007, between HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and Robert
Lewis (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.7 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, effective as of November 30, 2007, between HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and Jeffrey
Leddy (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.8 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, effective as of November 30, 2007, between HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and Erik
Goldman (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.9 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, effective as of November 30, 2007, between HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and Andrew
Africk (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.10 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, effective as of November 30, 2007, between HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and Matthew
Nord (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.10 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.11 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2007, between HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and Keith Schneider
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.11 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.12 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, effective as of January 8, 2007, between HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and Craig Kaufmann
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.12 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.13 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, effective as of March 9, 2007, between HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and Robert Lewis
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.13 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.14 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of April 9, 2008, among HUGHES Telematics, Inc., Various Lenders, Morgan
Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.14 to the
Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.15 Assumption Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2009, among HUGHES Telematics, Inc., each Subsidiary Guarantor signatory

hereto, the Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.15 to the Company s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

10.16 Guaranty and Collateral Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2008, among HUGHES Telematics Inc., subsidiary guarantors and
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.16 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 6, 2009)

10.17 Telematics Services Agreement, dated October 31, 2007, by and between HUGHES Telematics Inc. and Mercedes-Benz USA,
LLC (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.18 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on July 6, 2009)
10.18 Telematics Agreement, dated December 28, 2007, between HUGHES Network Systems, LLC and HUGHES Telematics, Inc.

(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.19 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)
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Exhibit

No.
10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

16.1

21.1

23.1
23.2
99.1

99.2

nien

Description

Amended and Restated Co-Sale and Stock Restriction Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2009, by and among Hughes Telematics,
Inc., Communications Investors LLC, Apollo Investment Fund V (PLASE), L.P. and certain investors (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.20 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-160787))

Second Lien Credit Agreement dated as of December 17, 2009 among HUGHES Telematics, Inc., Plase HT, LLC as
administrative agent and collateral agent, and the lenders from time to time party thereto (incorporated by reference from Exhibit
99.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22, 2009)

Second Lien Guaranty and Collateral Agreement dated as of December 17, 2009 among HUGHES Telematics, Inc., the
subsidiaries of HUGHES Telematics, Inc. identified therein and Plase HT, LLC as collateral agent (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 99.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22, 2009)

Warrant to purchase 3,000,000 shares of common stock at $6.00 per share, dated as of December 17, 2009, issued to Plase HT,
LLC, expiring December 17, 2014 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.3 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on December 22, 2009)

Senior Unsecured Promissory Note, dated December 18, 2009, in the principal amount of approximately $8.3 million issued to
Hughes Network Systems, LLC (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.4 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on December 22, 2009)

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated December 24, 2009, by and among HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and the Purchasers set forth
therein (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 28, 2009)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 24, 2009, by and among HUGHES Telematics, Inc. and the Investors set forth
therein (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 28, 2009)

Letter from McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, independent registered public accounting firm (incorporated by reference from Exhibit
16.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

List of Subsidiaries (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 21.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6,
2009)

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting firm
Consent of Robert C. Lewis, Esq. (included in Exhibit 5.1)

HUGHES Telematics, Inc. 2009 Equity and Incentive Plan, effective as of March 31, 2009 (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

HUGHES Telematics, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of November 30, 2006 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit
99.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2009)

* To be filed by amendment.
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